
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY, JUNE 21, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of June 7, 2022.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational Business - Mayoral appointment: Joe Mercado, 10162 S. 34th St., Aid. Dist. 4
to the Finance Committee for a 1 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/23.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. A Resolution to Accept Donation of Outlot 3 (TKN 891-1087-000) from Loomis &

Ryan, Inc. in Ryan Meadows Subdivision Along W. Chicory Street and Dedicate a
Pond #2 Access and Maintenance Agreement to Ryan Meadows Owners Association,
Inc. [n.b.: this matter was entitled with "Dedication" instead of "Donation" for item
G.17. on the June 7, 2022 Common Council meeting agenda].

2. An Ordinance to Amend the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to
Change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map for Property Bearing Tax
Key Number 892-9999-002 from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource
Features to Residential Use (by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development,
LLC, Applicant, Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC, Property Owner).

3. An Ordinance to Amend the Unified Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to
Rezone a Certain Parcel of Land Bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from A-2
Prime Agricultural District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single
Family Residence District (by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development,
LLC, Applicant, Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC, Property Owner).

4. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special
Use for a Condominium Complex Development Use Upon Property Located at
12000 West Loomis Road (Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC,
Applicant, Boomtown, LLC, Property Owner).



Common Council Meeting Agenda
June 21, 2022
Page 2

5. A Resolution to Adopt the Ryan Creek Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail.
6. Request to Approve the Transfer of Public Health Manager to Public Health

Specialist in the 2022 Budget and Approve the Hiring of a Public Health Specialist.
7. Business View Magazine Franklin Feature Supported by Key Vendor Advertising.
8. A Resolution Approving the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources NR-208

Compliance Maintenance Report for 2021.
9. Review and Consideration to Clarify or Amend the Code of Conduct and Ethics and

Rules of the Common Council and Adopt a Resolution Affirming such Amendments
(Alderman Nelson).

10. A Resolution Affirming the City of Franklin Code of Conduct and Ethics
(Alderwoman Hanneman).

11. Consideration of an Intern Approval/Authorization Policy.
12. Review of the Director of Clerk Services Position and Timing of Hiring Due to

Impending Retirement/Upcoming Position Posting.

H. Licenses and Permits.
Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting of June 21, 2022.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are available at City Hall durmng normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, effortswll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrv1duals through appropr1ate aids and
services For additional Information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

June 23
July 4
July 5
July 7
July 19
July 21

Plan Commission Meeting
City Hall Closed-Fourth of July
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting

7:00 p.m.

6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.



CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

JUNE 07, 2022
MINUTES

c.

ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MAYORAL
ANNOUNCEMENTS

A.

B.l.

B.2.

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on June 7,
2022 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann,
Alderwoman Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman
Mike Barber and Alderman John R. Nelson. Also in attendance were
Dir. of Administration Peggy Steeno, Planning Manager Heath Eddy,
City Engineer Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and
City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and closed at
6:42p.m.

(a) Mayor Olson introduced John Regetz, Director of Economic
Development.

(b) Mayor Olson introduced the New Officers of Franklin Senior
Citizens, John Bieganski and Roger McKay.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of May 17, 2022, as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

MINUTES C.
MAY 17, 2022

IMPACT FEE D.
PUBLIC HEARING

AMEND $92-9. TO G.l.
UPDATE IMPACT FEES

BALLPARK COMMONS G.2.
UPDATE

A public hearing was called to order at 6:57 p.m. on Proposed
Amendments to $92-9 of the Municipal Code Pertaining to Impact
Fees for Transportation System Facilities, Sanitary Sewer System
Facilities, Water System Facilities, and Fire and Emergency Medical
Service Facilities. The public hearing was closed at 6:58 p.m.

Alderman Holpfer moved to table at the call of the Chair an
Ordinance to Amend $92-9. Impact Fees, of the Municipal Code, In
Part and Primarily to Update Same Pursuant to the Public Facilities
Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study dated April 27, 2022.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

No action was taken following the presentation of project updates by
Mike Zimmerman, Ballpark Commons.



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 2

CONCEPT REVIEW G.3.
S 31 ST ST, HORIZON
DEVELOPMENT GROUP
INC., APPLICANT

FIRE DEPT. SOFTWARE G.4.
AGREEMENT WITH
CENTRAL SQUARE
TECHNOLOGIES, LLC

RES. 2022-7864 G.5.
RATIFY AND
REAPPROVE RES. 2019-
7537, FINAL APPROVAL
OF CSM NO. 3411,
BALISTRERI AND
BURGE, APPLICANTS

RES. 2022-7865 G.6.
SPECIAL USE FOR
BEAUTY SALON AT
11113 W. FOREST
HOME AVE., SUITE 240,
GARMAN, APPLICANT

ORD. 2022-2512 G.7.
AMEND PDD NO. 18 -

Alderman Nelson vacated his seat at 7:50 p.m. and returned at
7:57p.m.

No action was taken following the presentation of a Concept Review
for multifamily residential development located on S. 31st St. (Lot 2
of 7219 S. 27th St., TKN 761-9955-004), (Horizon Development
Group Inc., Applicant).

Alderman Barber moved to approve a Fire Department request of
Consent to Assignment of Software Agreement, and an Access and
Use Agreement with Central Square Technologies, LLC., for Franklin
PSAP access to a Countywide CAD-2-CAD software platform.
Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm vacated her seat at 8: 17 p.m.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7864, A
RESOLUTION TO RATIFY AND REAPPROVE RESOLUTION
NO. 2019-7537, A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY
APPROVING A 2LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING PART
OF PARCEL "A" OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3411, AND
UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING A PART OF THE NORTHWEST
1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 5
NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN (DENIS J. AND SHARON L.
BALISTRERI/MELISSA M. AND CHRISTOPHER D. BURGE,
APPLICANTS) (AT 6708 AND 6720 SOUTH NORTH CAPE
ROAD), to provide the final and last approval of the certified survey
map and to allow for the recording of the certified survey map.
Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm returned to her seat at 8:20 p.m.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution 2022-7865, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A BEAUTY
SALON USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11113 WEST
FOREST HOME AVENUE, SUITE 240 (ANASTASIA E.
GARMAN, OWNER, D/B/A ANASTASIA SKIN ATELIER, LLC,
APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderwoman Eichman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2512,
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 3

SIGN PERMITS

RES. 2022-7866 G.8.
FENCE AT 3018 W.
BRIARWOOD DR.,
HESSLING, APPLICANT

HEALTH DEPT. TO G.9.
HOST WESTERN
GOVERNORS
UNIVERSITY INTERN

HEALTH DEPT. TO G.10.
HOST CHIP INTERN

RECORD CSM FOR TID G.11.
#6 AND FEASIBILITY
STUDY

TRAIL PROJECTS G.12.

DISTRICT NO. 18 AS IT PERTAINS TO THE ADMINISTRATION
OF SIGN PERMITS. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7866,
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
FENCE WITHIN THE 5-FOOT DRAINAGE & UTILITY
EASEMENT IN LOT 5 IN BLOCK 4 OF SOUTHWOOD EAST
SUBDIVISION (3018 W. BRIARWOOD DRIVE) (TKN 879-0065-
000) (PATRICK HESSLING, APPLICANT). Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize Director of Health and Human
Services to sign the contract to host a Western Governors University
intern during June and July of 2022. Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to authorize Director of Health and
Human Services to sign the contract to host a Community Health
Internship Program intern during June and July of 2022. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to authorize the recording of the 3-lot CSM,
approved on February 15, 2022, in advance of the TID #6 territory
amendment being executed, and direct staff to complete the feasibility
study on the proposed territory amendment options and bring a
recommendation to the Common Council as soon as practicable.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann vacated her seat at 8:39 p.m. and returned at
8:43 p.m.

Alderman Nelson moved to direct GRAEF to proceed with field work
for the St. Martin of Tours Trail. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On
roll call, Alderman Holpfer, Alderwoman Eichmann, Alderwoman
Hanneman, Alderman Barber, and Alderman Nelson voted Aye;
Alderwoman Wilhelm voted No. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber vacated his seat at 8:54 p.m.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to direct staff to include a flagpole
and bench amenities to Market Square Park for the W. Church Street
Trail. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion
carried.



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 4

Alderman Barber returned to his seat at 8:57 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to direct staff to resubmit the entire Cascade
Trail project to Milwaukee County Parks for reconsideration.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to pursue a grant for the Cascade Trail
project or any trail projects. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

RES. 2022-7867
FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT WITH
STATE FORS. 116TH
ST. TRAIL

No action was taken following the discussion of Trail Projects
including: S. 116th Street, W. Forest Home Avenue, STH 100, Ryan
Creek, Ryan Meadows, and Franklin Schools property between S.
80th and S. 92nd Streets.

G.13. Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7867, A
RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE A STATE/MUNICIPAL
FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR THE S. 116TH STREET TRAIL
(W. RYAN ROAD TO W. MAYERS DRIVE) CONGESTION
MITIGATION & AIR QUALITY PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$832,000. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

PROFESSIONAL G.14.
AGREEMENT WITH
GRAEF-USA, INC FORS.
116TH ST TRAILHEAD

BUDGET DISCUSSION G.15.
RELATED TO RES. 2022
7833, AGREEMENT
WITH STATE FOR WI
DOT PROJECT ON S.
LOVERS LANE/W.
RYAN RD.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to table to August 2, 2022 a Resolution
for a Professional Services Agreement with GRAEF-USA, Inc. for
engineering and architecture services related to the S. 116th Street
trailhead at approximately 11950 W. Ryan Road (TKN 890-9991
001) in the amount of $86,800. Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved forward with the $1,181, 108 amount,
Amending the amount in Resolution No. 2022-7833, A
RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT AND A STATE/MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO A
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
ON S. LOVERS LANE/W. RYAN ROAD (USH 45/STH 100)
FROM S. 60TH STREET TO W. ST. MARTINS ROAD IN THE
AMOUNT OF $624,700. On roll call, Alderman Nelson, Alderman
Barber, Alderwoman Wilhelm and Alderman Holpfer voted Aye;
Alderwoman Hanneman and Alderwoman Eichmann voted No.
Motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 5

FRANKLIN PUBLIC G.16.
SCHOOL NEGOTIATION
FOR TRAIL AT W.
RYAN RD. BETWEENS.
80TH AND S. 92ND STS.

ACCEPT OUTLOT 3 G.17.
FROM LOOMIS &
RYAN, INC. IN RYAN
MEADOWS
SUBDIVISION

RES. 2022-7868 G.18.
WE ENERGIES TO
RELOCATE ELECTRIC
FACILITIES NEARS.
HICKORY ST.

RES. 2022-7869 G.19.
CONTRACT FORS.
HICKORY ST.
IMPROVEMENTS WITH
PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES, INC.

RES. 2022-7870 G.20.
AGREEMENT WITH
FOTH-S. LOVERS LANE
RD. WATER
RELOCATIONS

RES 2022-7870 G.21.
AMEND RES. 2022-7816
CONTRACT WITH
HAUSCH DESIGN
AGENCY, LLC FOR
MESSAGING PROGRAM
FOR SEWER UTILITIES
PROJECT

Alderman Nelson moved to direct Staff to enter negotiations with
Franklin Public Schools for construction, maintenance, and ownership
of a trail and trailhead across a parcel south of W. Ryan Road
between S. 80th Street and S. 92nd Street. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to table to June 21, 2022, A Resolution
to Accept Dedication of Outlot 3 (TKN 891-1087-000) from Loomis
& Ryan, Inc. in Ryan Meadows Subdivision Along W. Chicory Street
and Dedicate a Pond #2 Access and Maintenance Agreement to Ryan
Meadows Owners Association, Inc. Seconded by Alderman Nelson.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7868,
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO DIRECT WE
ENERGIES TO RELOCATE ELECTRIC FACILITIES IN THE
VICINITY OF S. HICKORY STREET FOR $92,666.25 as revised.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7869,
A RESOLUTION TO AWARD CONTRACT FOR
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING SERVICES ON THE
FRANKLIN CORPORATE PARK SOUTH HICKORY STREET
IMPROVEMENTS TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
INDUSTRIES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $46,110 as amended by
the City Attorney. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7870, A
RESOLUTION FOR A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE &
ENVIRONMENT, LLC FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
RELATED TO S. LOVERS LANE RD. WATER RELOCATIONS
AND EXTENSIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF $74,800, as revised.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7870,
A RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH
BAUSCH DESIGN AGENCY, LLC TO DEVELOP A
MESSAGING PROGRAM FOR FRANKLIN SEWER UTILITIES
PROJECT/PRIVATE PROPERTY INFILTRATION & INFLOW
REDUCTION PROJECT FOR $32,383.03, AMENDING
RESOLUTION 2022-7816, A RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH BAUSCH DESIGN AGENCY, LLC TO



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 6

DEVELOP A MESSAGING PROGRAM FOR FRANKLIN SEWER
UTILITIES PROJECT/PRIVATE PROPERTY INFILTRATION &
INFLOW REDUCTION PROJECT NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT
OF $31,000. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

FINANCIAL REPORT
JAN. -MAR., 2022

NEWSLETTER
DISTRIBUTION

ORD. 2022-2513
AMEND ST. MARTINS
FAIR LICENSE FEES

G.22. Alderman Holpfer moved to receive and place on file the Monthly
Financial Report for January through March, 2022. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.23. Alderman Nelson moved to receive and place on file the notification
of change in distribution frequency of the City Newsletter from five
to four per year. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

G.24. Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2513, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE AS IT
PERTAINS TO LICENSE FEES FOR THE ST. MARTINS FAIR.
Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

H. Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the following from the
Special License Committee Meeting ofMay 20, 2022:

Hold 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License for appearance to: Aarion
Gonzalez; Damien Cortes;
Hold 2022-23 Operator License for appearance to Andrew Page;
Grant 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License with a warning letter to
Brandon Hamilton-Smith;
Grant 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License with warning letter and
contingency proof ofmost recent Court record to Megan Peiffer;
Grant 2021-22 Operator License to Jason Leidle;
Grant New 2022-23 Operator License to: Antonio Chapa, Krystal
Coey, Kaitlyn Connolly, Arturo Juarez Jr, Kristen Menzel, Micah
Modic, Meghan Pavlic, Julie Sobanski, Taylor Takerian;
Grant 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License to: Ryan Blum, Matthew
Holtz, Christina Kessler;
Grant Renewal 2022-23 Operator License to: Sandra Albert, Cathy
Anderson, Daniel Bartels, Bradley Bautch, Leesa Bearder, Genine
Behning, Tanya Bielinski, William Canales, Tyler Cherek, Eric
Cottman, Barbara Davison, Rebecca Deall, Susan DeGeorge, Kristy
Delaney, Ava Dresdow, Richard Elliott, Kathleen Galipo, Dawn
Gottschalk, Susan Grainer, Haley Jenna, Lisa Hansen, Patti Hartung,
Kimberly Henzig, Kimberly Hill, Lisa Hutts, Jai Jensen, Adam
Jubeck, Michael Klamecki, Danielle Knox, Kailey Kowalski,
Miranda Krasinski, Apolonia Kust, Michael Lloyd, Thomas Manske,



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 7

Julia Martinez, Mark Matecki, Riley May, Brianna Mayer, Ciara
McMillan, Janet Miller, Susan Mlynczak, Camille Nicolai, Tyler
Okrzesik, Derek Olszewski, Amy Ottaviani, Denise Popp, Eric
Ramos, Debra Reichart, Jean Risacher, Michelle Rocha, Ryan
Scheffler, Erica Schwebe, Linda Steeves, Alexis Steltz, Molly Tengel,
Jaiden Thiem, Tiffany Torres, Katiana Valle, Juan Villa, Melissa
Waulters, Kathleen Wegner, Michael Williams, Matthew Wisniewski,
Alyssa Zacher, Sandra Zimmer, Remy Ziolkowski;
Approve the PUBLIC (People Uniting for the Betterment of Life and
Investment in the Community) Grant to Franklin Lioness Club, St
Martin's Fair Permit, Temporary Class B Beer and Wine License,
Operator Permits, 9/4 - 9/5/22;
Grant 2022-23 Day Care License pending Planning Department
approval and all State and Local Regulations to Cadence Education
LLC, Manager Tanya Graser, 9758 S Airways Ct;
Grant 2022-23 Day Care License pending all State and Local
Regulations to: Faith Community Church Inc, Manager Caitlin
Arterburn, 7700 W Faith Dr; KinderCare Education LLC, Manager
Michelle Swikert, 7363 S 27 St;
Grant 2021-22 & 2022-23 Sundance Kids of Franklin LLC, Manager
Anna Keaton, 9651 W Drexel Ave;
Grant 2022-23 Entertainment & Amusement License pending all
State and Local Regulations to: Milwaukee County Parks, Manager
Andrea Wallace at Sports Complex, 6000 W Ryan Rd; Oakwood Park
Golf Course, 3600 W Oakwood Rd; Whitnall Golf Course, 6751 S
92' st;
Grant 2022-23 Class A Combination licenses pending All State and
Local Regulations to: Dairyland Retail Group LLC, Agent Elizabeth
Evans, 7610 W Rawson Ave; Ryan Fuel LLC, Agent Kavita Khullar,
5120 W Ryan Rd; Wisconsin CVS Pharmacy LLC, Agent Richard
Verdoni, 5220 W Rawson Ave; Andyone Inc, Agent Sunny Patel,
6507A S 27th St; New Liquor & Food Inc, Agent Gurjeet Singh, 8305

27 St; Kwik Trip Inc, Agent Jill Le Clare, 5040 W Rawson Ave;
Kwik Trip Inc, Agent Andrew Wichmann, 10750 W Speedway Dr;
Nerankar LLC, Agent Vinder Kumar, 7158 76" St; Jujhar LLC,
Agent Hardeep Singh Bhatti, 11123 W Forest Home Ave; Ultra Mart
Foods LLC, Agent Ricky Kloth, 7201 S 76 St; Mega Marts LLC,
Agent Mark Waraska, 7780 S Lovers Lane Rd; Sam's East Inc, Agent
Michelle Peterson, 6705 S 27 St; Sendik's Franklin LLC, Agent
Theodore Balistreri, 5200 W Rawson Ave; Target Corporation, Agent
Daniel Olsen, 7800 S Lovers Lane Rd; Walgreen Co, Agent Kayla
Priebe, 9909 W Loomis Rd; Walgreen Co, Agent Brian Hilber, 9527
S 27th St; Walgreen Co, Agent Elaine Blumreiter,7130 S 76" St;
Wal-Mart Stores East LP, Agent Heather Burns, 6701 S 27 St;
Grant 2022-23 Class B Beer licenses pending All State and Local



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 8

Regulations to: M Squared Inc, Agent Michael Falk, 11357 W St
Martins Rd; Marcus Cinemas of Wisconsin LLC, Agent David Metz,
8910 S 102 St;
Grant 2022-23 Class B Beer & Class C Wine licenses pending All
State and Local Regulations to: Dhiman LLC, Agent Deepak
Dhiman, 7107 76 St; Lover Lane Buffet Inc, Agent Jiangduan
Jiang, 6514 S Lovers Lane Rd; Sweet Basil MKE LLC, Agent
Kenneth Sithy, 6509 S 27 St;
Grant 2022-23 Class B Combination licenses pending All State and
Local Regulations to: The Bowery LLC, Agent Roger Hein, 3023 W
Ryan Rd; RLGIDI Inc, Agent Rex ldrizi, 3137 W Rawson Ave;
Brinker Restaurant Corporation, Agent Alexandra Mather, 6439 S
27% St; M&W Lueng LLC, Agent May Lueng, 7236 S 76 St;
Pantheon of Wisconsin Inc, Agent Debbie Koutromanus, 7221 S 76th
St; Robley Tech Inc, Agent Dennis Rau, 8330 W Puetz Rd;
Enthusiast Approved LLC, Agent Apostolos Evreniadis, 9405 S 27th

St; Romey's Place LLC, Agent Nathan Fabry, 7508 S North Cape
Rd; Kriton & Ermira LLC, Agent Ermira Lazaj, 8405 $ 27 St; St
Martins Inn LLC, Agent Dennis Wegner, 11318 W St Martins Rd;
Grant 2022-23 Class B Combination and Entertainment &
Amusement and Bowling licenses pending All State and Local
Regulations to: Country Lanes Bowling LLC, Agent Kevin Meier,
11231 W Forest Home Ave; Root Group LLC, Agent David Church,
7220 W Rawson Ave;
Grant 2022-23 Reserve Class B Combination licenses pending All
State and Local Regulations to: FF&E LLC, Agent Jefferson
Calimlim, 6901 S 76 St; Hudson Burger LLC, Agent Ralph
Hornaday, 6421 S 27 St;
Grant 2022-23 Reserve Class B Combination and Entertainment &
Amusement licenses pending All State and Local Regulations to:
Federation of Croatian Societies Inc, Agent Josip Veber, 9100 $ 76
St; BPC Golf Entertainment LLC, Agent Thomas Johns, 7065 S
Ballpark Dr; Rock Snow Park LLC, Agent Michael R Schmitz, 7011
S Ballpark Dr; Franklin Hotel Company LLC, Agent Vicki Jesson,
9575 $ 27% Ste

'Grant 2022-23 Class B Combination, Entertainment & Amusement
and Drive-In Movie Theater licenses pending All State and Local
Regulations to: The Rock Sports Complex LLC, Agent Thomas
Johns,7005 S Ballpark Drive;
Grant 2022-23 Class B Combination, Entertainment & Amusement
licenses pending All State and Local Regulations to: Christopher
Matecki (Individually Owned), 9461 S 27th St; Franklin Food &
Beverage LLC, Agent Frank Orcholski, 9643 S 76th St; Irish Cottage
of Franklin LLC, Agent Jenny Jennings, 11433 W Ryan Rd; Jax on
27 LLC, Agent William Rushman, 6357 S 27 St; The Landmark of



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 9

Franklin LLC, Agent Lorie Beth Knaack-Helm, 11401 W Swiss St;
Little Cancun LLC, Agent Veronica Cervera, 7273A S 27St; B S T
LLC, Agent Brian Francis, 8933 27 St; H B & H LLC, Agent
Gerald Hay, 10741 S 27 St; Polish Heritage Alliance Inc, Agent
Jeffrey Kuderski, 6941 S 68 St; Polonia Sport Club Inc, Agent Irene
Hawkinson, 10200 W Loomis Rd; Rawson Pub Inc, Agent Steven
Schweitzer, 5621 W Rawson Ave; R&C PUB & GRUB LLC, Agent
Chrystal Rausch, 11430 W Swiss Street;
Grant 2022-23 Class B Combination, Country Club and
Entertainment & Amusement licenses pending All State and Local
Regulations to: Tuckaway Country Club, Agent Jennifer Jacobi,
6901 W Drexel Ave;
Hold for appearance 2022-23 Class B Combination, Entertainment &
Amusement licenses: Point After LLC, Agent Darryl Malek, 7101 S
76 st.

Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the following from the
License Committee Meeting of June 7, 2022:

Grant Extraordinary Entertainment & Special Event License Pending
Compliance with all Departments' Requirements & copy of
Certificate of Insurance to: Victory of the Lamb-Community
Outreach Event, Robina Biesterfield, 111200 W Loomis Rd,
7/16/2022; Croatian Eagles Soccer Club-Soccer Banquet, Josip
Jaskie, 9140 S 76 st, 8/13/2022;
Hold Class B Combination, Entertainment & Amusement for
Appearance, Point After LLC, 7101 S 76 St, Agent Darryl Malek;
Grant 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License with a warning letter to:
Damian Cortes, Andrew Page;
Hold 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License to Aarion Gonzalez
pending opinion from the city attorney;
Grant 2022-23 Operator License with correction of Application to
Alyssa Anderson;
Grant 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License with correction of
Application to Kimberly Boyce, Farrah Rodriguez;
Grant 2021-22 Operator License to Tiffany Jones;
Grant 2022-23 Operator License to Sukhminder Bhatti, Brittany
Brandon, Jennifer Deputy, Douglas Holste, Cassidy Kramp, Lauren
Rodriguez:
Hold 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License for appearance to:
Kenneth Burks, Shaun Chisom, Adriana Murillo;
Hold 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License pending background
check to Michael Fisher, Madeline Gernhauser;



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 10

VOUCHERS AND I.
PAYROLL

CLOSED SESSION G.25.
TID NO. 8 POTENTIAL
DEV. AGREEMENT
WITH SFT FRANKLIN
OAKWOOD, LLC AT
3303 W. OAKWOOD RD.

Grant 2021-22 & 2022-23 Operator License to Jalen Blake, Claudia
Blue, Ivan Camargo, Cornissa Collins, Joel Dyre, Kelly Gehrke,
Juanzel Hill, Selena Krohn, Marilu Marcano, Justin Miller, Dennis
Mohammed, Ruth Nieves, Heidi Reese, Brent Schultz, Joshua Smith,
Ann Thaler, Laurence Walkowiak, Timmothy Winters,
Grant 2022-23 Operator License to Brandon Bhatti, Tammy Bresette,
Deanna Bucher, Marcus Drewk, Nicole Gaus, Jessica Hogan, Gavin
Ingebrigtson, Lillian Krieger, Sara Maglio, Mandy Mayrand, Lillian
Nogalski, Julie Palivoda, Annamaria Robel, Christine Rozewicz,
James Seehausen, Rebekah Shallow, Daniel Stadler, Natalie
Stubalski, Mckenna Surma, Jennifer, Teske, Jeffrey Zarka;
Grant Mobile Home License Pending Inspections to Franklin Mobile,
LLC, Manager David Steinberger 6361 S 27 St; and
Grant Class A Beer & Liquor Change of Agent Pending Inspections
to Sam;s East LLC, Agent Tiffany Jones, 6705 S 27% St.

Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending
date of June 2, 2022 in the amount of $1,800,528.91; payroll dated
May 20, 2022 in the amount of $419,577.13 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $432,997.23, plus City
matching payments and payroll dated June 3, 2022 in the amount of
$416,308.90 and payments of the various payroll deductions in the
amount of $219,445.88, plus City matching payments and estimated
payroll dated June 17, 2022 in the amount of $417,000 and payments
of the various payroll deductions in the amount of $442,000, plus City
matching payments and approval to release payment to Velo Village
Apartments LLC in the amount of $459,000 and approval to release
payment to First American Title Insurance Co in the amount of
$750,000 and approval to release 2022 Franklin Civic Celebration
deposits and prepayments as needed, not to exceed $94,700.
Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On roll call, all voted Aye.
Motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to enter closed session at 9:42 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), for competitive and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to a Tax Incremental
District No. 8 Potential Development Agreement Between the City of
Franklin and SFT Franklin Oakwood, LLC, Spec Industrial Buildings
Mixed Use Development (Public and Private Property
Improvements), and the investing of public funds and governmental
actions in relation thereto and to effect such development, including
the terms and provisions of the potential development agreement for
the development of property located at 3303 W. Oakwood Road,



Common Council Meeting
June 07, 2022
Page 11

ADJOURNMENT J.

consisting of approximately 17.445 acres, and to re-enter open session
at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as

it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

The Common Council re-entered open session at 10:06 p.m.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:06 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral Commission Appointment

MEETING
DATE

06-21-22

ITEM NUMBER

E.

Mayoral appointment: Joe Mercado, 10162 8. 34" St., Ald. Dist. 4 to the Finance Committee for a 1
year unexpired term expiring 04/30/23.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the Mayoral appointment: Joe Mercado, 10162 S. 34th St., Ald. Dist. 4 to the
Finance Committee for a 1 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/23.

CITY CLERK - slw



Shirley Roberts

Subject: FW· Volunteer Fact Sheet-Mercado

From: volunteerfactsheet@franklinwi.info <volunteerfactsheet@franklinwi.info>
Sent: Wednesday, April 6, 2022 8:26 PM
To: Lisa Huening <LHuening@franklinwi.gov>; Shirley Roberts <SRoberts@franklinwi.gov>; Sandi Wesolowski
<SWesolowski@franklinwi.gov>
Subject: Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:

PhoneNumber:

EmailAddress:

YearsasResident:

Alderman:

ArchitecturalBoard: no
CivicCelebrations: no
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: no
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: yes
EnvironmentalCommission: no
FinanceCommittee: yes
FairCommission: no
BoardofHealth: no
FirePoliceCommission: yes
ParksCommission: no
LibraryBoard: no
PlanCommission: no
PersonnelCommittee: no
BoardofReview: no
BoardofPublicWorks: no
QuarryMonitoringCommittee: no
TechnologyCommission: no
TourismCommission: no
BoardofZoning: no
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee: no

2

Joe Mercado

joemercado13@icloud.com

BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJobl:
CompanyAddressJobl:
TelephoneJob1:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJobl:

no
Novartis AG
1 Health Plaza East Hanover, NJ
4143333712
April 2009

1



CompanyNameJob2:

AddressJob2:

TelephoneJob2:

StartDateandPositionJobZ:

EndDateandPositionJob2:

CompanyNameJob3:

AddressJob3:

TelephoneJob3:

StartDateandPositionJob3:

EndDateandPositionJob3:

Signature:

Date:

Signature2:

Date2:

Address:

Prioritylisting:

Whyl nterested:

Descri ptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

Descri ptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:

See Current Results

Pfizer Inc
New York, NY

July 2001
April 2009

Joe Mercado
04-06-2022

Joe Mercado
April, 6, 2022
10162 S 34th Street
Economic Commission Finance Committee Police and Fire
Serving the community and help shaping the future of Franklin.
Business Analyst, Strategic Accounts, Corporate Training, Sales and Marketing,
Medicare
Similar as above

UW Madison - Bachelors, International Relations, Global Economics MATC -
Police Science

2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AResolution to Accept Donation of Outlot 3 (TKN 891-1087-000)
from Loomis & Ryan, Inc. In Ryan Meadows Subdivision

Along W. Chicory Street and Dedicate a
Pond #2 Access and Maintenance Agreement to

RyanMeadows Owners Association, Inc.
[n.b.: this matter was entitled with

"Dedication" instead of "Donation" for item G.17.
on the June 7, 2022 Common Council meeting agenda]

MTG.DATE
June 21, 2021

ITEM NO.

G.1.

BACKGROUND
On October 19, 2021, the Common Council accepted Outlot 3 in the Ryan Meadows subdivision
as a donation for a City parkland that would include a portion of the Ryan Meadows Trail.
However the pond on this outlot serves as a stormwater maintenance facility for the subdivision
and the necessary documents keeping the maintenance of the pond as the responsibility of the
homeowners association did not follow and on December 30, 2021, the City filed a Disclaimer of
Interest to essentially negate the dontation.

ANALYSIS
This land donation is needed for the completion of the trail project under design by GRAEF.

OPTIONS
Approve or Deny

FISCAL NOTE
There are minimal costs associated with the closing of the property. GRAEF has used
approximately $8,600 of the $50,000 trail project (46-0551-5219.5141) design budget.

RECOMMENDATION
Resolution 2021-aresolution to accept donation of Outlot 3 (TKN 891-1087-000) in
Ryan Meadows subdivision from Loomis & Ryan, Inc. along W. Chicory Street and dedicate a
Pond #2 Access and Maintenance Agreement to Ryan Meadows Owners Association, Inc.



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022----

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT DONATION OF OUTLOT 3 (TKN 891-1087-000) FROM
LOOMIS & RYAN, INC. IN RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION

ALONG W. CHICORY STREET AND DEDICATE A
POND #2 ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT
TO RYAN MEADOWS OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

WHEREAS, Loomis & Ryan, Inc. has agreed to donate Outlot 3 in the Ryan Meadows
Subdivision to the City of Franklin; and

Whereas, the City of Franklin Common Council agreed to accept the donation of Outlot 3
on October 19, 2021 by adopting Resolution 2021-7789; and

WHEREAS, there are stormwater facilities located on Outlot 3 that will remain the
responsibility and upkeep of the homeowner's association per the stormwater facilities
maintenance agreement for Ryan Meadows; and

WHEREAS, the necessary easement documentation was not prepared nor accepted by the
City of Franklin and the City disclaimed the donation ofproperty on December 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, an easement document has been prepared that gives the Ryan Meadows
Owners Association, Inc. the rights and responsibilities to maintain the stormwater facilities in
accordance with their stormwater maintenance agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept donation of such easement on
Lot 84 and land parcel Outlot 3 of the Ryan Meadows subdivision. And therefore, the Mayor and
City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the property transfer and the easement
with the stormwater agreement, accepting both on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to record said easement
with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:



Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Document Number

CORRECTION INSTRUMENT-
DISCLAIMER OF INTEREST

Wis Stat. $ 706 085(1)(d)

Document Name

Undersigned hereby states that a certain document ("conveyance")
titled as Quit Claim Deed (type of document), and executed between
Loomis and Ryan, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, Grantor, and City of
Franklin, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, Grantee, was recorded in
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on October 18, 2021, as document
number 11176218, and contained the following error:

Grantor intended to donate the Property therein described to the
Grantee, however, Grantee did not agree to accept said donation.

Undersigned makes this Correction Instrument for the purpose of
correcting the conveyance as follows:

Recordmg Data
Grantee hereby disclaims its interest in the property subject to the
above-described Quit Claim Deed pursuant to Wis. Stat. S
706.085(1)(d) and title shall remain with the Grantor.

The basis for Undersigned's personal knowledge is (check one):

[] Undersigned is the Grantor/Grantee ofthe property described in the
conveyance.

Nameand Rctum Address
City Clerk
City ofFranklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI. 53132
Parcel Identification Number

891-1087-000

[] Undersigned is the drafter ofthe conveyance that is the subject ofthe Correction Instrument

[] Undersigned is the settlement agent in the transaction that is the subject ofthis Correction Instrument

[X] Other (Explain) Undersigned is the Mayor of the Grantee City of Franklin with authority pursuant to Common
Council direction with respect to the donation intended by Grantor.

A copy of the conveyance (in part or whole) [X] is [ ] 1s not attached to this Correction Instrument (1f a copy of the
conveyance is not attached, attach the legal description).

Undersigned has sent notice ofthe execution and recording of this Correction Instrument by 1st class mail to all parties to
the transaction that was the subject ofthe conveyance at their last known addresses.

(SIGNATUREPAGES FOLLOWI



Dated this 30th day ofDecember, 2021.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)

MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

Personally, came before me this 30th day of December, 2021, the above-named, Stephen R. Olson, to me
known to be the Mayor of the City of Franklin and also as the person(s) who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged the same.a«a»a. /.oloutiKayPlic, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission expires 5/23/2025.

DRAFTED BY:
Brian C. Sajdak, Assistant City Attorney



THIS DEED, made between Loomis and Ryan, Inc., a Wiscon sin corporation

Document Number

StateBar ofWisconsin Fonn 3-2003
QUIT CLAIM DEED

DocumentName

DOC# 11176218
RECORDED

10/18/2021 01:43 PM
ISRAEL RAMON

REGISTER OF DEEDS
Milwaukee county, WI

AMOUNT: 30.00
TRANSFER FEE:

FEE EXEMPT#: 77.25 (2G)
•••This document has been

electronically recorded and
returned to the submitter•••

("Grantor," whether one or more), and CityotFrankd,a Wisconsin munlalpal
corporation

("Grantee," whether one or more).
Grantor quit claims to Grantee the following described real esta te. together with the
rents, profits, fixtures and other appurtenan t interests, inMwuksn_8
County, State of Wisconsin (•Property") (ifmore spuce is needed, please attach acldencl11m): N1111111 anclRclum Addn:ss

Outlot 3, Ryan Meadows. acconlng to the recorded plat thaniot. reconlad on Bear RealEatate Group
March 20, 2020 as DocumentNo. 10982414 In Iha Office ofthe Register ofDeem 4011 80thStraet
tor Mtnaotee, county. wneon.- swe@ on4enus cny or mania. coon,,""=
of Milwaukee, State ofWisco nsin.

891-1087-000
Pan:cl Identification Nwnber (PIN)

This Is not homestead property.
(Is) (is not)

Loomis and Ryan, Inc.
Dated 10J15J2021

___________(SBAL) ~

• Stephen R.MUia. Aulho rlz.ed Member
(SEAL)

to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing
the same.

AUTHENTICATION

TITLE: MEMBER STATE BAR OP WISCONSIN
(lfnot, _
authonzed byWis. Slat. § 706.06 )

•

authenticated on--------------

Signature(s) ---------------

__________________(SBAL) ----------------~,,..,;.;.,,ij!t\¼1Nm,,,,,,
• • ,ROM,----------------,.~~~.,.l(:'o~r ·········•··~~ 'l,;,

ACKNOWLEDGMENT s$Se°' "·%2
STATEOF weconstn ,s i OTA, ;: z

i to ;: 
)@? Pueuc 5 £

Kenosha COUNTY ) -+ :=-= %7• .a?s
' 'l ~ 0 0 ❖"

Personally came before me on o/IS2l ,ws,as
the above-named Stephen R. MIiis ''J/1 1111111111''

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFrHD BY: •
»wren.».oow v,a.z.,""la
John E. Hofvedt, Vice Praitdent • Ganeral Counsel M - . ,. , , • 8 / "'· ftl)l,... )y comm4sson <s permanent, (cpres'_z,,sf,e_(Slpaluresm-, b8 aulheallcatcdoraclraowledpd. Botll ■nnot ...-sy.)

NOTE: THIS IS /I. ST/1.NDARDFORM. ANYMODlftCATION TOTHIS FORM SHOULD BECLEARLY IDENTIFIED.
QUITCLAIM DEED €2009 STATEBAR 01.i' WISCONSIN FORM NO. 3-2003
Type name below signatures. INFO-PRO"toga! Forms. (800)6811-2021 • lnfopn>fonna.com

DoYr 2021 Doc# 11176218 Page# 1 of 1



JO3I6ua-apuuId'MMM



WO:) 1Bua-apeuu1d·MMM

IL _

M.Zltt..QOH
h l, ,. c,ou,....,,
i:i;.'V'C1'i.Y-.;o.r

a;,
3¥•..
l

________ _J

4$a921..gut
.1HIN a.lUC:.D

J1hl lflt"IC ,n .,.r.,- t11rannws
.9Y.l:99 3-'i(Ut.OOS



PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND BICYCLE PATH EASEMENT

YAN MEADOWSLOOMIS BUSINESS PARK

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF FRANKL IN, a municipal
corporation of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "City," and Loomis & Ryan,
Inc., as Grantor (including successors and assign's of the City as may become applicable and
including the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of above Grantor as may be
or may become applicable)

Wl1NESSBTH

WHEREAS, Grantor ts the owner and holder of record Title to certain real property
particularly described on Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto and 1corporated herein (the
Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a perpetual easement with the right of entry in
and across a portion of the property as the same is more particularly herein described only for the
following use: A recreational path (sometimes herein referred to as the "Facilities") for the
benefit of the public for walking, jogging, bicycling, and other non-motorized outdoor activities
which do not unreasonably disturb the Grantor; and the City shall have the right to build and
construct and operate, maintain, repair, reconstruct and inspect (but not to enlarge or relocate)
said path. The dimensions of the path describe the dimensions of the easement, which are more
particularly set forth as Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS , the construction and installation of the Facilities shall be made by City at
City's expense and the Facilities shall be the property of the City (recognizing that the property
interest of the City is only that as arises under this easement), subject to the terms and conditions
set forth below:

NOW, THEREFORE, iu consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described,
and the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration to the Grantor, the
receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and person interested in
the land hereinafter described, does hereby grant unto the City a perpetual easement on that part
of the of Section_), Township Five (5) North, Rang e Twenty-one(2 l) East, in the
City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit B
attached hereto (the "EasementArea").

1. That said recreational path shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by
the City at the sole cost and expense of the City. In the event the Grantor believes that
the path is not kept in suitable repair, it shall by written informal petition advise the City
Council of same and request a reply or remediation within 60 days. In the event the Caty
does not respond or the parties do not reach agreement on the necessity for repair, the
Grantor may apply to the circuit court for relief, without the necessity of a Notice of
Claim or Notice of Iyury; provided, however, that either the City or the Grantor may,
with respect to any disagreement, require thatbothparties submit to binding arbitration.

2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction or repair work is or becomes
necessary in constructing or maintaining of sad Facilities, so much of the surface or
subsurface of the easement area or the Grantor's property adjacent to the easement area
as may be disturbed will, at the expense of the City, be replaced in substantially the same
condition as it was prior to such disturbance. The City shall indemni fy and defend the
Grantor and its officers, agents, employees and members from all liability, suits, actions,
claims, costs, damages and expenses of every kmnd and description, including court costs
and legal fees , for claims of any character arising out of construction, maintenance or use
of the recreational path, including liability and expenses in connec tion with the loss of
life, personal injury, or damage to property, or any of them, brought because of any
inju1cs or damages received or sustained by any person, persons or property on account
of or arising out of the use of the easementproperty; excepting where proximately caused
by the mtentional, wanton or willful act or omission of Grantor, its officers, agents,
employees and/or members.

3. That no structure may be placed withiu the hmits of the easement area by the City or the
Grantor, except for the Facilities.

4 That no charges will be made against the property for the cost of maintenance or
operation of said Facilities iu the property.



5 Tho Facilities shall be accessibleo for maintenance by the City at all times. The Grantor
shall submit plans for approval to the Caty for any underground installation within the
casement area, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld, conditioned or
delayed. The Orantor makes no representation or warranty with respect to any other
easements winch may exist at the time of the granting of this easement which may
encroach upon ormterfere with the use contemplated in this easement. In the event there
1s a confuct, ths casoment shall be subordinate to previously granted easements and the
City shall hold the Grantor harmloss from any conflict.

6 That the Grantor shall not alter the surface elevatlon within the limits of said Easement
Area.

7. The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their
employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the BasementArea
in a reasonable manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a
manner that would unreasonably interfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto
or its employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

8. Eitherparty hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail
in such litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable
attorneys' fees .

9. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and
delivered by the City and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns .

10. No waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or
condition hereof shall be constru ed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or
consent to any other, further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term,
covenant, or condition.

11. I any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable
under applicable law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not
be affected thereby, and each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and
enforceable to the full est extentpermitted by applicable law.

12. This casement shall be construed and enforced m accordance with the internal laws of the
State of Wisconsin.

13. I the event that the recreational path (the 'Facilities') is discontinued or abandoned by
the City, the the City shall, at its expense, remove all asphalt, concrete or other structural
improvement related to the path and restore the property in conformity with adjacent
landscaping.

Easement\Pedestrian Walkovay Easement

2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this

oNmDATBOPe~3, Zoz. I
~Y!c=-AN~,=m~c--------

By·S~ K. f1illr
By: :Res~cl(.,,,A..

CITY OFFRANKLIN

By:_~~~~-~------
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

.V..an.er.....su
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATEOF l,.)~S,th1S\'-

couNTY or{nos.h
S8

l ?-f-!; .1.1.Before me personally appeared on the___...__) day oflcoe , A.D. 20ZJ..

±£zits
Secretary or Name printed

to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing EASEMENT and acknowledged
the same aseriontgry act and deed of said corporation.s" HAa",

" ":3%f'!r'-···· ··-.. ~
?? 4oTAa z
f i ·» ; =
zt PuLI ;>=-. ·'s2,2-.....$e

srreoip#if
ss

COUNTYOFMILWAUKEE)

On this day of AD. 201 before me
personally appeared Stephen R. Olson and Sandra L. Wesolowski who being by me duly sworn,
d1d say that they are respectively the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Franklin , and that the
seal affixed to said instrument is the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and
acknowledged that they executed the foregoing assignment as such officers as the deed of said
municipal corporation by its authonty, and pursuant to resolution file No.
_________ adopted by its Common Council on ___, 201_.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

My commission expires _

Tius instrument was drafted by the City ofFranklin

Approved as to contents
Date.

Approved as to fonn only
Date:

3

City Engineer

City Attorney



Exhibit A

(Description of the Property)

Being all of Lot 84 of Ryan Meadows, located in the Southwest¼ and Northwestof the
Northeast¼ AND the Northeast¼ of the Southwest¼ AND the Northeast¼ and the Southeast
¼ of the Northwest¼ all in Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.



EXHIBIT B
(DEPICTION OF THE EASEMENT)

/
/

I
L=155 97'
RADI US=530 00' /
,S52°28'24"E
CHORD=155.41'

'-<.. -.....j

z
(Y),.
3
0
0
0z

IO

98

/
S29°05'46"W 125 00'

I -

1..0.I I \
40 !9.I A /

41 ,, '\ '
- /S67°07'13"£¥ 77 51' _

\ r -
S18°27'37"E 64.03'ctr-

43 _J
h.:'f I I--- - ~ L
LOT \ i;
45 - 8 \
1..0.r \ \ 1 -
46 <\
---\o -----

1.0.I 2\
I 47 T

--\ \ _..
I .- S19°21'49"E 98.76'

' ass A {I RYANMEADOWS e II \
I ier ) ----
I \ 50,
I \ / LOT 7 \
I '<... -51 I 1.0.r \ \7 52 \ )-

: '-L._. --~ ---r
I1 NORTH ,-

1 U I
I
I '-
I GRAPHICAL f-,
I SCALE (FEET) I ',
I I I I 'I I \
I o 1" = 200 I .: r/
I I,L J _

z
- loo0-
·00 ....

Oo
C\1..-
0z

N89°25'17"E
116.04'

LOT84
BYANNEKows

NORTH CORNER/
OUTLOT 3 RYAN MEADOWS

POB

.i. EXHIBIT
.. rm PINNACLE ENGINEERINGGROUP

20725 WATERTOWN ROAD I SUITE 100 I BROOKFIELD,WI 53186 WWW PINNACLE-ENGR.COM

04/13/2022
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

f7EG JOB#809 90



LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Being a part of Outlot 3 of Ryan Meadows in the Southwest 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the
Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City
of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Beginning at the north corner of said Outlot 3, thence the following courses along said Outlot 3:

South 44°02°33" East, 149.17 feet to a point of curvature; Southeasterly 155.97 feet
along the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius is 530.00 feet and whose chord bears
South 52°28'24" East, 155.41 feet; South 29°05'46" West, 125.00 feet; South 65°54'08"
East, 114.14 feet; South 67°07'13" East, 77.51 feet; South 18°27'37" East, 64.03 feet,
South 07°32'43"' West, 96.52 feet; South 02°13'13" West, 98.76 feet; South 03°10'33"
East, 98.76 feet; South 08°34'18" East, 98.76 feet; South 13°58'04" East, 98.76 feet;
South 19°21'49" East, 98.76 feet;

Thence North 71 ·11'33' West, 561.89 feet to the west line of said Outlot 3; thence the following
courses along said west line:

North 01°10'06" West, 200.00 feet; North 89°25'17" East, 116.04 feet; North 00°34'43"
West, 365.13 feet; North 44°24'1 O" West, 200.97 feet to the south right of way line of
Chicory Street;

Thence North 45°57'27" East along said south right of way line, 197.43 feet to the Point of
Beg innmg .

.ad. EXHIBIT
PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP
20725WATERTOWN ROAD [ SUITE IOO [ BROOKFIELD,WI 53186 WWPINNACLE-ENGR COM

04/13/2022
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG JOl3#809.90



Exhibit C

(Description of Easement Area)

Being a part ofLot 84 in Ryan Meadows, a subdivision recorded in the Register of
Deeds office for Milwaukee County as DocumentNo. 10962414, located in the
Southwest 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 ofthe Northeast 1/4 in Section 30, Township 5
North, Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Wisconsin, described
as follows:

Beginning at the northeasterly comer ofsaid Lot 84; thence South 4424'10" East
along an easterly line ofsaid Lot 84,200.97 feet; thence South 00°34'43" East
along said easterly line, 273.27 feet; thence North 15°44'30" West, 2.43 feet to a
point of curvature; thence northwesterly 128.98 feet along the arc ofsaid curve to
the right, whose radius is 510.00 feet and whose chord bears North 0829'48"
West, 128.63 feet; thence North 01°15'06" West, 99.84 feet to a point ofcurvature;
thence northwesterly 67.78 feet along the arc ofsaid curve to the left whose radius
is 90.00 feet and whose chord bears North 22°49'38" West, 66.19 feet; thence
North 44°24'1011 West, 157.54 feet to the south right ofway line ofChicory Street;
thence North 45957'27" East along said south right ofway line, 20.00 feet to the
Point ofBeginning.



Document Number Document Title
# 2

POND,ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AGREEMENT

ON OUTLOT 3 IN RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVI ION

SEE ATTACHED After recording return to:

Bear Real Estate Group
4011 80Street
Kenosha, WI 53142

See Exhibit A
Parcel Ident1fication Number

8911087 000



POND ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS POND ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT AGREEMENT
(this "Agreement") made this __day of April, 2022, from City of Franklin ("City"),
its successors and assigns to the Ryan Meadows Owners Association, Inc.
("Association").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, City is the Owner of the real property legally described on the
attached Exhibit A (the "City Property");

WHEREAS, the Association is charged with the obligation to preserve and
maintain a retention pond located on the City Property pursuant to the terms of a Storm
Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement dated April 23"8, 2021 and recorded in the
Office of the Milwaukee Countv R%gjr of Deeds on May 5, 2021 as Document

ST9RM HAPER FACILIT S ,Number 11 110566 (the auntenance greement '); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Maintenance Agreement, the City desires to
grant certain easements to the Association, in and to a portigngf the City Property legally
described and depicted on the attached Exhibit B (the "Pon"fl,_Jtasement Area").

WITNESSETH

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Grant of Easement: City does hereby grant, bargain, sell, convey, transfer and
deliver to the Association, nonexclusive maintenance and access easement in, to and over
the Pond Easement Area to maintain, use and repair certain Pond and Storm Water
Facilities as described in the Maintenance Agreement.

2. Use of Easement: City shall not construct, place, grant, allow, or maintain any
structures or impediments of any kind within the Easement Area including, but not limited
to, buildings, fences, gardens, and other landscaping that would inhibit access by the
Association and/or members of the public, such that Association shall have the full
enjoyment and use of the rights herein granted, including but not limited to, the rights to
remove and to clear all structures and obstructions which might interfere with the rights
herein contained and the free and full right of ingress and egress over and across the
Easement Area and other adjacent lands of the City to and from said Easement Area and the
use of said Easement Area and other adjacent lands of the City as necessary or convenient
for the full enjoyment and use of the rights herein granted. Trees, bushes, branches and roots
may be trimmed or removed so as not to interfere with Association's use of the Easement
Area. Subject to the above, City reserves the right to use the Easement Area for purposes
that will not interfere with the Association's full enjoyment of the Easement rights granted

2



in this Agreement. IfCity, upon reasonable notice to the Association, initiates improvements
on the Property which would interfere with the use of the Easement Area, the Association
agrees to pay for the relocation of the Easement Area to accommodate said improvements.

3. Restoration and Maintenance: Upon completion of any use of its rights under
this Agreement, the Association will promptly restore the City Property to its prior
condition.

4. Notice: The Association shall provide the City with not less than 14 days written
notice prior to accessing the City Property for any scheduled maintenance within the
Easement Area.

5. Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Association shall
indemnify and hold harmless City and its officers, directors, partners, and employees
from and against costs, losses, and damages caused solely by the negligent acts or
omissions of Association or Association's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents,
and consultants in the performance activities called for under the Restoration provision of
Paragraph 2 above. However, nothing contained within this Agreement is intended to be
a waiver or estoppel of the Association or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including but not limited to
those contained within Wis. Stat. $$ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the Association or its insurer shall not be
liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits of liability for
municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

6. Authority: The City, for itself and for its successors and assigns, does hereby
covenant with the Association, its successors and assigns forever, that City is lawfully
seized and possessed of the real estate above described, and that City has good and
lawful right to convey it or any part thereof.

7. Exercise of Rights: It is agreed that the complete exercise of the rights herein
conveyed may be gradual and not fully exercised until some time in the future and that none
of the rights herein granted shall be lost by non-use.

8. Waiver: No delay or omission by any party in exercising any right or power
arising out of any default under any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be
construed to be a waiver of the rght or power. A waiver by a party of any of the
obligations of the other party shall not be construed to be a waiver of any breach of any
other terms of conditions of this Agreement.

9. Enforcement: Enforcement of this Agreement may be proceedings at law or in
equity against any person or persons violating or attempting or threatening to violate any
term or condition in this Agreement, either to prevent a violation or to obtain any other
relief Should a party enforcing this Agreement by appropriate action prevail in litigation,
that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorney's fees.

3



10. Entire Agreement; Amendment: This Agreement contains the entire agreement
between the parties relating to the rights granted and obligations assumed. Any
modifications to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties.

11. Termination: This Agreement may be terminated only by a written agreement
signed by all owners of record and other successors to the respective interests of City and
Association. Association, its successors, and assigns may execute and record a release of
this Agreement at any time. This Agreement shall also terminate if the purposes of the
Agreement cease to exist, are abandoned by Association, or become impossible to
perform.

12. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance
with the internal law of the State of Wisconsin.

13. Covenants Run with Land: All of the terms and conditions in this Agreement,
including the benefits and burden, shall run with the land and shall be binding upon, inure
to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the City and the Association and their respective
successors and assigns. City shall cooperate with Association in recording any instrument
deemed necessary by Association to address the provisions of Wis. Stat.§ 893.33(6).

[signature pagefollows]

4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement to be effective
as ofthe day and year first above written.

City ofFranklin

By:
Stephen R.Olson, Mayor

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)

MILWAUK.EE COUNTY )

Attest:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Personally, came before me this_day of2022, the above-named
Stephen R. Olson and Sandra L. Wesolowski, Mayor and City Clerk ofthe City of
Franklin respectively, to me known to be such officers and acknowledge that they
executed the foregoing instrument in such capacity.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission (expires) (is)

[signatures continue onfollowingpage]

5



Ryan Meadows Owners Association, Inc.

By:
Stephen R. Mills, President

STATE OF WISCONSIN

COUNTY OF------

)
) ss.
)

Personally came before me this day of,2022, the
above-named Stephen R. Mills, the President of Ryan Meadows Owners Association,
Inc., who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same
for the purposes therein contained on behalf of Ryan Meadows Owners Association, Inc.

[seal]
Printed Name:
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My commission:

This instrument was drafted by:
John E. Hotvedt, Vice President - General Counsel
Bear Real Estate Group

6



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description of City Property

Outlot 3, Ryan Meadows, according to the recorded plat thereof, recorded on March 20,
2020 as Document No. 10962414 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee,
County, Wisconsin. Said land being in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State
of Wisconsin.

Parcel Identification Number:
891-1087-000

7



EXHIBITB
#. 2

Pona..Easement Area

J.,,,,,,.-

/
/

S6655408E
114-14'
S07"32'4S"W

96-52'

Th!is'ICO Marth 714133@st, 681.99fol tohwwt in ofski Oullt 3
1hel!Cfl lhe-folkW,lng courses along said-· llllll

Nll!lh 01•1N-WG~200.0D fqo\; HoAh 89"26"17' E.ral. t 1._04 fool;

LECALDESCRIPTION %
Being• p-,t ofOutlclt3 of «+» 'g - V'\
SOUDvntl114 and Noitiw~ 11,11 af lheNatlheeast 114 - / '---
ofSactloft 30, fcMn&lllp 5 Nollh, Aange 211:851, Olly \ / LOT T ~ \
ot Frankdin,MttwawkeCoury,sconsn, dscreed 51 / .b.O.! \
a1$(all,iw$: . . . .....,,.tt >-
BeQlnnlrQat thenollh comerorealcl oud01 i$; thenc&lhe rdlo'ollng "1- - = "'T
oaqs long Hid Oullot3: I

SDUlb44"1l2":s3° l:.aat. 149.17faelkl a pall1lofcurvab.lre;Soolheeale1I~ r-
155.97 l'eatalcnnlha ar,;ofsald CUMI llo lh• left,,YA101t1radlu&I& $30.00
folsrui whosechord betsS/// 6228'4Egg4, 156.41 tt, Sulh ]
29"(16"4i" West, 125 .00 feet; SOulh 85"54'1l8" Easl, 114.14 lee1; SOll&l ..J--... _
eror,3• l:.aat.17.S1 iee4; iion1111e-i!'r3rEaat, 64 l'X'I teat; l'ioUttl
97%3243 W4t, 94 620, Sau#h 224343 Wes4, 98.76est; Suh
03•11133• East. 98.18 reet; so,lh OIJ'34'18" Easl, e&.78 reat. Soulh
13"58'<14" ENI, 96.76 feel, SDulh 19"21 ;.ftr i:ast, iHI.76 rut:

l
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
II N orth 00'34' '1 3 " Want. 3 6 E5 13 f e e l ; Nth 44"2410 We st , 200 . 9 7 t ea l to
I 11ie aouth eighta ""ay Ina or ai1carv BlrNC

1 Th11rn;o t<orth-16'&7'21"ei.11~ lllllflgMill foOl.llh liit,tofwsylivs, 197 43 f60t ,
1111!1 Pallll OfBeglllrlni,.

rL--~------------------J

;t
oes
8
0z

N8925'47'E
116.04'

1"=200'0

GRAPHICAL
SCALE (FEET)

I I

-

111
, EXHIBIT 0411312022r l]

"" g PINNACLE ENGINEERINGGROUP PLAN IDESIGN I DELIVER
2012!1WATEITTOl'oN ROMIISUl1E IO0I BRO<lkl=IELD. ftl !Blllt> WWW.PIHNACLl!-1:NCR.mM fl'£G JOB#809 90

NORTH OOANEA / ' /·«aA?e a
/ _ _'if."~ RAOIUS=530.00'/

/
~'5 ~' ,S52"28'24"Eo wogsyy

./ / .._. 3011,4118 SQ. .....,
,,.- _ ; (7.000DACREll)-4, %>

sf/ .,,,,.,.✓ ii
C'>/

(

'' "" \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \ \ Preferred
\ ~ \ font 12

\ \ \
\ \
\ \
' \I I

I I
I I
I I
I I
/ I
/

/



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN 2025 COMPREHENSIVE

MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN 2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP

FOR PROPERTY BEARING TAX KEY
NUMBER 892-9999-002 FROM

RECREATIONAL USE AND AREAS OF
NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES TO

RESIDENTIAL USE
(BY STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF
BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT,
IGNASIAK INVESTMENT COMPANY, LLC,

PROPERTY OWNER)

MEETING DATE

June 21, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.2.

At the Common Council regular meeting of March 1, 2022, the Common Council elected to table the
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Ordinance (as a prerequisite to a Rezoning Ordinance, which was also
tabled, for the same property) to May 3, 2022 so that staff could provide further evaluation of options to approving
the change in the Plan, which would have been altered via approval of an Ordinance to amend the City ofFranklin
2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map for property bearing
Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from "Recreational" use and "Areas of Natural Resource Features" to
"Residential" use, in order to provide consistency with a Rezoning Application also recommended for approval by
the Plan Commission.
The change to the Comprehensive Master Plan would have triggered further changes to other adopted Plan policies
(including the Southwest Area Sewer Plan, the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, etc.) to match this action.
Common Council instructed staff to review potential alternatives as part of the motion to Table to the May 3, 2022
meeting. As a result of this action on the Plan Amendment Ordinance, the Rezoning Application was also tabled to
the May 3, 2022 meeting. On May 3, 2022, the Common Council tabled this item again to June 21, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to deny Ordinance 2022- , amending the Cty ofFranklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to
change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map for property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from
"Recreational" use and "Areas ofNatural Resource Features" to "Residential" use.
Department ofCity Development HE/RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 01-24-22]

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTY BEARING TAX KEY NUMBER 892-
9999-002, GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF SOUTH 112TH STREET,

EAST OF THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION AND WEST OF THE FRANKLIN
SAVANNA NATURAL AREA FROM RECREATIONAL USE AND AREAS OF

NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES USE TO RESIDENTIAL USE
(TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 35 ACRES)

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC
(IGNASIAK INVESTMENT CO., LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.100 I ( 4), the City of
Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in
Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001 ( 1 )(a) and 66. l 00 l (2); and

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC has applied for
an amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future
Land Use Map designation for the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002,
generally located on the east side of South 112th Street, east of the Ryan Meadows
subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural Area, from Recreational Use and
Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin by a majority vote of the
entire Commission on February 3, 2022, recorded in its official minutes, has adopted a
resolution recommending to the Common Council the adoption of the Ordinance to Amend
the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025
Future Land Use Map for three properties generally located on the east side of South I 12th
Street, east of the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural
Area, from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin held a public hearing upon this proposed Ordinance,
in compliance with the requirements of Wis. Stat. $ 66.1001(4d); the Common Council
having received input from the public at a duly noticed public hearing on March 1, 2022; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION l. The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan is hereby



ORDINANCE NO. 2022
Page 2

amended to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map
designation for the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002,
generally located on the east side of South 112th Street, east of the
Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural
Area, from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features
Use to Residential Use. Such property is more particularly described
within Resolution No. 2022 of even-date herewith.

SECTION 2.

SECTION 3.

SECTION 4.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invahd by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remam
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances mn contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of> 2022, by Alderman

Passed and adopted by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common Council
at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this day of

, 2022.---------

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

RESOLUTIONNO. 2022-002

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTIONRECOMMENDING THE ADOPTION OF AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTYBEARING TAX KEYNUMBER 892
9999-002, GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF SOUTH 112TH STREET,
EAST OF THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISIONAND WEST OF THE FRANKLIN

SAVANNANATURALAREAFROMRECREATIONAL USE AND AREAS OF
NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES USE TO RESIDENTIAL USE,

PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT.§ 66.1001(4)(b)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of
Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in
Wis. Stat. §§ 66.lOOl(l)(a) and 66.1001(2); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(b), the Plan Commission may
recommend the amendment of the Comprehensive Master Plan to the Common Council by
adopting a resolution by a majority vote of the entire Commission, which vote shall be
recorded in the official minutes ofthe Plan Commission; and

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC has applied for
an amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City ofFranklin 2025 Future
Land Use Map designation for the property generally located on the east side of South 112th
Street, east of the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural
Area, from Recreational Use and Areas ofNatural Resource Features Use to Residential Use,
such property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002, more particularly described as
follows:

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8293. Being the South 1/2 ofthe Southwest
1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29 and the South 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4
of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Town 5 North, Range 21 East in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (total acreage approximately 35
acres); and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having determined that the proposed amendment,
in form and content as presented to the Commission on February 3, 2022, is consistent with
the Comprehensive Master Plan's goals, objectives and policies and in proper form and
content for adoption by the Common Council as an amendment to the 2025 Comprehensive
Master Plan, subject to such modifications the Common Council may consider reasonable
and necessary, following public hearing, in order to protect and promote the health, safety



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -002
Page2

and welfare of the City ofFranklin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the application for and the proposed ordinance to amend the City of
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land
Use Map designation for property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002, generally located
on the east side of South 112th Street, east ofthe Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the
Franklin Savanna Natural Area, from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource
Features Use to Residential Use, be and the same is hereby recommended for adoption and
incorporation into the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan by the Common Council.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
3rd day of February, 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin this 3rd day of February, 2022.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

a.»E2anewa
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 4 NOES 2 ABSENT 0



APPLICATION DATE:
Planning Department pg#anl u!i9229 West Loomis Road L;ii,' -±, E.@!

Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 Franklingeneral12lanning@franklinwi.gov
(414) 425-4024 d

franklinwi.gov w I s C 0 N s I N

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]
NAME: S.R. Mills NAME: Daniel Szczap

COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Daniel Szczap) COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Daniel Szczap)

MAILING ADDRESS: 4011 80th Street MAILING ADDRESS: 4011 80th Street

CITY/STATE: Kenosha, WI ZIP: 53142 CITY/STATE: Kenosha, WI ZIP: 53142

PHONE: (262) 949-3788 PHONE: (262) 949-3788

EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopment.com EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopmenl.com

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS: Vacant 112th Street TAX KEY NUMBER: g 92.-9999-002

PROPERTY OWNER: Pleas_e see attached PHONE:

MAILING ADDRESS: EMAIL ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE: ZIP: DATE OF COMPLETION: i h,+, l,

APPLICATION TYPE
Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review Ill Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment D Planned Development District D Rezoning
D Special Use/ Special Use Amendment D Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval.
Applicant Is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 12 coples pending stair request and comments.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other Information submitted as part or this application are true and correct to the best
or applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all Information In this application; and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them In this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently Issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach or such representation(s) or any conditlon(s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City or Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application Is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even If the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis. St~t. §943.13.
{The applicant's signaturemust befroma Managing Member if the business Is an LLC, orfrom the President or Vice President If the business Is a corporation. A signed
opplicant's authorlzatlon letter maybeprovided In 1/eu of theapplicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter maybeprovided in 1/eu
ofthe propertyowner's slgnature[s] below. Ifmore than one, all of the owners of the propertymust sign this Appl/cation).

D I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: APPLICANT~RE-:-7

-- --:...------ J (~ ,..-, ----NAME &TITLE: DATE: '---. H-NAMETITLE: S.R. MIiis, President DATE:
12/27/2021

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: APPLL;C;LA if REPRESENT,¼TI:E SIGNATURE:
1l 1o./. .,,.,,,, 7

NAME &TITLE: DATE: wwsnee !_ sk, Are
aniel :czap, Project Manager 12/27/2021



August l8, 2021

Ignasiak Investment Compa;o.y, LLC
Attn: Mike Ignasiak, Sr.

~ I - •

3132 Ravhie:Way ,.
GisiBij.st.



BER
DEVELOPMENT

4011 80" street, Kenosha, WI 53142
Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

December 27, 2021

Mr. Regula Martinez Montilva
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Franklin Expansion Lands- Comprehensive Plan Amendment

Dear Mr. Martinez-Monti Iva:

Please accept this letter and the enclosed submittal materials as formal application for an amendment
to the City of Franklin Comprehensive Plan. Bear Development LLC is contract purchaser of the subject
property, acting on behalf, and with authorization, of the owner of record, Ignasiak Investment
Company, LLC.

Project Summary
Bear Development, LLC is the contract purchaser of approximately 34.59 acres of land in the City of
Franklin. The land is located on the east side of 112"" Street and lies south of Ryan Road. The property is
directly east of the Ryan Meadows Subdivision.

On August 17, 2021, Bear Development presented a Concept Plan for the subject property before the
Common Council. The Concept Plan received generally positive comments as to the proposed use as a
single-family neighborhood. As such, the applicant is seeking an amendment to the City Comprehensive
Plan to achieve consistency.

Current Plan Designation- Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
The subject property (approximately 34.54 acres) is located on the east side of 112th Street adjacent to
Milwaukee County Park land known as the Franklin Savanna. The City Comprehensive Plan designates
this property as Recreational.

Proposed Comprehensive -Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
Bear Development and Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC respectfully request a Comprehensive Plan
Amendment for the subject property to be changed from the designation "Recreation" to the
"Residential" designation. While it is designated as Recreational, we understand there are no plans for
either Milwaukee County or the City of Franklin to purchase the property and develop it as a public park.
The property has been offered for sale for the past two (2) years.



A legal description and graphic exhibit are enclosed for your reference and review.

We feel the Conceptual Plan presented to the Common Council on August 17, 2021 offers a realistic
future land use pattern when considering the current development/growth trends in the area and the
public utilities that have been extended nearby. We submit that holding the subject property in a
designation of Recreation precludes future development opportunities that can increase tax base on
properties that are viable for development on public sewer and water.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Respectfully,

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC



; i
a a =±]/l\;/}]]

.ii.iii? >
~ ~ ! t ~ ~ ~ 3 3 ~ •II".~ ,Upg
f

~ UI ~

§ ._1 p ..~~
Cll-1'1
II-••

~
£

~ ~ <El mil <Ill filR ~ ()
0.

II



a CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Item 0.1.

Meeting of February 3, 2022

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends denial of the Comprehensive
Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications submitted by Bear Development, LLC.

Project Name:

Applicant:

Agent:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Proposed amendment:

Action Requested:

Staff:

112th Street properties residential subdivision

Bear Development, LLC.

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC.

892-9999-002

Ignasiak Investment Co LLC

A-2 Prime Agricultural District & C-1 Conservancy District

R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District

Recreational and areas of natural resource features

Residential

Recommendation for approval of rezoning and
Comprehensive Master Plan amendment

Heath Eddy, AICP, Planning Manager

Introduction

The applicant submitted Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications to
allow for a future single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots on a 35-acre site.

Prior Actions
The Common Council heard a Concept Review for this development proposal on August 17, 2021.
A public hearing was held before the Plan Commission on October 7, 2021, and continued to the
next meeting on October 2 l, 202 l, which reviewed a larger residential development project of I I 5
single family lots on 92 acres, fol lo-wed by a reduced version of that application which would have
been 48 lots on a 35-acre site. The Plan Commission recommendation deadlocked 3-3 for approval.
Due to the nature of State Statutes, the Common Council was unable to take a vote following the
public hearing for the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, and therefore was also unable to
vote on the Rezoning application. The applicant withdrew those applications just prior to the
Common Council meeting of November 4, 2021, although the public hearing on the
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment did take place. The applicant refiled these applications
in mid-November with the reduced request of 48 lots on 35 acres, which were brought to the Plan
Commission on December 9, 2021, for the Rezoning Application public hearing and the



recommendation on the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment. The Plan Commission voted 2
2 on a recommendation ofapproval for the Plan Amendment, thus killing the applications a second
time. The applicant refiled both applications on December 27, 2021, this time requesting approval
for a concept that is now increased to 63 lots on 35 acres. This is the third time the Plan
Commission will hold a public hearing on a Rezoning Application, with a recommendation on the
Plan Amendment, for the subject property.

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment

The current application site consists of I property (TKN 892-9999-002) which is designated as
Recreational with inclusions along stream channels for Areas ofNatural Resource Features. Given
the proposed residential subdivision is not consistent with theRecreational designation ofthe City
ofFranklin 2025 ComprehensiveMaster Plan, the applicant is proposing to change the future land
use designation from Recreational and Areas ofNatural Resource Features to Residential. It is
noted that other adopted planning policies, such as the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
2025 (CORP) and thePost-Sanitary Sewer Scenario Map for the southwest portion ofthe city, also
identify this area as recreational, specifically as a "Planned Regional Park".

Rezoning

The subject property is zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District with two stream corridors zoned C
1 Conservancy District, which is an obsolete zoning district because the current Unified
Development Ordinance require protection of natural resources through conservation easements.
The applicant is proposing to rezone the entire site to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residential

Project Description/Analysis

The applicant is seeking the rezoning and Comprehensive Master Plan amendment to allow for a
35-acre single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots designed to the development standards
of the R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District, specifically a gross density of 1 83
dwellmg units per acre. It should be noted that the revised Development Concept (attached) does
not appear to reflect consideration ofexisting natural resource constraints on the subject property.
This appears to be a "maximum bualdconcept. The applicant's previous submission mn December
accounted substantially fornatural resource protections on the subject property. It should be further
noted that the applicant's revised concept is also mn line with the maximum yeld in the R-5 District.

According to the project narrative submitted for the Concept Review, the estimated site
improvement cost is 10 million dollars with a total project value of $51.75 million dollars or
$562,500 per acre. The overall project cost will be reduced with the smaller project but the average
value should be consistent.

2



Current zoning

Approximately 94% (32 acres) of the site is currently zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District.
According to the Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0315, the district's intent is to
"prevent the premature conversation of agricultural land to scattered Urban and Suburban uses
such as residential, commercial and industrial uses". It is noted that the A-2 district is limited to
"prime agricultural lands", therefore, this development proposal is contrary to the intent of this
zoning district.

Consistency with adopted planning policies

As part of the Concept Review last August, City Development staff informed the applicant that
residential development at this location is not "consistent with" any of the adopted city plans,
specifically the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, the Post Sanitary Sewer
Scenario for the Southwest and the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 as noted below:

a. Not consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan. The same area that it is currently zoned
A-2 as noted above, it is designated as Recreational in the future land use map of the City of
Frankl in 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan. Therefore, this proposal is not consistent with the
comprehensive plan. A city zoning ordinance is required to be consistent with the local
comprehensive plan per Wisconsin Statutes §66.100 I (3), "consistent with" means "furthers
or does not contradict the objectives, goals, and policies contained in the comprehensive
plan".

Resldenlial

-
Future Land Use

Areas of N.tural Resou-ce features

Transporlallon

Water

CJ Future Roads (SW Plan)

« Exlstiny Trail

,-- • • • Proposed Trail

[]waokee county Parka

ught Manufacturing
Med Use

/ moo.
/ ll sere«vow

/ 
[={F=4!y E] Rescent«at- Mow- F am»w

City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map

b. Not consistent with the southwest subarea plan. According to the Post-Sanitary Sewer
Scenario Map for the southwest portion of the city, the area that is designated as Recreational
in the Comprehensive Master Plan is identified as "Proposed Franklin Park Expansion" This

3



designation as park expansion area is related to the fact that this site is immediately adjacent
to the Franklin Savanna Natural Area owned by Milwaukee County and labeled as "Franklin
Park/Conservancy".

-·· Proposed Land Use I Zoning
I Institutional
- Business Park
- Commercial
- Light Manufacturing
ER Lana

Countryside Residential Mo. 87,120a t

Estate Residential Min. 40,000 sq. ft.

E]Suburban Residential wo. 2s.0co•
8/9 Proposed Franklin Park Expansion

Post-Sanitary Sewer Scenario Map (2009)

c. Not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 (CORP).
Following the comprehensive plan and the southwest subarea plan, the "Existing and Planned
Public Outdoor Recreation Sites" map of the CORP identifies this area as "Planned Regional
Park" PRI. According to the CORP (Chapter 7, page 27), the recommended useable area for
the "Southwest Park" should be at least 40 acres. The concept plan does not include any park
dedication area, therefore, it is not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation
Plan 2025.

Even though the subdivision design is not being reviewed at this time, it is worth noting that
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-5 .0 I IO "Parks, playgrounds and other
recreational and municipal facilities" requires that designated park areas shall be made part
of the subdivision plat by either dedication of land, reservation or payment of development
fee.

4



Planned Special Park

Planned Regional Pork

Planned Neighborhood Park

■ Planned Mini Park

A•♦
PCI = Community Rec. Center Bldg. Pork
PMI - PM5 = Mini Parks
PN·l = Foresl Hills Neighobrhood Park

-. PN2 = Hillcrest Neighobrhood Park
PN3 = Woodview Neighobrhood Park
PR·I = Southwest Park
PS·J = Mahr Woods Special Park
PS2 = Metro Conservancy Park

ht\ rosesne ark snes~J! J . • Plonned Community Pork
1-,--- l f<I,E

Ill'kr ,

I

d

Jcf ,,
l l L.Jl
i-r , Iuo J "U, ., I I
_·._.:_· > f I

i
ad. > ' l' r, R

I j " ,._"'9'1ie--'~ J I, I II - I Q Service Area Radii of[ f ' ores Facilities

o,/ d, 4 ill/ill[4 =,, kh.»»la»»}2,/, ·Ty
l ·f. .

Existing and Planned Public Outdoor Recreation Sites map

Natural resources

As previously discussed in the Concept Review staff report, the proposed road layout would be
crossing two wetlands, separate Natural Resource Special Exceptions would be required to allow
for such wetland impacts in addition to state and federal wetland permits. It is worth noting that
one of these wetland crossings would also impact environmental linkages identified in the
Comprehensive Master Plan (Map 3.1 ). This linkage crossing is approximately located between
lots l l and l2. According to the Comprehensive Master Plan, wildlife crossings and culverts that
allow for the passage of wildlife is recommended for roads that divide linkage areas.

The subject property was created by Certified Survey Map (CSM) No. 8293 which states that "The
natural resource features identified on lot 2 are not based on field surveys in the event of further
land division or development of lot 2 with any such natural resource feature, a complete natural
resource protection plan with field survey is required" The natural resources identified in the CSM
include proposed wetland linkages per the Comprehensive Master Plan, woodlands per 2008 aerial
photography and probable greenway connection per SEWRPC mapping (Southeast Wisconsin
Regional Planning Commission).

5



•im~-.r'i:.:~~-:rr~l?-....;...;....'llr-"1'-'~~:-,-;.;..:•.;.'•:.:•:i;_ 1;1~~
t,a

' '

e t '
A, · r ~.

aisles[.'-"
i .l,

I v?k¥. r ' a$j.",{##his g tu,f /8 ,

! ·1· ~:~jii-,:t'•;~r _: ir~·,~,~:;,,ii:..\;'
st@ill if 'NA,,

A • ,: ,.

ye u •
+ Es.he A

: --,--.-•--. ··~.,: ,,_j~· .- ",j,·

!# "
t o+

~t # I ~--~ > ,
City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan, Map 3.1 Linkages

Additional information

Fiscal Impact. Staff noted previously that single-family subdivision developments do not create
tax revenues sufficient to cover the operational and maintenance costs associated with the public
infrastructure developed or provided for support. In short, this development will cost more to the
City over the long-term than it will generate in revenue.

Ryan Creek trail. [tis worth noting that the city is evaluating a trail connection to the S. 116th
Street trai I as part of the Ryan Creek trai I. The exact location has not been determined yet but th is
would be reviewed at the time of an eventual subdivision plat if the rezoning and comprehensive
plan amendment are approved.

Milwaukee County Parks easement request. Bear Development applied for a "Milwaukee
County Parks' Land Utilization" to request consideration of a new sanitary sewer easement on
County parkland known as the Franklin Savanna. Per input received from Milwaukee County
Parks, 'The proposal from Bear Development did not advance after being reviewed through the
Land Utilization process. This decision was largely based on the high potential for environmental
and hydrologic impacts caused from construction, as well as the need for routine maintenance
access within a County natural area. Additionally, there appear to be several alternative routes
within close proximity to the future development", e-mail attached to the meeting packet.

City Departments comments

Comprehensive Master Plan amendment
• Inspection Services Department. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal

at this time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

6



Rezoning
• Fire Department. No comments at this time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

StaffRecommendation:

City Development staff recommends denial of the proposed Comprehensive Master Plan
Amendment and Rezoning Application requests by Bear Development, LLC. The development as
proposed appears to require significant additional follow-up applications just to make any
development feasible on the subject property, and the applicant's concept design has been revised
to maximize the R-5 density (117 times more dense than the existing permitted density), which
makes an approval justification contradictory to the overall tenor of the City of Franklin 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan and the intent and purpose of the Unified Development Ordinance. In
short, the development project is too dense for the subject property, given the natural resource
constraints on-site.

However, should the Plan Commission wish to recommend approval, a draft Resolution
recommending approval of the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, an Ordinance amending
the Comprehensive Master Plan, and an Ordinance amending the Zoning Map are attached for
review/revision and adoption.

Exhibits:
1 Ordinance 2022 - Bear Development LLC Subdivision Zoning Map Amendment, draft dated

January 24, 2022.
2. Ordinance 2022 -- Bear Development LLC Subdivision Comprehensive Master Plan

Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
3. Resolution 2022Bear Development LLC Subdivision Plan Commission recommendation to

Common Council on Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
4 Planning Maps ( pages) showing subject property and surrounding area.
5. Revised Development Concept Design, submitted December 27, 2021.
6. Prior Development Concept Design, submitted November 12, 2021.
7. Signed Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application, dated December 27, 2021.
8. Request Letter for Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, dated December 27, 2021.
9. Signed Rezoning Application, dated December 27, 202I.
I O. Owners Consent Authorization, dated August 18, 2021.
11. Request Letter for Rezoning, dated December 27, 2021.
12. Legal Description of subject property.
13. Page 1 of CSM #8293, recorded October 11, 2010.
14. Conservation Easement for CSM #8293, as approved for recording September 2010.

7



0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

500 1,000 2,000 Feel A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may no/ be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

7

J:l
Nf----......------1....,.
-----------i

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 500 t,000 2,000 Feet A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map s providedfor informational purposes only
and may 1101 be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, e11gi11eeri11g,
or surveying purposes.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (ZONING
MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN PARCEL
OF LAND BEARING TAXKEYNUMBER

892-9999-002 FROM A-2 PRIME
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND C-1
CONSERVANCYDISTRICT TO R-5

SUBURBAN SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE
DISTRICT

(BY STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF
BEARDEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT,
IGNASIAK INVESTMENT COMPANY, LLC,

PROPERTYOWNER)

MEETING DATE

June 21, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.3.

At the Common Council regular meeting of March 1, 2022, the Common Council elected to table the Rezoning
Application (as a secondary motion to tabling the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application for the
same property) to May 3, 2022 so that staff could provide further evaluation of options to approving the change in
the Plan, and subsequently the Zoning Map to rezone the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from
A-2 Prime Agricultural District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District.
On May 3, 2022, the Common Council tabled this item again to June 21, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

A motion to deny Ordinance 2022- , amending the Unified Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to
rezone the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from A-2 Prime Agricultural District and C-1
Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District.
Department ofCity Development HE / RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2022

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draf 01-24-22]

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND

BEARING TAX KEY NUMBER 892-9999-002 FROM A-2 PRIME AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICT AND C-I CONSERVANCY DISTRICT TO R-5 SUBURBAN SINGLE

FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT (GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF
SOUTH 112TH STREET, EAST OF THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION AND

WEST OF THE FRANKLIN SAVANNA NATURAL AREA)
(APPROXIMATELY 35 ACRES)

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC having
petitioned for the rezoning of approximately 35 acres of land, from A-2 Prime Agricultural
District and C-I Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District,
such land generally located on the east side of South 112th Street, east of the Ryan Meadows
subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural Area; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the City of Franklin Plan Commission
on the 3rd day of February, 2022, upon the aforesaid petition and the Plan Commission
thereafter having determined that the proposed rezoning would promote the health, safety
and welfare of the City and having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council;
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission and having determined that the
proposed rezoning is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of
Fran.kl in, Wisconsin and would promote the health, safety and welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: $15-3.0102 (Zoning Map) of the Unified Development Ordinance of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to provide that the
zoning district designation for land generally located on the east side of
South I 12th Street, east of the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of
the Franklin Savanna Natural Area, described below, be changed from
A-2 Prime Agricultural District and C-I Conservancy District to R-5
Suburban Single-Family Residence District:



ORDINANCE NO. 2022
Page 2

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8293. Being the South 1/ of the
Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29 and the South 1/2 of
the Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Town 5 North,
Range 21 East in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.
Tax Key Number 892-9999-002.

SECTION 2.

SECTION 3.

SECTION 4:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remam
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances mn contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of, 2022, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this_ day of> 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BER
DEVELOPMENT
4011 80 Street, Kenosha, WI 53142

Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

December 27, 2021

Mr. Regulo Martinez Montilva
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Rezoning - Franklin Expansion lands

Dear Mr Martinez Montilva:

Bear Development is pleased to submit this letter and the enclosed submittal materials as formal
application for rezoning. Bear Development is acting with authorization of the owner of record, Ignasiak
Investment Company.

Project Summary
Bear Development, LLC is the contract purchaser of approximately 34.59 acres of land in the City of
Franklin. The land is located on the east side of 112" Street and south of Ryan Road. Bear Development
is respectfully requesting a zoning amendment for the entire property to facilitate a single-family
neighborhood. A Conceptual Plan was presented to the Franklin Common Council on August 17, 2021.
Common Council comments were perceived as positive with no major objections raised.

Current Use
The subject property (approximately 34.59 acres) is actively farmed for row crops. There are scattered
wetlands on the property and established tree lines which separate agricultural fields

Current Zoning- Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
The subject property is currently zoned A-2 Agriculture with two (2) small areas of Cl Conservancy
zoning which follow assumed waterways.

Adjacent Zoning
North: R-2 Residential
South: R-1 and R-2 Residential
East: Pl Parks (Franklin Savanna)
West: R-6, R-1 and R-2 Residential



Adjacent Land Use
North: Agriculture
South: Agriculture
East: Public Lands
West: Residential and Agriculture

Proposed Zoning
Bear Development, LLC is respectfully requesting zoning reclassification of the subject property to the R
S Suburban Single Family Residence District.

Proposed Land Use
Bear Development is proposing a single-family neighborhood for the subject property. The Conceptual
Plan was presented to the Common Council on August 17,2021. Generally, the feedback from Council was
positive and there were no major objections to the proposed plan.

Bear Development, LLC has retained the services of Pinnacle Engineering Group to develop the
Conceptual Site Plan, which is enclosed for your review and reference and is considered a working
document. Upon favorable hearing, we will advance the Concept Plan into full engineering design.

We feel the Site Plan offers a realistic land use pattern for this area of Franklin considering the recent
development trends and the extension of public sewer and water to this area. The Concept Plan and
subsequent land divisions will create a land use pattern that is consistent and compatible with the
properties in the general area.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC



M .:
5bl!:t;~ ..h:,.-1!....i. L-.:U..-..___ __..,: ::::1..:1..._~~;z_...Ld_::::..£ t:.::..!.._..;,;~~ :l......:-=-- lU....:::~ :....... ..........~::::=' ----:~:::-::,~., ...::c:._'"", ..""'.. 1...o=,~""'"-~~""·~·=t.-



APPLICATION DATE:
Planning Department 9%89229 West Loomis Road r· I i 1! .vul/-

Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 FranklingeneralE!lanning@franklinwl.gov
(414) 425-4024 .,
franklinigoy w I s C 0 N s I N

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES) APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON)
NAME: S.R. Mills NAME: Daniel Szczap

COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Daniel Szczap) COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Daniel Szczap)

MAIL! NG ADDRESS: 4011 80th Street MAILING ADDRESS 4011 80th Street

CITY/STATE: Kenosha, WI ZIP: 53142 CITY/STATE: Kenosha, WI ZIP: 53142

PHONE: (262) 949-3788 PHONE: (262) 949-3788

EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopment.com EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopment.com

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION

PROPERTY ADDRESS: Vacant 112th Street TAX KEY NUMBER: 892_9999-002

PROPERTY OWNER: Please see attached PHONE:

MAILING ADDRESS: EMAIL ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE: ZIP: DATE OF COMPLETION: If, , '- rd

·,
APPLICATION TYPE

Please check the application type that you are applying for

[Concept Review D Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment D Planned Development District I!!!! Rezoning
D Special Use/ Special Use Amendment D Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval.
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 12 copies pending staff request and comments.

''
SIGNATURES

..
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all Information in this application; and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently Issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice If there Is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even If the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. §943.13.
(The applicant's signaturemust befrom a Managing Member Ifthe business Is an LL, orfrom the Presidentor Vice President If the business Is a corporation. A signed
app//cant's authorTzatlon fetter maybeprovided In lieu of the app//cant's signature below, and a signed propertyowner's authorization letter maybe provided In lieu
of the property owner's slgnature[s/ below. Ifmore than one, a// of the owners of the propertymust sign thls Application).

D I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submlttals and understand that Incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: APPLICAJilruG.l!!/ITURE:

/17e -------NAME & TITLE: DATE: - NAME & TITLE: DATE:S.R. Mills, President 12/27/2021
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: APPJICA7z;>~··~ ~g

NAME TITLE: DATE: Arte. ' < ! 4, AreDanie Szczap, P eject Manager 12/27/2021



Gl
:xi
0
C
""CJ

August 18, 2021

Ignasiak Investment Company:, LLC
Attn: MikeIgnasiak, Sr.
3132Ravihe,Wi ·. . ·. '' •L ay
Green Bay, W1 54301

I, '

,JI.,
.s4



a CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

@ Item D.1.

Meeting of February 3, 2022

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends denial of the Comprehensive
Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications submitted by Bear Development, LLC.

Project Name:

Applicant:

Agent:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Proposed amendment:

Action Requested:

Staff:

112th Street properties residential subdivision

Bear Development, LLC.

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC.

892-9999-002

Ignasiak Investment Co LLC

A-2 Prime Agricultural District & C-I Conservancy District

R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District

Recreational and areas of natural resource features

Residential

Recommendation for approval of rezoning and
Comprehensive Master Plan amendment

Heath Eddy, AICP, Planning Manager

Introduction

The applicant submitted Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications to
allow for a future single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots on a 35-acre site.

Prior Actions
The Common Council heard a Concept Review for this development proposal on August 17, 2021
A public hearing was held before the Plan Commission on October 7, 2021, and continued to the
next meeting on October 21, 2021, which reviewed a larger residential development project of 115
single family lots on 92 acres, followed by a reduced version of that application which would have
been 48 lots on a35-acre site. The Plan Commission recommendation deadlocked 3-3 for approval.
Due to the nature of State Statutes, the Common Council was unable to take a vote following the
public hearing for the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, and therefore was also unable to
vote on the Rezoning application. The applicant withdrew those applications just prior to the
Common Council meeting of November 4, 2021, although the public hearing on the
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment did take place. The applicant refiled these applications
in mid-November with the reduced request of 48 lots on 35 acres, which were brought to the Plan
Commission on December 9, 2021, for the Rezoning Application public hearing and the



recommendation on the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment. The Plan Commission voted 2
2on a recommendation of approval for the Plan Amendment, thus killing the applications a second
time The applicant refiled both applications on December 27, 2021, this time requesting approval
for a concept that is now increased to 63 lots on 35 acres. This is the third time the Plan
Commission will hold a public hearing on a Rezoning Application, with a recommendation on the
Plan Amendment, for the subject property.

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment

The current application site consists of 1 property (TKN 892-9999-002) which is designated as
Recreational with inclusions along stream channels for Areas ofNatural Resource Features. Given
the proposed residential subdivision is not consistent with the Recreational designation of the City
of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, the applicant is proposing to change the future land
use designation from Recreational and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Residential. It is
noted that other adopted planning policies, such as the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreat10n Plan
2025 (CORP) and the Post-Sanitary Sewer Scenario Map for the southwest portion of the city, also
identify this area as recreational, specifically as a "Planned Regional Park".

Rezoning

The subject property is zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District with two stream corridors zoned C
l Conservancy District, which is an obsolete zoning district because the current Unified
Development Ordinance require protection of natural resources through conservation easements
The applicant is proposing to rezone the entire site to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residential.

Project Description/Analysis

The applicant is seeking the rezoning and Comprehensive Master Plan amendment to allow for a
35-acre single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots designed to the development standards
of the R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District, specifically a gross density of 1.83
dwelling units per acre. It should be noted that the revised Development Concept (attached) does
not appear to reflect consideration of existing natural resource constraints on the subject property.
This appears to be a "maximum buld" concept. The applicant's previous submission in Decembe1
accounted substantially for natural resource protections on the subject property. It should be further
noted that the applicant's revised concept is also in line with the maximum yield in the R-5 District.

According to the project narrative submitted for the Concept Review, the estimated site
Improvement cost is 10 million dollars with a total project value of $51.75 mull1on dollars or
$562,500 per acre. The overall project cost will be reduced with the smaller project but the average
value should be consistent.

2



Current zoning

Approximately 94% (32 acres) of the site is currently zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District.
According to the Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0315, the district's intent is to
"prevent the premature conversation of agricultural land to scattered Urban and Suburban uses
such as residential, commercial and industrial uses". It is noted that the A-2 district is limited to
"prime agricultural lands", therefore, this development proposal is contrary to the intent of this
zoning district.

Consistency with adopted planning policies

As part of the Concept Review last August, City Development staff informed the applicant that
residential development at this location is not "consistent with" any of the adopted city plans,
specifically the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, the Post Sanitary Sewer
Scenario for the Southwest and the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 as noted below:

a. Not consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan. The same area that it is currently zoned
A-2as noted above, it is designated as Recreational in the future land use map of the City of
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan. Therefore, this proposal is not consistent with the
comprehensive plan. A city zoning ordinance is required to be consistent with the local
comprehensive plan per Wisconsin Statutes §66.100 I (3), "consistent with" means "furthers
or does not contradict the objectives, goals, and policies contained in the comprehensive
plan".

City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map

-
Future Land Use

Areas of Natural Resou-ce Fealures]=H''=F-,]eusness Pak

- Commercial
l communeanon ad ««es
Cl lnduslrlal
l:iml lnslllullonal

"- KN0 una
Light Manufacturing

MedUse

Hl one
- Recreallonal

~ Resldenllal

1!1111 Residenllal • Mulli·Famlly

Transportatlon

Waler

c::J Fulure Roads (SW Plan)

Existing Trail

,-- • • • ProposedTrail

IZJ MIiwaukee County Parkway

b. Not consistent with the southwest subarea plan. According to the Post-Sanitary Sewer
Scenario Map for the southwest portion of the city, the area that is designated as Recreational
in the Comprehensive Master Plan is identified as "Proposed Franklin Park Expansion" This

3



designation as park expansion area is related to the fact that this site is immediately adjacent
to the Franklin Savanna Natural Area owned by Milwaukee County and labeled as "Franklin
Park/Conservancy".

roposed Land Use I Zoning
I Institutional
-Business Park
-Commercial
tut Manufacturing
Al] anan

Countryside Residential Mn. 87,120 sa. f
Estate Residential Min. 40,000 sq. tt.

Ee/] Suburban Residential wo. 2s.00.t

8/, Proposed Franklin Park Expansion

PRO
. PARK EXPANSION
u araararan.arr.a!aT-IDs.i

Post-Sanitary Sewer Scenario Map (2009)

c. Not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 (CORP).
Following the comprehensive plan and the southwest subarea plan, the "Existing and Planned
Public Outdoor Recreation Sites" map of the CORP identifies this area as "Planned Regional
Park" PRI. According to the CORP (Chapter 7, page 27), the recommended useable area for
the "Southwest Park" should be at least 40 acres. The concept plan does not include any park
dedication area, therefore, it is not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation
Plan 2025.

Even though the subdivision design is not being reviewed at this time, it is worth noting that
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-5.0110 "Parks, playgrounds and other
recreational and municipal facilities" requires that designated park areas shall be made part
of the subdivision plat by either dedication of land, reservation or payment of development
fee.

4



Planned Special Park

Planned Regional Pork

Planned Neighborhood Park

■ Planned Mini Park

A•♦

[pl] roesee orses
d I l_ • Planned Community Pork

1-7 f
I
!O1· /

: «
~llJlUi_ _ _;]
(;-· -.....l--1 I

., lr-"'l!!""__.,._.,.__,. PC1 = Community Rec. Center Bldg. Pork
o , PM-I - PMS= Mini Parks

I CJ PN·J = Fores! Hills Neighobrhood Park

I
___[_'t--.-°"-J,r\ -_ ,- I -~. l . [ --711 PN2 = Hillcrest Neighobrhood PorkL- - ' PN3 = Woodview Neighobrhood Park

l PR'l = Southwest Park

-
-~_,_---_-_-_-__ -1 • PS·J = Mohr Woods Special Parkd Ps2 = Metro Conservancy Pork

-} #! ' ]() gere Area Radii of
'I - -- - - I '° Planned Facilities

/ a+ rlf)it )..l-+-,'4 7 43·f7 i , • i
Existing and Planned Public Outdoor Recreation Sites map

Natural resources

As previously discussed in the Concept Review staff repott, the proposed road layout would be
crossing two wetlands, separate Natural Resource Special Exceptions would be required to allow
for such wetland impacts in addition to state and federal wetland permits. It is worth noting that
one of these wetland crossings would also impact environmental linkages identified in the
Comprehensive Master Plan (Map 3.1 ). This linkage crossing is approximately located between
lots 11 and 12. According to the Comprehensive Master Plan, wildlife crossings and culverts that
allow for the passage of wildlife is recommended for roads that divide linkage areas.

The subject property was created by Certified Survey Map (CSM) No. 8293 which states that "The
natural resource features identified on lot 2 are not based on field surveys in the event of futther
land division or development of lot 2 with any such natural resource feature, a complete natural
resource protection plan with field survey is required" The natural resources identified in the CSM
include proposed wetland linkages per the Comprehensive Master Plan, woodlands per 2008 aerial
photography and probable greenway connection per SEWRPC mapping (Southeast Wisconsin
Regional Planning Commission).

5



City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan, Map 3.1 Linkages

Additional information

Fiscal Impact. Staff noted previously that single-family subdivision developments do not create
tax revenues sufficient to cover the operational and maintenance costs associated with the public
infrastructure developed or provided for support. ln short, this development will cost more to the
City over the long-term than it will generate in revenue.

Ryan Creek trail. It is worth noting that the city is evaluating a trail connection to the S. 1 J 6th
Street trail as part of the Ryan Creek trail. The exact location has not been determined yet but this
would be reviewed at the time of an eventual subdivision plat if the rezoning and comprehensive
plan amendment are approved.

Milwaukee County Parks easement request. Bear Development applied for a "Milwaukee
County Parks' Land Utilization" to request consideration of a new sanitary sewer easement on
County parkland known as the Franklin Savanna. Per input received from Milwaukee County
Parks, "The proposal from Bear Development did not advance after being reviewed through the
Land Utilization process. This decision was largely based on the high potential for environmental
and hydro logic impacts caused from construction, as wel I as the need for routine maintenance
access within a County natural area. Additionally, there appear to be several alternative routes
within close proximity to the future development', e-mail attached to the meeting packet.

City Departments comments

Comprehensive Master Plan amendment
• Inspection Services Department. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal

at this time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

6



Rezoning
• Fire Department. No comments at this time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

StaffRecommendation:

City Development staff recommends denial of the proposed Comprehensive Master Plan
Amendment and Rezoning Application requests by Bear Development, LLC. The development as
proposed appears to require significant additional follow-up applications just to make any
development feasible on the subject property, and the applicant's concept design has been revised
to maximize the R-5 density (117 times more dense than the existing permitted density), which
makes an approval justification contradictory to the overall tenor of the City of Franklin 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan and the intent and purpose of the Unified Development Ordinance. In
short, the development project is too dense for the subject property, given the natural resource
constraints on-site.

However, should the Plan Commission wish to recommend approval, a draft Resolution
recommending approval of the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, an Ordinance amending
the Comprehensive Master Plan, and an Ordinance amending the Zoning Map are attached for
review/revision and adoption.

Exhibits:
1. Ordinance 2022- Bear Development LLC Subdivision Zoning Map Amendment, draft dated

January 24, 2022.
2 Ordinance 2022 - Bear Development LLC Subdivision Comprehensive Master Plan

Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
3 Resolution 2022- Bear Development LLC Subdivision Plan Commission recommendation to

Common Council on Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
4 Planning Maps (2 pages) showing subject property and surrounding area.
5. Revised Development Concept Design, submitted December 27, 2021.
6. Prior Development Concept Design, submitted November 12, 2021.
7 Signed Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application, dated December 27, 2021.
8. Request Letter for Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, dated December 27, 2021.
9 Signed Rezoning Application, dated December 27, 2021.
10. Owners Consent Authorization, dated August 18, 2021.
11. Request Letter for Rezoning, dated December 27,2021.
12. Legal Description of subject property.
13. Page 1 of CSM I8293, recorded October 11, 2010.
14. Conservation Easement for CSM #8293, as approved for recording September 2010.

7



0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 500 1.000 2,000 Feel A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, e11gi11eeri11g,
or surveying purposes.



b

0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

I I
11

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

500 1,000 2,000 Feel

I

I·

A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FORTHE APPROVAL
OF A SPECIAL USE FORACONDOMINIUM

COMPLEXDEVELOPMENT USE UPON
PROPERTY LOCATEDAT
12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD

(STEPHENR. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR
DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

APPLICANT, BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY
OWNER)

MEETING
DATE
06/21/22

ITEM NUMBER

G.4.

At the June 9, 2022, regular meeting, the Plan Commission carried a motion to
recommend approval of this Special Use resolution and to remove former condition of
approval #6 which stated as follows:

The applicant must submit a geotechnical report to attest that the soil bearing
pressure capacity ofthe engineeredfill soils and the underlying natural soils is
adequatefor theproposed development, prior to any land disturbance activity

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2022- , imposing conditions and restrictions for
the approval of a Special Use for a condominium complex development use upon
property located at 12000 West Loomis Road (Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, applicant, Boomtown, LLC, property owner).

Department ofCity Development RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 06-02-22]

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE
APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX

DEVELOPMENT USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT
12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC,
APPLICANT, BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC having
petitioned the City of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use in an R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District, to allow for the development of a condominium complex (Woodfield
Trail"), consisting of 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 side-by-side duplex structures,
property located at 12000 West Loomis Road (15.6 acres), bearing Tax Key No. 891-9011-
000 [a Special Use permit is required in the R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District for all
residential uses, either single-family, two-family or multi-family], more particularly
described as follows:

PARCEL 1: A part of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Township 5 North,
Range 21 East in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of
Wisconsin bounded and described as follows: Beginning at the 1/8 post of the
North line of said Northwest 1/4 which post is 1325.63 feet West of the
Northeast corner of said Northwest 1/4, thence West on and along said North
line of said Northwest 1/4, 223.1 feet to the point in the right of way of the
Milwaukee Electric Railway and Light Company, thence on and along the line
of said right of way, 260.01 feet to a point on the arc of the curve of said right
of way, said curve being to the convex Southeasterly center radius of 7877.6
feet and said point in said arc being on the long chord 260 feet and South
39°21' West from the intersection of said line of said right of way and the
North line of said Northwest 1/4, South 0°17' East 1094.52 feet to a point in
the centerline of the Loomis Road, thence Northeasterly on a 2° curve along
said centerline 463.83 feet to a point, said point being on the long chord of
463.52 feet and North 59%29' East from the first mentioned point on the
centerline of the Loomis Road; thence North 0°47' West, 1055.3 feet to the
place of beginning. The 24.75 feet along the North line of said Northwest 1/4
being excepted therefrom and the 45 feet perpendicular to the center line of the
Loomis Road being excepted therefrom further excepting therefrom that part
hereof described in Deed recorded as Document 7391120; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of § 15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page 2

Commission on the 9th day of June, 2022, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to § 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described
in the preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the
following conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Stephen
R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, as a
condominium complex development use, which shall be developed in substantial
compliance with, and operated and maintained by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, pursuant to those plans City file-stamped May 31, 2022 and
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, shall
pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and
review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of
Franklin, for the Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC
condominium complex development, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Stephen R. Mills, President of
Bear Development, LLC, and the condominium complex development use, for the
property located at 12000 West Loomis Road: (i) being in compliance with all
applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii)



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022---
Page 3

obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for
and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

4. The applicant must submit a conservation easement for City staff review, Common
Council approval, and recording with the Milwaukee County Register ofDeeds
Office, prior to the issuance of building permits.

5. The applicant must submit a landscape bufferyard easement for City staff review,
Common Council approval, and recording with the Milwaukee County Register of
Deeds Office, prior to the issuance of building permits.

6. The pedestrian path on the south side ofRyan Road, between the future Woodfield
Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in the
development agreement.

7. This Special Use is not accepting any dedication ofland for right-of-way purposes. A
separate instrument, such as Certified Survey Map, shall be required for dedication of
land for right-of-way purposes.

8. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-7.0601, a condominium
plat shall be required for the establishment of a condominium.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not
comply with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution,
following a ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the
Common Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted
under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page4

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Exhibit A

..;,. WWWpmnacle-engr comFOR REVIEW ONLY

\

,,,---- ~">l-.tl°~,,- ~._,">lo~ ._
/ 3 

/ \
I ,,,,,, \

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

111 r

I
111 l ~mu£

SITE PLAN OVERVIEW

I ~•~2
i

I I
vzz
)>
n~ r

i m
~ mz
C).z

Zrr
i:::U+z
O
to
~;;::;i
iiO ·"•c £h ,0

•m

' ' "l/l
¢ +g i'iit;# z
aw#i ~~Feei 'i' r<•\a



Franklin
w S C O S I N

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of June 9, 2022
SPECIAL USE & SITE PLAN

Item C.1.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends to table this Special Use and Site Plan
until the applicant submits a geotechnical report to attest that the soil bearing pressure capacity of the
engineered fill soils and the underlying natural soils is adequate for the proposed development.

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/Tax Key Number:

Aldermanic District:

Agent:

Zoning District:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Proposal:

Staff Planner:

Woodfield Trail condominium, Special Use & Site Plan

S.R. Mills. Boomtown, LLC

12000 W Loomis Rd.

District 6

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC

R-8 - Multiple-Family Residence District

North: Planned Development District No. 40 (Cape
Crossing), single-family residential.
South: Vacant properties zoned residential, R-2 and R-8.
East: Vacant and single-family residential zoned R-8
West: We-energies right-of-way and vacant land owned by
the State of Wisconsin.

Two-family residential condominium with 26 dwelling units
served by a cul-de-sac street.

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, Planning Manager

INTRODUCTION

The proposed Woodfield Trail condominium would have 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 duplex
structures, side-by-side. Major improvements include a new cul-de-sac street connecting to Ryan Road
with sidewalks on both sides, street trees, a landscaped berm along Loomis Road, 3 stormwater
management areas and public water and sewer service to all dwelling units.

This development was presented before the Common Council on April 5, 2021, as a Concept Review.
Then, this 15.6-acre site was created by Certified Survey Map No. 9338 recorded on August 6; and the
C-1 Conservancy District zoning was removed from such site by rezoning Ordinance No. 2021-2480
on September 21. This development received a variance by the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals
to allow for a reduced 20-foot front setback on January 19, 2022; and a Natural Resource Special
Exception (NRSE) was granted on February 1 to allow for after-the-fact impacts to wetland buffers.

It is worth noting that a Special Use permit is required in the R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District
for all residential uses, either single-family, two-family or multi-family.



PROJECT ANALYSIS:

There are a few existing constraints to the property that impact the design and development of this
project.

1. Wetland buffers and setbacks. Most of the proposed residential structures are located
between the future Woodfield Court and wetland areas. The UDO does not allow structures to
encroach into the 50-foot wetland setback and the 30-foot wetland buffer must remain
undisturbed. This property was a WISDOT fill site and areas of wetland buffers (0.58 acres)
have been previously impacted by grading activities, this wetland buffer impact is depicted in
the Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP). A Natural Resource Special Exception was
granted on February I, 2022, (appendix #I). It is worth noting that none of the proposed
residential structures will encroach into the 50-foot wetland setback

2. Soil borings and geotechnical report still recommended. The applicant submitted a report
titled "Construction Testing Services Summary Report No. I" dated March 11, 2019 (appendix
#2). As mentioned above, this property was a fill site for Wisconsin DOT project and this
report stated that "with the exception of the fill placed within the central portion of the site, that
the engineered fills tested by CGC were compacted satisfactorily and in general agreement with
the project requirements" (page 4). Per Figure 1- Proposed fill area, the referenced central area
requires additional drying and recompaction, the applicant has not provided documentation
confirming that this has been completed. Note that approximately 5 residential structures and a
segment of Woodfield Court is proposed in this area. Furthermore, this report states that "It
should be recognized, however, that this report and its findings/results, is not intended to be and
should not be used as a substitute for a subsurface exploration and foundation subgrade
evaluation which is required to determine the soil bearing pressure capacity of the engineered
fill soils and the underlying natural soils".

City Development staffrecommends that the applicant must submit a geotechnical report to
attest that the soil bearing pressure capacity of the engineered fill soils and the underlying
natural soils is adequate for the proposed development.

f-3
P--8

P
Proposed fill area, figure 1 in Construction Testing Services Summary Report No 1 prepared by CGC,
Inc Append1x #2

2



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS

Special Use and Site Plan Applications are subject to the following provisions ofthe UDO:
• §15-3.0701 General Standards for Special Uses
• § 15-7.0102 Principles and Standards ofReview, Site Plans

General standards for Special Uses ($15-3.0701)

Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard
]. Harmony with UDO The northern portion ofthus site is designated as residential-multifamt!y in

and Comprehensive the future land use map ofthe Cuy ofFranklzn 2025 Comprehenszve
Plan purposes and Master Plan The southern portion is designated as commercial but 1t is
intent. constrained by an access restriction to Loomis Road. The western port1on

1s designated as Areas ofNatural Resource Features, the wetland areas
located on this site would be protected by conservat10n easements as
indicated m the Natural Resource Protection Plan

It is worth notmg that per W1sconsm Statutes §66 1001(2m)(b) "A
condtonal use permt that may be ssued by apoltcal subdrvson does
not need to be consistent wth the poltcal subdrvson's comprehensve
plan"

2. No Undue Adverse City Development staff does not anticipate any "undue adverse impact" to
Impact. adjacent properties because conservation easements would be provided to

the west and east ofthe proposed development, as well as a landscape
bufferyard wIth a berm to the south along Loomis Road

3. No Interference with The proposed dwellmgs are designed to meet the maximum permitted
Surrounding height for single-family and two-family homes mn the R-8 zomng district
Development.

4. Adequate Public The proposed development will be served by public water supply and
Facilities. san1tary sewer service. It 1s noted that access to public water and sewer is a

reqmrement for residential development in the R-8 zomng district per
UDO Section 15-3 0209 A "District Intent"?

Per Fire Department comments "thus area is not well-served by ex1sting
fire stat1ons and staffing, and that effectrve response force (ERF) response
times may exceed industry and department benchmarks for both EMS and
fire calls The City is in plannmg to relocate Station #2 to the West, and
enhance staffing at that stat10n, which will serve to remedy this situation m
the future, but even as this continues to move forward, it 1s still years out"

5. No Traffic The proposed 26 dwelling umts would be served by a new cul-de-sac street
Congestion. connectmg to Ryan Road A Traffic Impact Analysis has not been prepared

for thus development proposal City staff dud not request a Traffic Impact
Analysis for thus development

6. No Destruction of Wetland buffer areas (0 58 acres) have been prev10usly impacted by mass
Significant Features. grading as a result of fill permits for a Wisconsmn DOT project

3



Grading within the wetland setback is also proposed, the UDO allows
gradmg in the wetland setback provided a permanent vegetative cover is
installed afterwards

These impacts to natural resources are subject to the conditions set forth mn
the Standards, Fmdings and Decision as part ofthe Natural Resource
Special Exception granted on February 1, 2022 (appendx #1)

7. Compliance with The proposed development complies with the requirements ofthe R-8
Standards. Multiple-Family Residence District for single-family and two-family

residential use, Including: building setbacks, buldmng he1ght, required
parkmg and landscaping.

The Board ofZoning and Building Appeals granted a variance on January
19, 2022, for a reduced front setback of20 feet mn thus development, while
the minimum front setback in the R-8 d1strct is 25 feet

All residential structures must comply with the 50-foot wetland setback

Principles and standards of review of Site Plans (15-7.0102)

Summary of Standard Staff's Finding

A. Conformity ofUse to Two-family res1dent1al use requires a Special Use permit in the R-8 zoning
Zoning District. district. All residential uses require a Spec1al Use permit in thus zoning district,

either smgle-family, two-family or multi-family

B. Dimensional The proposed development complies with the dimensional reqmrements for the
Requirements. R-8 zoning district set forth in UDO Table 15-3.0209A

• Net Density. Proposed 2 7 dwelling units/acre, Max1mum. 5 0 du/ac
The net buildable site area is 9 38 acres

• All residential structures must comply with the side, rear and wetland
setbacks.

• The front setback has been reduced to 20 feet per variance previously
granted

C. Site Intensity and Site Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations were reviewed as part of the Certified
Capacity Calculations Survey Map approved by Resolution 2021-7754 on July 20, 2021
to be Reviewed.

Per the Site Intensity and Capac1ty Calculations, the maximum density yield of
thus s1te 1s 46 dwelling units, while the applicant 1s proposing 26 unuts.

D. Use andDesign The proposed location for residential structures conforms to the development
Provisions. standards for the R-8 zoning district set forth m UDO Section 15-3 0209.

E. Relation to Existing This development would be connected to Ryan Road through the proposed
andProposedStreets Woodfield Court. The street design for Woodfield Court meets the mmmrnm
andHighways. width for a typical mmor street of 60 feet and the street length is 769 feet,

which s under the max1mum permitted length for cul-de-sac streets of 800
feet

4



However, a Site Plan does not allow for dedicat10n ofpubhc right-of-way to
the city, dedication will require a separate Certified Survey Map since a
condommmm plat cannot be used for dedicat10n ofpublic right-of-way.

Based on the Comprehensive Master Plan, Map 7.4 Bicycle and Pedestrian
Circulation Facilities City Development staffrecommends the installation of a
pedestnan path per City ofFranklin specificat10ns on the south side ofRyan
Road The applicant is working with Engmeering Department on the location
ofthis pedestrian facihty, location within the right-of-way is preferred, or
withm an easement on pnvate property as a second option This pedestrian
path should be mcluded in the developer's agreement (condition of approval
#7)

It is worth noting that direct access to Loomis Road is restncted as indicated in
the S1te Plan

F. Impacts on City Development staff does not anticipate mayor adverse impacts to
Surrounding Uses. surroundmg uses because the developer will be required to provide

conservation easements to the west and east, and a landscape bufferyard
easement to the south

G. Natural Resource This Site Plan would not approve any impacts to natural resource features as
Features Protection. defined mn the UDO, Including but not hmited to encroachments of residential

structures into the wetland buffers and wetland setbacks Recording ofthe
conservat10n easement document will be required prior to the issuance of
building perm1ts (condition of approval #4)

See separate Natural Resource Special Exception (appendix #1)

H. RequiredLandscaping This development mcludes a 30-foot landscape bufferyard easement along
andLandscape Loomis Road as reqmred by UDO Section 15-5 0102.
Bufferyards.

Recordmg ofthe landscape bufferyard easement document will be reqmred
pnor to the issuance ofbuilding permits (condition of approval #5)

I. Provision of See comment from the Fire Department 1n Special Use standard #4, page 3.
Emergency Vehicle
Accessibility.

.T. BuildingLocation. The locat10n ofresidential structures meets reqmred bmldmg setbacks and are
outs1de the ex1sting easements on ths property

K. Location andDesign of Not applicable as no on-srte waste disposal and loading faculties are proposed
On-Site Waste
Disposal andLoading
Facilities.

L. Consistency with The proposed resident1al development 1s consistent with the intent of the R-8
Intent ofUDO. zoning district (UDO Sect1on 15-3.0209), specifically

• It would be served by public sanitary sewer and water supply fac1litres
• It would serve as a trans1t1on between the M-I h1muted manufacturing

zomng to the southeast mn the Ryan Meadows subdrvis1on and smgle-
family residential zoning to the north

5



M. Consistency with The northern portion ofthus site is designated as residential-multifamly in the
Intent of future land use map ofthe City ofFrankhn 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan.
Comprehensive Plan. The southern portion is designated as commercial but it is constraint by an

access restnction to Loomis Road.

N. Determination of As noted previously in this staff report (page #2), City Development staff
"Suitability" ofSite. recommends that the applicant must submit a geotechmcal report to attest that

the soil bearing pressure capacity ofthe engineered fill soils and the underlymg
natural so1ls 1s adequate for the proposed development

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

City Development Staff recommends to table thus Spec1al Use and Site Plan untl the applicant submits a
geotechnical report to attest that the soil bearing pressure capacity ofthe engineered fill soils and the
underlying natural soils is adequate for the proposed development.

Alternatively, should the Plan Commission recommend approval ofthe Spec1al Use and approve the Site
Plan request, City Development staff recommends the submission ofthe referenced geotechnical report as
condition of approval #6

Appendices

1. Standards, Findings and Decision as part of Natural Resource Special Exception granted on
February 1, 2022, excluding exhibits.

2. Construction Testmg Services Summary Report No 1 dated March 11, 2019, and prepared by CGC,
Inc , excluding appendices B & C

6



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 2022

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 5-31-22]

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT OF A CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX WITH ASSOCIATED
CUL-DE-SAC STREET CONSTRUCTION, SIDEWALKS, LANDSCAPING,

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND PUBLIC WATER AND SEWER SERVICE
(12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD)

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT,
BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC having applied
for approval of a proposed site plan for the development of a condominium complex
("Woodfield Trail"), consisting of 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 side-by-side duplex
structures, which will include a new cul-de-sac street connecting to West Ryan Road, with
sidewalks on both sides, street trees, a landscaped berm along West Loomis Road, 3
stormwater management areas and public water and sewer service to all dwelling units,
property located at 12000 West Loomis Road (15.6 acres), zoned R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District, and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found
same to be in compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0421 of the
Unified Development Ordinance and in furtherance of those express standards and purposes
of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklm, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for the development of a condominium complex
("Woodfield Trail"), consisting of 26 dwelling units arranged mn 13 side-by-side duplex
structures, which will include a new cul-de-sac street connecting to West Ryan Road, with
sidewalks on both sides, street trees, a landscaped berm along West Loomis Road, 3
stormwater management areas and public water and sewer service to all dwelling units,
property located at 12000 West Loomis Road (15.6 acres), zoned R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District, as depicted upon the plans dated May 31, 2022, attached hereto and
incorporated herein, is hereby approved, subject to approval of the application for a Special
Use, and subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. The property subject to the Site Plan shall be developed in substantial compliance
with and operated and mamtained pursuant to the Site Plan for the Stephen R Mills,
President of Bear Development, LLC condominium complex development
("Woodfield Trail) dated May 31, 2022

2. Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, and



STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC- SITE PLAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-
Page 2

any developer of the Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC
condominium complex development ("Woodfield Trail") project, shall pay to the City
of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC condominium complex
development ("Woodfield Trail") project, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Stephen R. Mills, President of
Bear Development, LLC condominium complex development ("Woodfield Trail")
project (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules,
codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be
developed and as presented for this approval.

4 That the Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC condominium
complex development ("Woodfield Trail") shall be developed and constructed
pursuant to such Site Plan within one year from the date of adoption of this
Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be
null and void, without any further action by the City ofFranklin.

5 This Site Plan is subject to the conditions set forth in the Special Use resolution for
the Woodfield Trail condominiums.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin this day of>2022.

APPROVED·

ATTEST

Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk
AYES NOES ABSENT

Stephen R. Olson, Chairman



: s ]

Franklin
a

WISCONSIN

12000 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 891 901 000

,f

R-3,t
/ /

_.j' ~

ell: •yi

·
1 \

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 210 420 840 Feet A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relatve locaton ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared by a professwnal land surveyor
This map is provdedfor mformatwnalpurposes only
andmay not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



Document Number

STANDARDS, FINDINGS & DECISION
BEAR DEVELOPMENT

Appendix 1

1111111111111111111111111111111111
8 1 75 83 1 8

Tx:'l0865595
DOC# 11224509

F.'ECOPDED=
33/072022 01 +5& PT

I3PH4El PH#Gr
REGISTER F DEEDS
HILMA#EE CUNT«. I

Recording Area

Name and Return Address

Shirley J. Roberts, Deputy City
Clerk
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

891-9011-000 & 891-9012-
000

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

This information must be completed by submitter document title. name & return address. and PIN (1f required) Other information such as
the granting clause legal description. etc., may be placed on this first page of the document or may be placed on additional pages of the
document
WRDA Rev 12/22/2010



Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City ofFranklin Common Council upon the Application of Stephen R. Mills,

President ofBear Development, LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City ofFranklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant,
having filed an application dated September 3, 2021, for a Special Exception pursuant
to Section 15-9.0110 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance
pertaining to the granting of Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable
Water-related, Wetland, Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and
Improvements or Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said
application being annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated January 12, 2022 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated January 20, 2022 being annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is located at 12000 West Loomis Road, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District and C-1 Conservancy District, and such property is more
particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated September 3, 2021, by Stephen R.
Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of
Franklin Unified Development Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the

1



recitals and matters incorporated as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as
having the burden of proof to present evidence sufficient to support the following
findings and that such findings be made by not less than four members of the
Common Council in order to grant such Special Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather, the applicant notes that
the site is already impacted byfill. Wetland delineationsfrom 2014 show the existing
wetland complexes in the same general locations as 2021; the development cannot
proceed as designed without impacts to wetland setback and buffer.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: The applicant notes that the site is already impacted byfill.
The zoning classification (R-8 Multifamily) and allowable site intensity for the
property allowfor greater intensity ofuse, however the site access and
configuration, and required setbacks create constraints on the placement ofbuildings
and other infrastructure; or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: The applicant notes that the site
is already impacted byfill. The parcel is currently vacant; the proposed use has been
affirmed through a rezoning to R-8 Multifamily (ORD 2021-2480), and the applicant
has completed a Concept Review and Certified Survey Map approval in seeking this
development approval.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant ofa Special Exception as requested will be consistent
with the existing character ofthe neighborhood; and the applicant states that "The
proposed impact and resulting development will be consistent with the neighborhood
and consistent with the existing zoning and Comprehensive Plan." Surrounding
properties includefuture industrial and developing residential uses; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: The applicant states that "The situation and conditons
related to this project are unique as the affectedproperty was a properlypermitted to
impact the wetland buffer/setback. Applying the wetland setback/buffer at this point
serves no purpose and does not protect the actual wetland resources. Other
properties seeking the same reliefwould need to meet similar standards."

2



Placement offill on site was at the request ofBear Development to "raise the sites
and help withfuture developmentplans (Ruffing, A. 2018, January 14)."

According to the Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) submitted on January JO,
2022, fill was placed in the wetland setback and buffer under City ofFranklin Permit
120180438. Fill permits for Wisconsin DOT project were approved by the City of
Engineerng Department. City approvals for fill impacts to wetland setback and
buffer were not sought by the applicant at that time.

The limits ofimpacts proposedfor this Special Exception align with impacted areas
under thefill permit

The ste has since experienced significant degradation and impacts by invasive
species. Fill permits for Wisconsin DOT project were approved by the City of
EngineeringDepartment.

The Council finds that this NRSE does allow for a degree ofnoncompliance under
$UDO-15-10-10.0208B2.d.v. that will effectively undermine the ability ofthe City of
Franklin to apply or enforce the requirement wth respect to other properties (UDO
15-J0.0208B2.c.ii).

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: Applicant represents that the unique
circumstances involved with this request is what the NRSEprocess was intendedfor;
and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this findng only applying to an applicaton to improve or enhance a
natural resourcefeature): not applicable.

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: The applicant states that "The improvements will not negatively
affect surrounding properfles. " Proposed impacts will occur within the site and do
not extendpast the property lne.

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The applicant states that "The exceptional,
extraordinary or unusual circumstance is that the resource being impacted has

3



already been impacted and the property has been included in a TID Project Plan
whereby the resulting improvements are necessary to generate tax increment." Tax
IncrementDistricts must include a residential component.

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant: The proposed use has been affirmed through a rezoning to
R-8 Multifamily (ORD 2021-2480), and the applcant has completed a Concept
Review and Certified SurveyMap approval in seeking this development approval.

4. Aesthetics: The applicant states that "There will be no negative impact to
aesthetics. The resulting development will be a residential neighborhood with
required street trees and significant green space."

5. Degree ofnoncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:
The applicant states that "Considering the that the area of impact was previously
disturbed, the NRSE s not over-reaching."

Placement offill on site was at the request ofBear Development to "raise the sites
and help withfuture developmentplans (Ruffing, A. 2018, January 14)."

According to the NRPP submtted on January 10, 2022, fill was placed in the wetland
setback and buffer under Czty of Franklin Permit 120180438. Fill permits for
Wisconsin DOTproject were approved by the City ofEngineering Department. City
approvals for fill impacts to wetland setback and buffer were not sought by the
applicant at that time.

The limts ofimpacts proposedfor this NRSE align with impacted areas under thefll
permit.

The site has since experienced significant degradation and impacts by invasive
species.

The Council finds that thzs NRSE does allow for a degree ofnoncompliance under
$UDO-15-10-10 0208B2.d. v. that will effectively undermine the ability ofthe City of
Franklin to apply or enforce the requirement with respect to other properties (§UDO-
15-10.0208B2 c.ii).

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: Proposed impacts will occur
within the ste and do not extend past the property lne. The applicant notes that
"Applicant owns the adjacent properties to the east and south. W. Ryan Road
separates neighboring land to the north, a WE Energies ROW separates neighboring
land to the west and a remnant WDOTparcel is located to the west. "

4



7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Surrounding
zoning consists ofSingle and Multifamily Residential. There is an area ofM-I
Limited IndustrialDistrict to the southeast.

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjoining
property is perceived Proposed impacts will occur within the site and do not extend
past theproperty lne.

9. Natural features of the property: The applicant does not propose impacts to
natural resourcefeatures beyond those included in this request

10. Environmental impacts: The applicant states that "There are no other
environmental impacts associatedwith the NRSE."

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report ofJanuary 12, 2022 is incorporated herein.

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.0110C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commission recommendation and the Environmental
Commission recommendation address thesefactors and are incorporated herein

Decision

Upon the above findings and all ofthe files and proceedings heretofore had
upon the subject applicaton, the Common Councl hereby grants a Special Exception
for such relefas s described within Exhibt C, upon the conditions

1) that the natural resource features and mitigation areas upon the properties to
be developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be
approved by the Common Council prior to any development within the areas
for which the Special Exception is granted prior to the issuance of any
Occupancy Permits,

2) that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s) from all other
applicable governmental agencies prior to any development within the areas
for which the Special Exception is granted;

3) that all development wthin the areas for which the Special Exception is
granted shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural
Resource Protection Plan and all other applicable plansfor Stephen R. Mills,

5



President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, and all other applicable
provsions ofthe UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance.

4) that the applicant shallprovide plansfor management ofwetland setback that
conforms to the standards of $15-4.01021 for appropriate plantings. Turf
grasses are prohibited. Othergrasses or native plantings are acceptable. Non
vegetative cover is permitted in areas subject to erosion. Management and
implementation information shall be included on developmentplans including
landscape plans subject to the review ofthe Department ofCtyDevelopment.

5) that the applicant shall place boulders or other markers to demarcate the
wetland setback on the property.

6) that the applicant shall make required technical corrections (UDO §15-4.0102
and $15-7.0200) to Natural Resource Protection Plans ncluding information
about the limits offill and related gradingfromfillpermit 120201541, subject
to staffapproval, pror to the commencement ofany land disturbance.

7) that the applicant shall clarify the amount oftemporary grading impacts.
8) that the applicant incur only temporary impacts to wetland setback and buffer,

which shall be restored to the standards of UDO §15-4 01021 for wetland
setback and UDO $15-4 0103B5forwetland buffer.

9) That the applcant provde for repair ofthe pond drainage tile/pipe between
the pond edge and the outlet at Ryan Road, subject to a revised conservation
easement; andfor the removal ofbuckthorn with a minimum expendture of
$10,000.

The duration ofthis grant ofSpecial Exception spermanent

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 1st day of February, 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 1st day of February, 2022.

ATTEST:

4etahtoy
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES6 NOES0 ABSENT0

6



(CGC, Inc)
Construct1011 • Geotechmcal
Consultmg Engmeenng/Testmg

March 11, 2019
CM18048

Mr. Andy Ruffing
Musson Brothers, Inc.
4215 N. 124 Street
Brookfield, WI 53005

Appendix #2

Re: Construction Testmg Services Summary Report No. 1
Bear North Site
West Loomis Road
Franklin, WIsconsmn

Dear Mr. Ruffing

This report summanzes Construct10n • Geotechmcal Consultants, Inc (CGC) field observat10ns
and results of the mtenmttent compaction testmg program completed to-date w1thm the Bear
North site m Franklmn, W1sconsm The services were provided on an intermittent bass between
March 19 and September 27, 2018 Dunng this time penod a total of twenty-seven (27) separate
v1s1ts were made to complete the prescnbed testmg program More specific details regardmg
CGC's field observations and the results of the field-testmg program are presented m the
followmg paragraphs and attachments

1. General

The s1te 1s located on the north s1de of State Highway 36 (West Looms Road), between
US Highway 45 (North Cape Road) to the west and Ryan Road to the east, m Franklm,
Wisconsin We understand that no specfic development 1s planned for the s1te at thus time.
Filling of the site was performed to take advantage of the fill s01ls available from the nearby
Highway 100 roadway reconstruct1on project and was performed mn accordance wth the S1te Use
and Agreement document between Musson Brothers, Inc (Musson) and Mills Hotel
Wyommg, LLC dated March 16, 2018 Based on review of a gradmg plan, dated March 7, 2018,
provided by Musson Brothers, Inc. the site grades pnor to site preparaton (1 e , topso1l stripping)
ranged between about EL 801 to 804 ft and the planned (fill-to) grade 1s generally EL 805 ft,
although swales were proposed along the southern edge of the property for site dramage
purposes Therefore, after site stnppmg, about 2 to 5 ft of new fill was anticipated to raise the
site Specifically, our efforts for the services covered by this report were focused on the
followmg

• Subgrade Observations: Followmg stnppmg of surfic1al topso1l, confirm the su1tab1l1ty
of the exposed subgrade cond1t1ons pnor to engmeered fill placement w1thm those areas
of the site that reqmred fill to raise the areas to the planned site grades Subgrade

C \Users\cgc\Documents\Data\ProJects\2018\ 18048\rpt I wpd
336 S Curtis Road

West Allis, WI 53214

Telephone 414/443 2000

FAX 414/443-2099



(CGC, Inc)

Mr. Andy Ruffing
Musson Brothers, Inc.
March 11, 2019
Page 2

evaluat10n w1thm the fill areas were completed by proof-rolling with fully-loaded haul
and/or tr1ax1al dump trucks

• Field Density Testing: Performed field density tests on an mtemnttent basis, as
scheduled by representatives of Musson to check the adequacy of compact10n achieved
on fill matenals placed dunng mass gradmg activities.

• Laboratory Testing: Performed laboratory testmg (1 e., Proctors) on the smls utilized
dunng fill placement

• Reporting: Developed this summary report which details the results of the field and
laboratory testmg programs completed to-date; and

More specific details regardmg our field observations and results of the testmg program are
outlmed m the followmg paragraphs

2. Subgrade Observations Prior to Fill Placement

Subgrade proof-roll operations were observed on an ongomg basis as structural fill areas were
prepared on the dates of March 19, March 23, March 28, Apnl 11 and May 1, 2018 The results
of the proof-rolls overall md1cated the subgrades were generally suitable for fill placement and
compact10n, excludmg one approximate 50 ft by 50 ft area northeast of the southern entrance to
the srte which contamned saturated clayey so1ls that exhibited moderate rutting (6 to 8 mn.) and
mnstab1l1ty. To prepare this area for fill placement the saturated clays were undercut
approximately 121 to a suitable brown lean clay subgrade.

3. Fill Placement

The March 7, 2018 gradmg plan showmg the approximate extent of the fill areas for the project
1s Included as Figure 1 Proposed Fill Area enclosed m Append1x A Fill soils throughout the
planned future development area consisted of Imported lean clay, salty clay wath varable sand
and gravel content and clayey to silty sand with gravel sols from Musson's Highway 100 project
identified as Specimen Nos. 1 through 3. A summary of the specimen sml descnptlons,
maximum dry dens1ties and opt1mum moisture contents, and accompanymg Laboratory
Compact1on Tests completed m our laboratory per modified Proctor (ASTM Dl557) test
methods are attached wIth thus report mn Append1x B

C \Uscrs\cgc\Documents\Data\ProJccts\2018\18048\rpt I wpd



(CGC, Inc)

Mr. Andy Ruffing
Musson Brothers, Inc.
March 11, 2019
Page 3

Dunng this reportmg penod, a senes of one hundred thirty-five (135) field density tests were
performed on the fills placed w1thm the development areas of the site with a nuclear density
gauge to check the adequacy of compact10n. The fills were typically placed m 8- to 12- m. thick
loose lfts, spread with a dozer, then compacted with a sheepsfoot compactor. The modified
Proctor maximum dry density values ranged between 125.0 to 135 5 pcf for the imported s01ls.
A targeted mun1mum compact1on level of 95 percent of the max1mum dry dens1ty values was
established for thus project Due to wet, ramny weather conditions during the 1term1ttent filling
operations, difficulty with obtamnmng adequate compaction was routmely expenenced Where
in1t1al compaction levels fell below 95%, predommantly due to elevated mmsture contents, the
soils were aerated and recompacted until they met the mmimum reqmred compaction level
Followmg the performance of retests (where reqmred), the field density testmg program
performed generally resulted m a level of compact10n rangmg between 95% to 100%, generally
meetmg and/or exceedmg the targeted 95% mm1mum level of compact1on established for the
project

An exception was, however, encountered wthmn the central port1on of the site, the approximate
limits of which are mdcated on Figure I enclosed m Append1x A Within thus area, fill so1ls
were placed and adequately compacted to, on average, about EL 802 to 802 5 ft However,
subsequent lifts placed to about EL 803 ft were too wet to properly compact and perform
subsequent density tests It was our recommendat10n at the time, as commumcated to Musson
field personnel, and mn a subsequent meetmg with Musson and Bear Development, that the so1ls
m this area be aerated to promote drymg and recompacted until the targeted compact10n levels
are obtamned However, further s1te preparation wthmn the central port1on of the site has not been
performed to-date, due to proJect schedulmg and weather conditions

We understand that placement of a surficial topsml layer has been performed by Musson
throughout the maJonty of the southern and northern port10ns of the site, where passmg density
tests have generally been achieved, to the planned subgrade elevat10ns However, we understand
that 1t 1s currently proposed to document the lateral extent and the ex1stmng s1te grades wthmn the
central area of the site where adequate compaction has not been achieved to-date. Followmg
those documentation actrvrtres, we understand the current plan 1s to rause the central area of the
site with non-engmeered fill and surficral topso1l to promote surface runoff from this area
Undercuttmg and full removal of the non-engineered fill matenals placed above EL 803 ft and
further drymg and recompact10n of the underlymg smls (at about EL 803 ft) will then be
performed mn the future, possibly dependent on future development plans We recommend
documentat10n of the area be mcluded m site documents to illustrate the need to perform
add1tonal/remed1al s1te preparation actrvties wthin the central portion of the srte to prov1de
proper support for future structures and/or pavements

C \Users\cgc\Documents\Data\Projects\2018\18048\rtl wpd



(CGC, Inc)

Mr. Andy Ruffing
Musson Brothers, Inc
March 11, 2019
Page 4

Results of the field density testmg program performed to-date are presented m Field Density
Test Report No. 1 attached 1n Appendix C. The test locations (northing and eastmg) and test
elevations were provided to CGC by the on-site Musson personnel and are mcluded m the Field
Density Test Report No. 1. Laboratory compaction (Proctor) test reports are also attached 1n
Append1x B for your review

* * * * *
In summary, based on our mterm1ttent field observations and results of the field-testmg program
as outlmed above and mn the enclosed 1formation, 1t 1s our opmuon, wth the exception ofthe fill
placed wthn the central portzon of the ste, that the engmeered fills tested by CGC were
compacted satisfactonly and m general agreement with the project requrrements It should be
recogmzed, however, that this report and its findmgs/results, 1s not mtended to be and should not
be used as a substitute for a subsurface exploration and foundation subgrade evaluation which is
required to determme the so1l bearg pressure capacity of the engmeered fill so1ls and the
underlying natural souls The conditions contamned mn thus report and previously discussed with
the project team, represent our profess1onal op1m1on, based on our review of available
mnformat1on, descnbed above, part-tame mntermttent s1te observations and interpretations These
opm10ns were developed consistent with the level of care and skill ordmanly exercised by
members of the engmeenng profession currently practlcmg m the same locality under similar
cond1tons No other representation 1s expressed or 1mpled, and no warranty or guarantee is
mcluded, or mtended

It has been a pleasure to serve you durmg this phase of the project If you have any quest1ons or
need additional consultation or testmg services, please give us a call

Smcerely,

cG,I;%owe
Pat'f Gese, PE
Semor Consultmg Professional

Nathan I. Sprmgstead, PE
Semor Staff Engmeer

C \Users\cgc\Documents\Data\Projects\2018\1&8048\rptl wpd



(CGC, Inc)

Mr. Andy Ruffing
Musson Brothers, Inc.
March 11, 2019
Page 5

Encl: Appendrx A - Figure I- Proposed Fll Area
Appendix B- Summary of Laboratory Compact10n (Proctor) Test Results
Appendx C - Feld Dens1ty Test Report No 1

cc via email: Bear Development - Mr. Dan Szczap (dszczap@beardevelopment com)

C \Users\cgc\Documents\Data\ProJects\2018118048\rpt I wpd



APPENDIX A

FIGURE 1- PROPOSED FILL AREA



+
~1'1

I i•IO ~lH po ~l (-l !
V\ L JO" I"> '<JAP
FR/..1-,KI !t'



BER
DEVELOPMENT

May 31, 2022

Mr. Regulo Martinez-Montilva
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Woodfield Trail Site Plan

Dear Mr. Martinez-Montilva:

Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Bear Development is pleased to submit this letter and the enclosed re-submittal materials as formal
application for Site Plan Approval for Woodfield Trail Condominiums. Bear Development is acting on
behalf the record owner, Boomtown, LLC.

Project Summary
The property in question, consists of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map #9338. Certified Survey Map No. 9338
was recorded on August 6, 2021, as Document Number 11148158. The property is currently vacant and
includes public road frontage on W. Ryan Road and STH 36 (Looms Road). The property is located within
City of Franklin TIO #6.

Parcel 1
Tax Key Number:
Acreage:
Current Use:
Proposed Use:
Zoning:
Site Plan Request:

891-9011-000
15.61 Acres
Vacant
Ranch Condominiums
R-8 Multiple Family Residence District
Condominium neighborhood consisting of twenty-six (26) residential units
arranged in two-family structures.

Special Use Permit
• Under a separate application, Bear Development has also submitted a Special Use Application in

the R-8 Multiple Family Residence District to allow a condominium neighborhood consisting of
twenty-six (26) residential dwelling units on the referenced parcels. The units will be arranged in
2 family buildings

•
Previous Approvals

• Certified Survey Map, Land Division
• Variance to allow a front yard setback of 20 feet
• Natural Resources Special Exception to allow limited impacts to the Wetland Buffer and Setback

\,. Phone: 262 694 2327 beardevelopment com

A BER, co»uw
RAL «srr

Q 4011 80 street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Woodfield Trail Ranch Condominiums
Woodfield Trail is a planned condominium neighborhood consisting of twenty-six (26) homes arranged in
2-family, ranch style buildings. The neighborhood will be served with full public utilities and roadway. The
project has been designed in accordance with the City of Franklin Construction Specification and R-8
Multiple Family Zoning District Standards.

The project was specifically designed to minimize impact to the natural resource features as identified in
the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance. The building pads vary in size and exact home plans
will need to be designed and finalized for several building pads to eliminate any encroachment into the
Wetlands Setback

The neighborhood drainage is served by a series of engineered stormwater basins and is adequately
buffered from STH 36. Woodfield Trail includes public sidewalks and proposed connection to the future
City multi-use trail. The enclosed submittal includes Design Engineering Plans and Stormwater
Management Report.

The project plans are currently being reviewed by WE Energies for natural gas, electric and street lighting
design. The applicant is also in correspondence with the United States Postal Service to finalize mail
delivery plans.

Project Schedule
The project schedule is dependent on final municipal approvals/Entitlements. At this point, we anticipate
an August 2022 start for site development. Completion of all pubhc improvements should be complete in
early November.

Estimate of Site Improvement Costs:
Bear Development, LLC recently received Engineering review comments on May 27, 2022. Based on the
engineering comments, the construction plans will need to be revised and re-bid. However, based on
previous projects and the volatile construction material market, we estimate the following site
improvement costs:

Soft Costs:
Earthwork:
Utilities:
Paving & Concrete:
Street Trees/Landscaping:
Contingency:
Total:

& Phone 262 694 2327

$65,000.00
$330,700.00
$660,500.00
$210,500.00
$35,000.00
$229,711.00
$1,531,411.00

beardevelopment.com

A BER,3 co»we
a sat <

4011 80 street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC

\. Phone 262.694 2327 beardeveloprnent com

A BER,3 co»eAN
At sr<

9 4011 80th Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT
4011 80th Street, Kenosha, WI 53142

Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

May 31, 2022

Regulo Martinez Montilva
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Woodfield Trail- Revised Submittal

Regulo:

Bear Development, LLC is in receipt of the City Development Review Comments dates, May 3, 2022.
Please find our responses below in Red.

Staff comments are as follows for the above-referenced applications received on April 12,
2022:

City Development Department comments

l. Site Plan. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-7.0103
"Applications for Site Plan Review", please add or revise the following:

C. "Architect and/or Engineer's Name and Address. Architect and/or engineer's
name, address, and seal noted".
The revised Civil Engmneering Infrastructure Plans, dated 5/1 1/2022 have been
revised to mnclude the Civil Engineer's name , address and seal

G. "Soils Data. The characteristics and types of soils related to contemplated specific
uses. Soil borings may be required by the City Engineer, Zoning Administrator,
and/or Plan Commission". Since subject property was recently used as a WDOT
Fill site, City Development staff recommends soil borings and geotechnical report
as part of these Special Use and Site Plan applications.
Beau Development, I I previously submitted a Summary Report ot the WDO I
Select Till project mcludmng geotechncal testing. Pet out telephone
cpomerstaton, this report was sufficent to address this comment



I. "Type, Size, and Location of All Structures and Signs". It is not clear whether the
numbered rectangles are the home pads or the building footprints, please clarify.
The proposed building footprints are required to attest compliance with wetland
setbacks.
The revised Crvl Engineering Infrastructure Plans Include building envelopes
showing the maximum s1Lc building footprint for each building. The buildmng
envelopes are limited due to vanous setbacks We understand the rest11ct1011<;
plased on the p1oyect due lo wetland setbacks

CC. "Project summary". Please add building schedule and estimate of all site
improvement costs to the project summary.

Please see 1evised p10ject summary

2. Wetland setback. Per Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE); Standards, Findings
& Decisions (Doc. 11224509), decision #8 states that "the applicant incurs only
temporary impacts to wetland setback and buffer". In other words, the NRSE did not
approve any permanent impact or structures into the 50-foot wetland setback. Please
indicate the building footprint of all structures and dwellings to attest compliance with
the wetland setback.

The revised Civil Engineemng Infrastructure Plans depict the size, locdtIOn and
onentat1011 of proposed building footprints m relation to the wetlands. All bu1ldmng
footprints are mn compliance with the approved Natural Resouue Spec1al Except1on

3. Wetland setback markers. Per the above-referenced NRSE, decision #5 states that "the
applicant shall place boulders or other markers to demarcate the wetland setback on the
property". Please indicate the location of the wetland setback markers on the Site Plan
and add a detail of the typical marker.

The revised Cvil Engmneermng Infrastructure Plans dep1et Wetland Setback S1gn locations
on Sheets C-7 and C-8 Bear Development will finalize mmkmg method (signs or
boulders) as we approach site development and will submt a plan fot Staff
review/approval

4. Amount of temporary grading impacts. Per the NRSE, decision #7 states that "the
applicant shall clarify the amount of temporary grading impacts". Please provide the
amount of wetland setback area to be impacted by grading activities, measured in acres
and square feet.

The revsed Crvil Engmeeng Infrastructure Plans, Sheet C I0 mnclude the grading
tmpact area calculatton



5. Wetland setback impact. Please label the green crosshatched areas in the Natural
Resource Protection Plan. Per staffcomment #2, please confirm that this impact to the
wetland setback is for grading only, not for placing new structures.

A revised Natural Resource Protection Plan 1s mluded mn the re-submittal Beat
Development understands that permanent structures cannot be located m the Wetlands
Setback

6. New wetland buffer impact not approved. The NRSE did not approve any new impacts
to the wetland buffer. Please add a label to the NRPP and Landscape Plan stating that the
wetland buffer impact areas have already been disturbed. City Development has no
comments about the proposed ground cover, Agrecol Shortgrass Prairie.

Noted The revised NRPP and Landscape Plans Identify th City 1sturctuons to the
\Netland Buffer and Setback

7. Conservation easement. Recording of the conservation easement document will be
required prior to the issuance of building permits.

Noted



8. Landscape bufferyard easement. Pursuant to UDO $ 15-5.0102, a landscape bufferyard
easement with a minimum width of 30 feet is required along Loomis Rd (STH 36). The
easement line is indicated on the Landscape Plan but it is not labeled, please add label.
Recording of the landscape bufferyard easement document will be required prior to the
issuance of building permits.

Noted Please sec ICV1scd Landscape Plans

9. Cul-de-sac street. Please add length of the proposed cul-de-sac street, measured from the
Ryan Road centerline to the center of the island. This length cannot exceed 800 feet per
UDO Section 15-5.0103A. Please indicate the name for this street, "Court" is
recommended for cul-de-sac streets per the street naming system (UDO Figure 15
5.0101 ).

Figure 15-5.0101

STREETNAMING SYSTEM
Neth)

f''yd}st

Please see page C-1O of the Revised Civil Fngineerg Infrastuuetue Plans The cul-de
sac has a total length ot 769 1eet and bets been named Woodfield Cout

10. Pedestrian Facility along Ryan Road. Based on the Comprehensive Master Plan, Map
7.4 Bicycle and Pedestrian Circulation Facilities. City Development staff recommends
the installation of a pedestrian path per City of Franklin specifications on the south side
of Ryan Road, from the new sidewalk on the east side of the proposed cul-de-sac street to
the eastern boundary of the subject site.

Please see page C 16 of the Revised Crl Lngmneemmng Infrastructure Plans Bea
Development seeks dnetron om the Ct as to whether the future ta1l 1s to be show 1



the W Ryan Road Right of Way or shown as an easement on p11vate lands
I

·j
:
I
I
I
I•, .y
i
Lff-•

•• tI •. -·---

ggg. city otFakta

'as?

RASmhhNa.cion•I--..
mt imr

Bicycle and Pedestrian
Circulation Facilities

hesettRephgntraa fetan
,.GUrtUf
,-ar,-mnT

•
.... .P" F.Pllllll

11. Approval of a Condominium Plat by Common Council will be required, see submittal
requirements in application form available at:
https://www.franklinwi.gov/Files/Planning/PermitApplications/Land-D1v1sion-Rev1ew
Application-20211.pdf. Condominium Plat recording will be required prior to the
issuance of building permits.

Noted The Condommum Plat will be submitted once we receive and address CTty
r:ngineer111g comments

12. Any monument sign will be subject to a separate sign permit.

Noted

13. Per city's parking schedule (UDO Table 15-5.0203), a two-car attached garage per
dwelling unit is required. Please confirm that the proposed garages are able to
accommodate two cars.

All future dwelling units wll include a two-cm attached garage

Engineering Department comments

14. No comments on the Site Plan application Engineering aspects wllfollow once we
receive the Engineermg plansfor review and recommendatwns



Eire Department comments

I 5. Thefire code is pretty silent on l-2family residences, so our main concern in the water
infrastructure, which appears satisfactoryfor this development I will again mention that
this area is not well-served by existingfire stations and staffing, and that effective
responseforce (ERF) response times may exceed industry and department benchmarks
for both EMS andfire calls The City is in planning to relocate Station #2 to the West,
and enhance staffing at that station, which will serve to remedy this situation in the
future, but even as this continues to moveforward, it is stillyears out.

Inspection Services Department comments

I 6 Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time

Police Department comments

I 7 The PD has no comment regarding this request.



INDEX OF SHEETS
COVERSHEET

,... ,,,,.,. .......... _~ .. ,.,..,.,.,.,,, ..."""""'" .,.,a,,.o~"'"'__..,,..,.,_....,.,,.,., ,,,_.,_,._C<>ro.1£1
=.:=:...,=-. ...n.1Ull.~...:.r::=t"'"...=-• ....... . -......-

GENERAL NOTES

C-5 UTILITY PLAN OVERVIEW

C-6 C-8 ROADWAY & STORM SEWER P&P

C·!J WATERAND SANITARY Pl.ANANO PROFILE
C-10 C-12 GRADING PLAN
C-13 C•lS EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C-16 INTERSECTION DETAILS
C-1 7 CON STR UCTION DETAI LS

1 tr rt, tutto ur ttft.ft,ht 7#ttoput.iert,2. ..229avmo»·+v
11 ~,._,._~ 1£M-- u1.w.r.wa,..,,,..,,,,,_."'""-........_ .. o:v,,. •- ""•'""'""" "'"' .. ""'" "EloC\OO CCOT,.,..__ , _,,._,
g:>: TIYE~TIIIIO onJU llt>«ll _.., 'O<IOL , A utQ '

... - · " ' ' " ' ' ' " " ,,..__,.. ,_.__... ...., __,..,., ,..,.. ........~Tr,.,,.,,_.,,.,.,,,.,,.,_ee><o,,, .,_,..,un,,; o,- "'°"'"'r""--«'

~ - ...,_ • ..,...,,_y.......,. __,OII.WS...ffll!SO.V....,.,,1, ....,-,rnc.""""""',._......,,.. ,.,...,_.,.. ...., ..,.,..,,,.
,_ lH!<<>m,,<:r.,,.lf""'-0. T,__,,,.,.,. ,.,...,...,.., ,_o "~ts"'""""'"'"'..-n.,,.. .....,._,_ ...,, .,.;nc_... ..-..... ...... .,..,,, .,.,. '°"""•••.._ ....
,_ ......-~ _ _,. . ..._.... .,__."""' .., __ "'

•gr.%-- ±
.,....,g,r,,n,:,..__ =~l!«:M'Ul!I. Yr,_.._,, wn, NJ...,,,...,,,...._..o_,~,·~·=·"'"'''"""""""'~l<0JJCIM.~' ===~~ ' .,.._..,_,,,..... --·--s-w.J.<>:i'UorllY~...... -~.........""'°'D< ! "-"" , .. ...,. .....,. ......_, .,,..., ..._,, .., __..._

,,.,,,_1aoowun1'HO-.'kt".-tHt"""""""'"'_.,.....~..ac--D<T,o, ,..., ,,.,.,.,,., . .......-0-. "'""""-"' ~"''°'
.. ~.,,,......, ........ ... ec.nrtS 00,=--•"'.,_,,,,,.,.,_,_.,.,,,.. ..,., _,,., .........,a,,...,°'"'""'
: E331312732%%3375113143:r=r-'..=~---=.,_,.._-=:-.,.,......,-- ,,, ,

,. -<Offlt'Cral-U..••""-.-....-.......__,__,,..,,.,~-· 1U 10" 233: ±.%or««
--~ ................ NJ.- -- ""·""- '""""""°'"'tsMJ<..m...... u,qntC"Ot """-UT • .,.,OGGU"'S,.,,.•..-.a. c,=.,• "' """""- '"""'""""""'°"'ra«---·=n__,,,,.., ~<rr'1.•

TcjFr-QIOOJ2Q-lffl
---futls-1111-~-lall)HDJUNI

PROJECT TEAM CONTACTS

EE» se
SURVEYOlt
J01ft-.000.P.L5,.
l'ltloKMI.EENllllllEIIDIOGIUJIIP
l"50aLeONl..,..,_SUJIE210-~rs-es

e,,
fa

,.,.... "·s,11122

FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WI
PLANS PREPARED

FO R

rliBFIR
DEVELOPMENT

WOODFIELD TRAIL
ONSITE CIVIL ENGINEERING INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS

ABBREVIATIONS
a SELb --aperpp MR>lll.-lUllftll.

W'GOUIJllfWll'll- M l'Oll,"IQF\Ml10Lllll(l;$£CJJ0N

tDt reNT 5A.'Cl".lllt'SEWlR

RG ~- n Tll.'tGEM:YOFCl.llllf
R HOut TOl' ()F ....."'(- t?
PG -· lW'Of's.:Dl'W.W:Ft Mb6Abt n

-OfRU«M'IKIII-.L

UNOF uvE A fflDl5lCIIO!tA"GI.E

IIEJll?DLllll,fUll;:!MOO'IN.GEIIIIElJCVIIIJIOI.IIIIIIUMCflRfr,IMllll)

IIC'IIZOfffllolOAIUMcWJSltUKSl!tSO.ll:l'LAh'fCOCIIDISo\ll:5'Sfeo.,50URtZCOE,.-1H
A.'fF,IJCA... DJilllJIGf"l!IZ7~

-0--0-
-0---

-G---tGI-----

-T- ---111---

LEGEND

/'e<ctlll,E,O'.AJ'1UH((l'l!P.ll,.
Felalll,E,WDO!)al.PLJ.5nc:

H!GllWATill<.EVU(tlWt)
,,O~WfolSII.EVO.(>IWl)
OUIEC'lIONOl'SUV/oCEROW

!fftl;u.!5Ffl'ERCO.T018A.Wl(= CASTil.'ti)
$10?;MSF1,UU,.T011!,lS!~{UCTA'IGA.l!IClSTI'IG) 0
PROSTFREDEO SEC.TO

Iiiw
I=aaasainaWOODFIELDTunaa....lG• • • er:

I =·:,;-=;;;..======c---'==~~~~~~-======:.L!!!:~~~~~~~~~c"!L~~~~L--c-o_v_E_R_s_H_E_ET___JL..:~:.:-=m=rnx=rn-=,===l======llllil~~ wu>o- s PINNACLE ENG1Nftl3!NE GRQ!J!: ·-·---- WESTRYAN ROAD, FRANKUN, WI 53132
il\FOOJfCII\JOH\EoU~-W,\Cl,l\51if~~0(0Y(~\Hl{I_OM;

.----------------------------------------------------------~E
8
r5,
C
d
<Uu
"'C

i...



VJJJJ

EXISTI NG CONDmONS SURVEY •

'\
\
\
\
\

'

,-----
1
I

z
3a.



,-----
1
I

-\

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

.l.._Hm■MWiart!C'illiSITE PLAN OVERVIEW
WEST RYAN ROAD, FRANKUN,WI 53132

Iii PLAN I DESIGN I OE!.. IVER.... --
- s PINNACLE ENGINEEIN!g.gEQUE. _7EEEE_

,,--------------------------------------~- -------------------~E
d 8

ci,
Iii
d,
U
"'c
C

i
l



i
ll"TtKKCCfiCRE ll: SIPE'.IIIIILK

.22gPee«erwe
31TVERJ !CAL FAC E

CUl'I B!I.C-UTTERS-Tt!ICKCOh"CRElESIDEWN.K I
3« DENSEGRADEDBASE .3'THCK

TRAFFC OO

-----------------------------------------------------------E
8
5
Ii;
dou
"'C:

l
¥

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL STREET TYPICALSECTION 60' R.O.W.
WOODFIELDCOURT

STA 101+50.00TO107-t-50.00
NOTE: CliUSHEOST OtE IV.SESK>.l.l CONSIST CFTli E BOTT0\14 .NCHES OF i,11; • TOT TI:!A.'ID

lHETOP4 1h'CH8501' 3/."TO,:,S' TB

NO..,. emn..ous CDhCBASE COUHSE TOJiAVEAN0 .3{19Cnni) GRADA~ON(SMT ss.2a $)
Blll..-itJSCOHCSURFACECOURS~TCll').VEAN0•(125..,,m]GRit.IJAT10N(4MT58-21'1H)

PLANIDESIGNIDELIVER•....
.. 11 PINNACLE ENGlf'.l~IJ31[:i£:,<;;;,f19,.1!E

WOODFIELD TRAIL

WEST RYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132

PROPOSED TYPICAL
SECTIONS

.L HIPBf'SSQJX CPT:f ,IS

REVISIONS

E

1/)zg
tiw
1/)_,
&
E
i'.:
0w
1/)

C-4 0
ll.

C-20 g
ll.



7

~ .~ ~ ,.'T;,;,
J..). __?\

4·3 .,
·'..__ \

L""""'''""""""'"~" .... UOfW<:n ... <-'IC.'T- ;o,c,fQ.......,_,wu.....,,...,,,.mlOO.___""'"_,,..,,_ ,...,...,_ u,,.,.,._,,a;-

._,.,,,.__,,....__ ......,... .,,..,.,.,"" ......,,.,," ..... , ..... ,_, ......, .....,,.,.,...,. ,.._,._.,....,.,_.. ,. ................, .....,_............, ,.. .,._ ,..,.,.,:,.

._...,.,. .,_rruu"""'••s.•,wnc 1llUl.lf <WS""oe••-- "'1'111_,,..,,... .. a,••~--'"""',.,.._,..,.,, ,.,..,., ,.., ...... ...,..,"",~'"""'""""-""-"'-...,.,.,.... _,.,,..__,,,....._......,."""~,w."1....,_1<,...Tr,..,.,,_,,,,,nc_..,,~ """,_,,___• ...,...,..___,_ """""' _ ,...._ ..,.........., ._._,..,._ ..,, ,- ..,.,, ·---
, ,...__ ....... ........ U>lll.UWU►IM'f........ ..., . .... ..,...... . ...... ..., ' "" """"" , ,....,,____ ,, ™..,.._""""" ,_,. ,...,.,.. ..,., .....

._'"""""' .,_...._.,., ..,..__.,,_ ,..~,-- ., ._,,.,,, ..,ro_ ,.., .. ...,..,...,,._._ _
"""'"""an,.,._r.uvioo,.,,..

7on0pt1,± .db » i9 ta to»f ad gof Luc90 tu tu#rt ht.tit aq
#ht#ti,4.T T3 999 o #po /agr ,

~-. • _......_~TO l> l a, < ,.,... .,. ....,.otmOl<I\U.<>:Wl'M,..._...______,.. .,,....."""' .._'"""""""'"'' ..__....,.__,,...,._,. _
..,_,,.... .,.,.. ,.,._._......i'°"'""-•""""''""" .. """",.___,,a ,._,. .,._..,,rwa_ ,. ., .. ,....,_.,,,..,..n.....,..,,_.__,..

!...,..,..,.,_
'-ALIJKC...,_..,,,.. ••.........,.,_.., n,a:,sr , ..11.1-Dan,o,-., __,,,______......,.,._,,.,..,Cl.lMI__Ol_"'IH"- .---
..... , .......,.. ...,......,OIII IIOl"'...,.....,_ ,_ ,, ...._. ... ._. .. ,_,J.QOO <......_ ...,. ...,. _,._,..........,,.,...,,.....__,.,.,"""......""'""'"'"'<C'oU.'-•- · ......,.,..,.,..,...,,,,..,._,,_

._ ,.. .........,..._,.., ,..,,.. ,:..~P""1Tl<t"Tll-n..--....~1'0 1/<' l ll- - J- WCI---l>Wl■l>-1/C'- tlW< C,C_ ,.,_ .,.,,_,.,.....,._ .,_ _ ..,. __c_,__.,... , __ ._.._._ ,,. ,..r,anoa. n-,.....,._ ., ,....._, .._.r...,""-"'"'A..,........,.,....,..P-. .........., ......,._.,, ....... "'"''""'"'"' ,,...nu..,, _ ,,,,,.. ,.......,. .. ._,,_<>Oo__...., _

,----------U-:-T-ILITY:-N-O-T=Es,:--------,-----LE_G_E_N_O ,---------------,jk-•0i----------------------~~
5,
C
d)
d,u
"'C

------ C

i



greetft.a %Ari •0ta$mo
$tr $wtcuft ittot.4 t uour3
gr•rrt.gere

ti,
C
QJ

d,
U..
C
C

i
¢

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/

3'¥ 1

//,.ry

/
/

/
/

//,,
/

/ _,
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/ ,

/
/

/
/

/

8...



-f
d1 =

I
-~~ ,oo

# # T 1.¥'.A ,,
I,..... 107t(J() ICB-<-1::0 108+54.71

REVISIONS I# SHeFr
ROADWAY & STORM ..L..llll llll: ln :m: Dllll:IE !!Ili , C-7

SEWERP&P At C-20

.-----+Y-~==~-c----+-,~~--=-c-tt, ~-=~-=-~'~· -----ti~r"-_:,--_-:__-:__-:__-:__-:__-:__-:__-_-:_-:_______c_u_-k
""-'"---'------+----~--..~-~-,- -----==;..,-.-----¾

-~--;-- I

101+C0

«4
'[

100+-00

--- T
[.

..
_ThL L_- t_
-~ v-~jJilli

8
__I

. -,
I

/ g / I I
I I \ \

I I \ \
I I

/ I

"ciJ
"~w
3:w
"'~

# 5
103..00 104•00 105+00 >

Ill PLANIDESIGNIDELIVER WOODFIELD TRAIL
.m- 3
- iii PINNACLE ENGl"'!5§~ltJru£i£!l(?..\J.E _°'.=".:"- WEST RYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132 ~

c,,==,~m=ru=M=•=•-•~••=~=""'"'=°"•"'-="=~=,u=o=•~=a=~-----------'----~~-~---~~~~==-.,'------------'---------'----------'-''--L-"--'-'----'



======:::;- -,----~::::------,-~'CJFr--;JJl';:;.r-,r--n;--y-------;:-r---/7.T,r--x--s;:--,- ---,r=,r--,,,ITT------_,-._-----::-~-----:;-,-----, Euo
-11~!~:!........"".. 1r --------------- J' ---'/ - ~ -~~-~• i

I /II / I ii
I I I / I1/,,,!..:;r- ..,_ I

// / l------------------...... // f.,_,_.,i(',:: --- I
/ .-.57

.........,.i>'."'l ..... 00
/

_,,,. ' ..... ...,
~::;;...,

\

7

~ ··-i,,
st ti





/
/

T034wCAT"Ast- MOUNCST»;
.!To<t>'ISEWEIICATOl-~ll[CTAAQ/\A\COSTl>,G
Pl<""'1'lE!:lrn.,= ERA.'<fDf.•OSKmrl

[72g"g ow»oor«woo socs.j

MATCH LINE
MATCH LINE

CELEGEND u
6,
C

"d,u
"'C

i



z:s
CL
(!)

SHEET :5
C-11 C

C-20 ~
(!)

.J_AQQA155 f!JYCJH! "tfi'iGRADING PLAN
WOODFIELD TRAIL

WEST RYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN,WI 53132

, .

PLAN I DES IGN I DELIVER

/ ,z .. .,,_ • _., .. ., • •., ..,....7.,
re.smg";

., ., • ., • ., I..... - · · · · · , ,
1• ,., ... • • ... • • •
/ ,. • ,. ,. ., ~ "'• • .., .., • ., ., ., , I ~

/
.,r
/

/
/

/ J'..

•'EgDPN£ilAY(FROUIL.oD<OFW~ OFWAYlWETOGAAAGe t.'.'._,,#Ea2Ea±Ea#a±EE==.- ±
'\'w
Uro~----------------- ---------" -----~--~-~--"-;---=:~r~~---=-~:-t:~-t~~:i~:; J- -~· --,, - -=_<--,-7 --~!

- - -- - - - - --- - - - - - - - - - - ------------~ - ·.
/

,/
I\
/

1 =/ ,r
// /
7 
/
/
/
/

/
/
/
/
/
/
/

/'
l
// f

/ /,
/ y
/

/
/

/
/
(

/
/

/
/
7

/
/

/

9 E3 z» Ba a 9#4 egg E e&En

MATCH LINE



PLAN I DES IGN I DELIVER

\
I
I
I

r

\

5~,:~
\
\

GRADING PLAN
WOODFIELD TRAIL

WEST RYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN,WI 53132

EEEEE.
'l ' ..__

Ill.a
- PINNACLE ENGINEER!Ng.S2UR



,._.,.,_--. ......., ... """'_.. _.,. ,. _-----

/
/

/
/

/
/

? au0 #iet,toa ft&atu.oenc t pct o, Jut .tr-

':'...""m~~· - .:..~~ ~~~_;"'....f.,':'f,.,;;. =,_-;::
~~~"':....:~.tr~ ~....U "'""""1l LY .._ 1'l ... l'!"" ""'"-'ff

~:.:,=.,.""'11 ·•=..,..~~----..,. ...U><'J>U.f;

, ......._.. ,,, .., __,,. .,.,,,, ....... ........... ,..,.,, _..,.,,... .,,,.«.m,,.,,,_.,_.c,u..,,....,o,,.:,_, •----.-=...,.,...,...c,u....,..,re,o,o

.. ,.,,..,...,_,,"""".,, ..,,._,,.,.,_.,._ ."-"-1. .. _... ......._ ---...11D-.Mr- =• ..•••cu:re.v..,.,,., o-_.., ..,.,. _ _,.,.._ ,.
--■-- .........=...-•-O<nl.OWl>-"""-Llt-=-
~"""-ro,...,_..r~"=.'=.':.":!.c.' """..:..-::,:.;.~~·:.::"'

o. -:....,_-~.....,,..,c--- -~-""''"""-~OIIJ-01'_......,,..
4tat.a,teert t0et,tarr@purrpot. Pretitu.
....-.. 'B) iua.. _.,. .....,,......., ...... ~""""' "'' _,.,..,,. ,,m_ r,,

,._ '"™"=.;,_,_ ...,.,___,_., ,...,..,,._,o_,.,,..,'1"8T_,.

~~--....,_, , ..........~....,.,,...,., ........,.,,.......,__,__,,__,
• ---=....,_,. ,.. .,.., ..,....,.__,,,cn-1!_ _ ,..,_ ...,,. ....
,7"ES; "";2"gggo osernrn«oro sun.rvo«

~=.::=:::..~·~~?"""""'"'Owt=r.<ID.QII. _
•<-,.,..><><..........""""'""-...."'.. "''I)<'~ """"'™·""-·"""":.=..~-.....=:~~~:::.::...~-...,,_...,_,.....,,...,,.,·,......... ...... ~....... .,.,.... ..,.,...~....-..-..~----<•L.Vl'l...__..,_..., "'ca>cre,"""--··--.,,., ... "'""'-
,._.,,_,,..,.,.._ .. """"'-"=...,.. IUD< . ....... .... ...,_, ..._~_,..., ........,

---... 75EE.EE±.FE±EE5Le.
IIU O I T,AI UIIW'U DC..,.,,,c,_ -.._ .. ,.,_.,,., ..,,,'""""~-t-•.,..,.,_ca
EE##EEST"--

,.---G-EN_E_RA_L-ER_O_S_IO_N_A_N_D_S_E_D_IM_E_NT_C_O_NT_R_O_L_N_OT_E_S-r-- -=co=N=STR=ucr=::c10:::N,.------ -,--------------------~-------------~-----LE_G_E_N_D__~15
SIT E SEQUENCING 1---.--,_---~---------' ::!

0,~
d,uro
C
C
1i

I
i:



I
I
I
]'
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

WESTRYAN ROAD, FRANKUN, WI 53132

aw ... • ... *i
/ . ,.. .., .... . ,.. ... ... . . ... ,

PLANI DESICNI DELIVER

/

a
D
t

-/
0

« • #met,1Loe.gng
a ,

/
/
/
/

/ .
/
/

/I
// r.-

/
/ ;
/

/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/, '

/ /
/
// ,_


/

r'
/
/•
/
7

/ -...'/, ••••• ..,., •• r
9.5 egi'st vs pi, cs·s a rs r er- sso

MATCH LINE ' • • . . . . • . . .•
+ r, .. . . .. -. - 

• • • • e .., • ..,
/

/
/

/

Ill.c- PINNACLE ENGINEEJVN'g.CE29£.

~l): STl, F.BEl) AA£AS .....C,, AA£
"'1'TW.TTE!IS--ALLB0"'1lROSEED



0

2a□ --~-,.,_,. _
D

%

/., ... .. • • .. ... • • • y
1 ., .. ... • • ... ... • • - .,. .

1 ... .. • .. • }' - ,._ .. ...

t .., ••• ; -- ,,,
!,.. ,
I + .., ,. ., • • ,,).

... ... .. ... .. ... - ... . .. ,.,......................

... .. ., ., ., .. . .. .. 
\. - "" ,

I ., • ... ,.. ., • ., ,. ~

//• : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :-: .., :1• : ••
/ /
I I
I I
l I
I I

: ·:
!

I \
I I
I \ '«..:

1 '..:
\ 'A 

'4 ' ------~---

H.J.CIS'IUl!E-:>AAEASWHIOIAAE.
!OOT ....TI!c06WUl!I!;"-



-~ I ri
l I II

11

I I I i1---..-1r---1---LL
I · I : b- iro.u·--+--+--+tl-sil+_1 ! ] ;

, I I I ::.=-r. ~
'-- "'"'--- 1....., '-------~~--'I.Li_c.l "'-"-+,_-_-=tL~_,_---'----'-..L.:'I ____,!

ROAD A -WESTRYAN ROAD: PROPOSED PAVING AND UTILITY PLAN t-t

-------------------------------------------~------------;~

E3



9
¢

011.0Pl t.1:'"JXt~FA<l ll.lC Q

~:--t~l~··
,,

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

::..--:.=.;;.-:.:.=:.-..=t.:..."=1--"".,.,_.__,................................. ...__ ,_
Mco..--..a,--. .,_._,_,...,.,._.,.,,......,,_..,..,_....., __, .._ ..__.,_____ ,.__ ,.._.....,...., .. ,,.,_,,,. ,,.,__---•-=-=----------..--

, .;:;:., _,_,._.____.__..._ ,~-·--- ""'----·-~ ..-- ...--~
---·---- ...,,,, ,,,___, ,,.,_.,..,. ..,_,. ........ --.._,-..., ,._,,_..._ _...__ .....
=---=~=-='==-~=------

IL

DITCH CHECKWITH STRAW BALES

[irind
ts#l

DIVERSIONB6™/CJ-1.ANNEI.

..._,.,.,......_ ......._~_,,--"" ...........·-----------..• • j t rie.l.atc_..... ,._.,. ,,.,_
• near ,t.t.#.----~-----

-------

---·--------,..---·--·--------
... ..__,. ,. _

=---=--=--~'"='='=-.::i::--====- ...:...~

... ---· - ..-. --- -------------

--• a -- .__ .,.__---------------..---.

P=#tart,....._ __,.. ....,,.. ,..._. .. _...,..,_~------.....,.._ ,,...,...., _....,,_,_,.,..,__.,..,"'"'"°'_....,._ _,.,.,.,~,--..- -..w---__ ,,_.,.,___,......,.._..., . ...,.. ...._
__,_.. ...,_ ....,, .,,..,._,.__~__ .,._...,,. ..,.,__, ,.._,.

__ .._,_,...,,...,.,..,_

ave±auz· 5z%%%%-.%...32"-

_... ._,,_.., ..,..,,., ,.,.,.,_ ........, ..,.. ,,, .... , _,,_,, ...,,_,,.,__,_,, , ______ ,. __
_____ _,.....,.,,.,....,., ,.__,.._. _
--- "' "' "" -.. ...... or....,.,. _ ., ..,........ . g. a,

..., tu t• et et oro,hi,t , ..... . ,.. ...,....., _.,___. __...,_.,,_ - .,.,_,.__,_,,,,,., ,..__ ,. _

.., ._ ___ ...._.,. ......._.. ,..., -_____,_ .. .,,.., _,._,~-- "'"'"""..,_ ...,,.,. ...,...... ..., .. ,,.., ~,, .........,.._ .. ,._,..__ .,,,.,__ ,,_____,_____,.._ ........... ....- .. ,...., ..__ , ,.,_ ....-_,.. _
■-•~du■,- , .,_.,...,....,..,.......,.., •.,~~~J:7~""""'"''__,.., .,.., _

............._ .... , _"".,.,,,,...,.,. .,...,,.,..., _,,_,_.., ,,,____"'__ ..__ ..,..,._~--

z
¢

i----.-.---:lll-...---------------=.=-LA:-:N::l:::DE=s=,G=-N:-:,=o:_=-uv=ER=-r---;cw=oc:o=o:--;FI=E;;L;;-;;:D:-;:;T;:RA=-=-=1""L-----.--C-O-N_STR__u_cn__O_N--,--~-_....,,~~~=~-~~-w--,_-==-V1S-,lo-.-.-----~-~~J~!~lrc-·:-~-';--;J

"' I'll PINNACLE ENGlt--j5,~lt:l,£t.(.:i.~JJ_!E --=~:-:.. WEST RYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132 DETAILS },i; c-2o 8



j7112'

al

•
L..
I

---~

TYPICAL SECTIO N
MOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTCR

,.----------------------------------------------------~E
g

,----------------~Ir
.t,vg
C:

i
·t

I

,,-,~--·~·--' C/l
PROP R/W_
(WEST/EAS,



:r::-..::=::r.:='~...... --=.....~ -•T!C-O,A ,_..,__,,,,,,....,._

s_ye_,

----~~~=EEE= .____...., - . --_ . _· · ,__._---- --.
-=- -= , Iii----= - -~--- ..:-:.--~:--~~-~_-:-_:: s~sc

....
DIWN OLE D£TAILI

~.....
V£RTIC~L SEP ARA TICH

•-.,"-=.--

Deto1

18 M n.(Chop. 2.0.19)

6 3/4 TB

lfill [IFS YE RTIO'J SEP:WJJ OIJ At!l
Pl AGEWNI or • BW PINK

~5(>1'(,l

(Chcp. 228. S) 24 Mn '----------- 4 R25 P•s~e(\~ctt 2.21:1.15)

0 '

-------------------------------------------------------------,E
§
0,
C

"..u
"'C
C

i..,

?) De ee .a 9
•.,,-•e

~±w
C

SANJ T ARY MA.."'ffiOLE BENCH Z

z- &
R.MSIONS ml=#""""I=----- i I i i C-20 8

CONSTRUCTION
DETAILS

=

L.... _:S:.:T=ORC:M::.S=EWE=::.:R=MAN=Hc::O:=LE:_ __,_ --=SACCN::.ITc..AR:.:Y:...MAN:::..::::.H:::O:::LE:_ _j i
0

~
~
a:
f2

_uncu• 1-L_
\_==- ;;,:;:--

SJORM SEWER INLET
W/ DRAIN TlU OET,i.lL

WOODFIELD TRAIL

WESTRYAN ROAD, FRANKUN,WI S3132

PLANI DESIGN I DELIVER

INLETDRIVl:WAY

%,

j
t''

.
' 'I

.
TY PICAL INLE T

!l!
,...
- lil r1NNACLE ENGlf'ls~Wt:-tS.fil9..!E



POND 1 EMERGENCYSPILLWAY

f.!:2.ill;_

z:7z2%...
+ EE3.77%22;
L W.rn:,IGIIIWJ.m;1..-.;r/.lllOC,-,1JXORil,IJ<Cl!:Wlllll".tfflTECH

iTitKWIDIOSl_

I --~---~-~ -

:=.-=::.1::=.=1;:·.:..~~-·
2. OOIIE..,..Dl<lltllll--~-•-•-rtoreatertat-roar
L--•--••a:io,~,,,u__,.."'

POND 1 OUTLETSTRUCTURE

qnuInegunacm

BIORETENTION BASIN NW2CROSS SECT10N

"'_,
~w
Cl
z
0

E
SHEET iil
C-20 Iiiz
C-20 0u

REVISIONS

E
POND 3 EMERGENCYSPILLWAY

t!'.!lll.

277%.%¥2323%...
2. o,,rneOVTm"IEO'"Wf.PCMl,Ule<ITUill'REW'CflCEl<e>{I"

""'rr;-«;S'>CRJZOHT~UVPA.sT'Tl-£TOECFSLOP:E_

""'Tn4GSl'.M.l.BelM$TA!.UDl..,Ne=;>OfflCEIIIO>i~.C:MllEC><
UJ.IOIIJ'tl1~ l.

PONO3 OUTLETSTRUCTURE

CONSTRUCTION
DETAILS

STORMWATERPONDW3 CROSSSECTION

II PL.ANIDESIGNIDELIVER WOODFIELD TRAIL... --
- » PINNACLE ENGINEERING.gEQUE. _"EEERE. wsr RYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132



WEST RYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132

e ±
C.RAPMICAL.!ICAl ! (HU) Q.r -I I wt
i i I z
l ' ! l L-2 :s

POS EDAD DITIO NAL
DBUFFER

f -~' , , ,

PQND

:'.i
POSED AD DITIO NAL ~9".

\ ...
\ , ~

c.
MASS GRADING \ fZ

\·::-·---,__
Cl-r .\.

D
OBUILO"

J.1

#.+l ,_
3,.- :;:..

.,}.~.;:..
-........-:--·

-- y- -11!=-- §"ace.E£;
- - - "" ,.. -- Cze=reg..

C
C·a.

I

LANDSCAPE PLAN

-"·'Ke4<5y
PROPOSED AD DITIONA L /, ✓

YETI.MD BUFFER
y' l"",.r .i,t <r

PROPOSEDADDITIONAL
WETLAND SETBACK '• 1

/ ·/. , ,f-~//1
, 8l'4 ·,r / ,. l

,. ~,,,/•~f',
.:/ / .,.-y1/

f // -.,,/
1lliEIV\NDBUFFER

?REVIOUSL Y IMPACTED
BY MASS GRADI NG

',<
?

t. AREASOFIMPACT \\ffl, INY'En>H>SEIBACl(S

::.2.227
FUR illER DET AIL

2. EXISTINGVEGETJlTION TO;EICNfr,l•AREAS
IIJtCl'MIASADlllTKWAI. BUffER A'fbSETUM: K.

·I
·I

I
·1
I.
50'VIETI..AND

S::IBACK•NOBUil.iT

WOODFIELD TRAIL

~ PROPOSED AOOIJNJNN.. WETLAN OSETII/IC KMEAS~ ..... ,,.

~ ST'IETUINO SETBM:K IWACTMEAS
~ (t,tllS SF)

~ 30" "'1: ILUQ l!lNFEJl tlF ACT MEAS
~(25.&ZOSFJ

~ PROPOSEOAOOfllCtW_WEll.MliiBUFFERAAEAS
~PUtOSF}

NATIVE PLAITTINGS

1st YE>.R PERFORM SPOT SPAAY"t\ l T11 HER :IICIDE TO SUPPRESS V/EEDS. Ttt lS SHOlUJ OCCUR APPR OXI.WITR.YEVE;w
MCNTtt OF Ti tE GROVffiG SEASON Af"TEFI. tlATN'E PL.AUTTNGS HAVE BEEN ROUGH9'AOED.

#k.±Et#;is:errscar.we %2
,r,IYEAR INIJ.AYIJUNEM(NIW. TIVEPI..AlffiNGSATtrHEIGHTTOSU?f'R.eSSTHEV\'EEIJS.PERFORMSPOT-Vwmt
IIERIIICDETOSUPP;IESS ,,.,1:EOS.

4lhY!A!il Ill 11.AY PERFORMAPRESCRIBEDSU;IN. IN JUNEHAVEAQIJALJFED PRCFESSICfW.. ASSESSPI.RfllNGS_ .FA
;:~~~~ ~¼'6"~~ ~';,~~ii_AA TIVEl'lAA Tl.'iGSSHAU. 6E CVTTOTHEGHOI.NU AH OM.l.W-MA1BfW..SIIAI. L

NATIVE PLANTINGS:

SEEDIHG SHAU. BECONOVCTED IHlAT!; F>U (SEPTENBER 1• SOILFREEZE}SOll"ATSBroSMIIYlEDORW,NflllJRING
fe!s~~'gli3~~ ~i;AC= TF ICA TION. Ofl S?fiM (!,'AR CH 1-.tJ/,IE 1)TOALOW ACOW'l. 9E GIIO\ffiG

PRIOR TO SEE DING ; AU. i\EE OS AN) EXJ STINGVEGETATION SHAU. !IE REMOVED. Elll 611NGVEOETADlN 61W..1.EE

:±::2:c22.272215%3,17%,,27%Z2goso-rwracoo·vu«cameo
A. ,REP ARA. TION OfS0 11PRIOR TOSEEOI NG

1. REFEFITOCMLPV-NSFORSOILUDt
2. ALLFOREIGNM,t,.TEi!W.SL.ARGEAnt'.N1-t.CHStt,,.tl.BERENOIIEOFROIIITlfESOl.PRIORTOSffONGOR

PAM3MG.
3. AAEASHOUL.OBEFR£EFRCMUNSIOHTLYVARIATIONS.RIDGES,ANDOE?.IESSICIIS.
, _ AVOID ORMOO OVER lHE SP!:CF IEDAREA WITHIM.CtfNEJI.Y

B.COVERCROP
1 ANNVM.RYESHAU.BESPREAOATAOENSITYOF20POUNDS?£RACRE~ THEPI.Nll1NBCRSEEDINBOF

THEWt.TIVEPl>NTS?ECIESTOSTAE!ILIZETiiESOl. »IDREOUCEil llCGl{(JWIHOFIJ:'f\'6'ltlJED VEGEfATIOH. nus
AWIUM. GR/.55 GROWS ~PIDI.YWITHOVTCOM'ET:NGWlll-lTiiE YlllDR.CMel5.uEGIIASSE61K\TARE

2.~~~::6~~~~~RYE S>-'AllNOT BE USED ASA COVER CROP THESEGRASSES W.YOUTCOU l'l:a""TE
PR.AlR!E SEEDLIOOS, LEADING IO A REDUCTION :N THE SUCCESS OF TtE PI.JWJH3&_

C. SEED 1,IX: MIX AU. PRAIRIE SEED wtrn VE/!MICUUTE ACCORD~IGTOAGRECOI.
RECOMMENDATIONS AK> ~'.ST M.1.AllON Gl./10 9..ltE S .

1 . BR~OCA6Tt'.AI.FTI IESEE.DOYE.RTIEENT.RESITEORTARGETAAEA.
2. ~~ei"'a:'"~ OTHER ~LFOF SEEOPERPEN!llCUlAA TOTHEO.RECTIQNTHATTI-:EFIRS-HAtFOF'&ESE3>

!~~~~J ~~~MT~t!_=~,:; ~~~EXCESSSCltFROM11E SITE)?.fTH IW(E0RlRAG.
5. KEEP SEED CONSTANTl.Y\\ET THROUGH GEi'IMlW.llON PERIOD. GENERA!.LY3YIEEKS.

"'1.LSEEOINGSKALLBECO'T:Rli!Vl'ITHl .WCHOFCLEAN.NO:.l-il.VASIVESTAAW(NOIUJl&HtM,Y00RREEDCANARY
GRASS] 'l>'ITHOUT SEE DS, WITTI IN SEVEN DA YS. ' IWIIEAT RYE. OATS, OR EIAflLEYAREACCEPUal..EFORNliOr' lill'b\W.

.231223/%332.2137272zoo

r
QI! ~ ~□ ~~-Fl"E~ !H:RIGP.Mll-Y.:11

I PLANI DESIGN I DELIVER•·"' ---.. Ill PINNACLE ENGINifE1t:-J£.f,ll9.!.!.E --=~-



(@)grum»we ovsore

f. Ttl E LAYOUT Of ML NVOOUL. TREES SHALL BE STAKED BYT111=. CONT RACTORI... AIJWINCE OF ALULA TOAL,FLAGGMG,STAKES, DOR PAINT MAY BE ISE D TO DELIEAIE LO"ATOS
ASSCALEOfROMTliEPI..NiS . ANA?PRO\IEOREPRESENTATIVEWU.REVIEWTHESELOCATIONS'MTHTl!ECONlRACTOi'l:A."IDMMEIEKIRAD.\JSIMENJ'SASNECESSARY

2 . ::~ :i?.:~~~ ~~ SIBlEfOR:NOEPENOENTlYDElcRM!Nlli Oltt ERJINTMATERlo\LOUA.'fJIJ.ESREDWIEDBYTHEI.AJ.DSCAP!: PI.ANS JIS'O.'UIJf'fOISCREf'ANCIESlO

;";"""Z2";$.ZS"$.£"?;Eggs wueccrovsessouav we uwoscore corer orosossouesewerra»ronew»oscure
AU.BN8STOCKSIW.LBENVRSERYGRO'MINACtAYLOloMSOILFORAl.l/MatUIIOFTHREEGRCJoWGSl'.IISONSMIHl:t2WMl.ESOFl'ROJECfl~ TICN,,..AzctECOIIJ>AT8lE
l',(JHUSOAHAROINE5SZ0t;EM. EX1ST1NOSCllSHALLSEAI.IENOEDPERSOLANALYSfSRS'ORTTOENSUIEAPROP9lGR~ IEDa!lll&ACHIEIIED_

5. ALLPLANTMATER\ALSHAU.COMPlY'MniSTAHDARDSDESCR;BEDINAA'ER;cANST~ DOFIIIJRSERYs«>QI; .z&O. AH5I I.AND&CAPEMCWJECTOROV'.WERSAUJllOIIIZEO
REPRESE :-!TATIVE RESE RVC--5 Tl1ER'GHT TO INSPECT » IDPOlENW, LLY REJE1;TNfY'PlANTW.T8'W..CEEUEIJTONOTIIEET "ltiE~ DSTAl,;QM DS_

7. TREESSiW..l.HAVESIHGlE.SmAJGliTTRU~AND'h£U.8"L.AUCEOBAANCHSYSIEMS.~ TREi:SSl'ALL HAV!EM STRAIG HJTIWNKSNG \"ot:lt BAl..',NCBJ&AMCH
&YS'T EMS. HElGHT-TO-CAUPERRATIOSSW.!.1.BECOOSUlTENT'MniltEL.ATESTEomc:\ICFANSJZIB0.1.

8. ROOT SYSTE MS SIU.U. LARGE ENOUGH TO ALLOW FOR FULL RECCNErfrOFTHETIIEE,,A.-.J6HAI..L aJNFORUTOST-DSASltl !;Y APPEAR ,. THEYOSl"CIMRENT REYISIOH CF
TI1E .l MERICAN ASSOCi.o.no~ Of' NURSERYMEN'SA.\IE!'llCMI SU,NDARD O!' NUUIERYSICCKANSI ZID.1.

II. ei;9TREESSf'>.LlllEDUGl',tntA8AU.OFSOIL,t..'Cn'SCfTB"1tED0RPOTTmMOSHAU.8EFINIMllEIIIR00~ 1«)C)TIIAI.L81Llill5£,,_Ei)ty,,ffilBIODEGRAD,\a.E
W.TERll,.L] THE TREE ROOTR.ARE. OR CCll.U,11. SHi\Ll BEATOR 'MThl,,.TI-IETIJPn.lEE~ OFGR.\DE.

10 . ALLSPRINGTREESMUST9EFRESt<LYOUGINlHEMOSTRECENTSPRING.

11. AtLAUTUM.'ITREES .WST8<:.F FU;SlcLYDUGINffl0:IJQSTRECENTAlJTUM.'I.

12. TREESSHALLB=Al..lVE,Hl'Al.lliYANOAPPROPRMTaYMOIST.ATnt.1!:0FDEL"VERV TRESSHAU.BESUB.ECTTO:HSPEClN'.lfjfCJRCOHFORMIIYTOSPECFICATI:>HREQUIRENBffll
ANOAPPROV.U.BYThEl.,UlDSCAPEARCHITECTORO'>\NERSREPRES£NTATI\IE. THEIAN06CN'eARCtffECTOR<MiERSREPRESENTATIVEliESERV=SD-.E.RIGHTTOilE.ECTNff
TREStJ-IATOONOTIEETTH5.sPECIFICA110NSORnt.o.Tlt,\Vl:BEENDA>MGEOOUll:"6~ Tl(E: lA."WSCAPE INSTAI.LERMUST R£C ENEAPF IIOVM.A«:lllNIOSCAPE
ARCHITECT FCR A1N SUBST111J1lONS OR AlTER.ATIONS.

.--Q-EN-ER-AL-PLA_N_TI_NO_NO_T_ES ~~

::!
CJ>s,;,
;:;
m
C

i
¢

l3
I-
0z
..J

$wzw
(!)

d!S
A
§
o
w
Cl.

I SHEET 3
L-2 "'oz#as L-2 :5

(@)gmgsrum»a

.L. Ml91fSCOJYffi'l'!l'hlS

-·--·..··-----...............__ .......---..-~----_..___.._ ...,.._,_

LANDSCAPE DETAILS
& GENERAL NOTES

22"gee««.o«mos+

;..::::.:::;+~'r----------............ ----.....-·...
t,tttarpteatta.t

© TRENCH ED BEO EDG E
tr R

0~TREPlANTi NG

WOODFIELD TRAIL

WESTRYAN ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

LOOS&I Sl;BGRACE TO A MIMMUI.I OEPnlINOICAr'cDlN l'LA'fllt-.G /IOTES USll«JA C\11.ll-\lUI.CffEt CRSIMILAREQUf'MENT ANOREMOIIESIOESUEMl..~ O\'ERMIZ
INCHES :NAtN O!IJE'ISICN. STICKS , RCl!B1S!IM00n£REXTRANEOUS MATIEfl _ I.REAS AIJ.IACEHTTOWAUISANDPA-'fl"5tu.UBEF-OFEXCESS 5TONE AND
PAVAYG ATERL S SOAS TO PROVICE AN UN:NreRRUPTED CROSS SECTlOHOFSCIL

2. TliOROUGH.YetENOPL.ANTL'IGSOILMllCFORP'..ANT!NOB:OAAE,t.S. (1 PARTEXISntGSOA.. I PAilTTOPSOIL.l?ARTOReAMCson.AMENlW:NT Ui=OUNDS-CUBJC
YA!IDOF 4--4""'AHALYS IS SLOW.fl.a.EASEF:RlUZERJ

J 1 REEM7J~ UBHOlESS!-W..LBEFJL\.ED Vl!Ttt APRE PA.REDPL.At.."TISGl,IXl\lRE OFIPA'fTlCP SOIL. 2 PARTS?I.ANTIHG SOILNIX.

4, SPREAD SOIL AND SOLAME'IO!.!ENTS TO OEPTI-IINOICATEO CNOR.A\\l~ S. eurNOTLESSTl'.MRECIIIREDTOMEETFINISHCRADESAFTERNATu;w.SETTLE~ (fllHSh
GRAOCOF PLO.Ml.NG BSDS S+Lt BE 3BEOu, ADJAC ENT SURFACES. F NASOGOADECF TURFSEEDINGAREASHALL EE BELOWAIL AOLALCENT BARIO SURFALCE.g
WALKS.ANO CURBS .)

S PL.ACE>J'PROXIMATELY 1/2 OF TOTL MOUNT OF SOIL EOURED. WORK ITO TOPOF LOOSENEDOS B8GRADOE TO CREATE ATRANSITION LAWER,THEN PLACEREWAID.R
CFWESOIL.SOILTitO,NSITIONLAYERSttAU.SETILLEOTOA\l i'JI\IU\IDEPTHOl=ll"BB..OWTl'.EOEJ>tHOfNB\t.YPlACEDSOILl¥.iaQKGlOTISlAMOSSHAI..LSE
CRO\' tliED TO A 1-EIOIIT OF i;- TO PROVIOE PIU)f'ER Olv\lffAOE UN'..ESS OlllERWlliE KOTBJ.

6 DO NOT SPREAD IF PLANTING SOIL OR SIJBGRAC-E IS FROZH-1, MUDDY OR EXCESSIVEl.Y\'Er

7 . FINISll GRAD ING· GRADE SOIL lOASMOOIB. UNIFORl,\61.2RfACEPV.t;E 'MTHALOOSE,l,;NTQRM;..YFIIEi:'XTIJRE.

a ROLLANOR>JCE.RE\IOVERIDGE5 ,AI-O FlllOE?RESSICN5 TO!,tEETFNSt1Gl' .-OES.

Q rlESTORSPL,IJ,lilNOBEOSIFEROOEDOROTI-IER'MSEDJSTVrle!:OAf'TERFIMSHGIIAON;ANDBEFOREPI.MfTffli.

II
,...
"' 1!11 PINNACLE ENGINEERING.GROUP

U. Yi+lil.EPlAITTINGTREES&SHRUBS,BACKFIUfOFPI..AHffiGHOLEANOWATERlREElHOROU8R..YBEFOREIINSTlll.l.EG1tEREW.INDEROFSC..IIIICTUIE IIFTERMJ.60'l.l".A&BEEH
Pl>.CED INTO Tl-IE PI.A:mNO HOLEVl:,\TERTliOROtJGH!.Y>.BAIN.

5. TI!ECONTR,1,CTORMJSTLAIIEtALLTRE.ES1Ml'HlHECC!41.10P-lAIIDBCTAt..tCALNIIMESPRIDRTOFINAI.IHSPeCllON..

18 . ALLTREESPL.AtfTED~'l1\JRFAREA.SSHALlRECEIVEA3"0EEPSrl.'IEODEOHARCWOODIIULCHEOIIN3ASSHOVININPJUfTffGOET.U.S.

11 Alt TREE RINGS SHAUHAVEA~"Oicl:PTRENCHEO BED EIXIE CREATED SY EltttERAl'U.TlNtDSCAPESPACEORllEC.'iNfCAI.ECGER. l!EDEDGESA!tETOBECUTcu;AN.V.O
SW.OOnt>SSHOWN CNL.ANCSCAPE:P L_.,,NS 'MTHACLEAN DEF:NITION 8:IT\\EENTl.lU'A.'tbPL,\N.-QAREAS.

18. ALI. FINISti GRAOIMlANO L.A'Mol AREAS TO 3E INSTAtl EO!ffL.ANDSCAPEC0NTRACTOII

19 . AU CIST\JRBEDAREAS'Mllt lN D-E PRO."ECT SIW.l BERESTCREO TO ORJGt.'IAl.ORBETTERCONDITlON.

2 0 . ALLCIST\JR.BcDAREASOUTS 'OEnt;:UMl1SOFWORKSHAll.B:RESTOREDTOORGIW..CRl!iEIT":ltCCM>.'TIDNATNOAllDITIONM.COSTTODIEOVlo"NEt.

21 THECet.'TRACTOR StW.I. VERIFYAlt EXISTING UTIUTle:S . JNCLLOl'IG ANY IRR:G\TICNLNES,,PRICRTOOiGGWG. CONSUI.TCIGGERSHOTLINE.

•lOFE:TFROMN«flREKTllRANT
7FEETFROMSTCRMSEVIER.SANITARYSEWERLATEFW..S. ANO WATER Sl:RIIIC E
SFEETFROMDRIVEWAYS

23. n-ECONT1'tt,CTCR6HAI..I.ENSUREntATSCILCONOlrcOt;S"NOC01,PACTICNAREMJEQLIA.lETOAI.LOWFOR.~ IJR/IINAO:AROLNDTHECONSTiUJCTJOt,ISJIE. lJMlESIRAIILE
CcNOmONs Sl1AU. BE E!ROUGl-fl' TO lHEATTE!iTICN OF THEl.AI-ICSC,,,PEARCHllcC T"fDO RTO-CFWORK.HSHAU. !EThECOKTRACT CR"S;iE SPOHSIII IUIY TIJENStm;:
PROPERSURFACEANOSUBSURFACEDRAINAGE INAL.1.AAEAS

2 4 . TttECO,'ffAACTOR IS RESPONSIBLEFOR -",UF>ER"'ITS , FEES ,At-0 LICENSES IECESSMYFOR 11-!EN!iTIU.t.AllOUOFTHISPLAR

2 5 . TI!E COlfTRACTOR 1570 REVIEVJA!.t srreENGl~EERING DOCUMENTSPRIOR TONSTALI.ATION. Nl'f COfFL..'CTSIQSJBEREPOi{T"E(J lOrnELAND5CAPEAROl!l£CT. THESE
LANDSCAPE DRAWNGS ARE FOR THE INSTALLATION OF PUNTATRAL S ONLYURAES3 OTHERSSTATED,

26. THE CONTRACTOR SHALLPROVIDEWATERING AW MA:NTENA~E SERVICES~APSU000FIIDIMYSTOENStaE\IEGEi"ATNEESTA8USHME.'ff U'ONCOUPL.EllOP-lOF"JHE
PROJECT.CONTAACTORSW.tl SU~ LYnJEOY>NERIN""fllTl'IOl',m-tONOONQWATEIIINOAKll~ INSTRUCllONS.

" 22."3%3 %72%,1%%%$%.%%3Z312revsoeorrow«coos«o«
2 8 . TIE CONTIU.CTCR IS RESP"OSSIBlE TO CONOl.:CT A FJHAl. WAU< TliROVGH 1',1Tt1 TtELVIOSCM'EARCHITECT ANO CR OVlt,;ERS REP R!:SENTATiVE TOMSl,\ER Ql,;ESIIOtS.PROVIDE

l'ISTRUCTIONS.ANDENSURETI<_.,,TPRD.;ECTRE0utREJ.'EHTSHJ\VEIIE9'lM.c""T



WETLAND IMPACTS DATA TABLE

0 .937 SF
(.02lAC)

2. 1 75 SF
(0 .05AC )

1!,382 SF
(0 .3 5 AC )

AREAS OF RESOURCE
lOT2

lD.11\AC)

3 9 .792 SF I
(0 .'l lAC )

lti'.':"'

SITE DATA

2 7 .1 3 7 SF
(0 .62AC)

1.o21SF
t0.02AC J

1c a .e« SF
(1.50 AC)

AREASOFRESOORCE
lOTI

1 1 5 .6 1AC)

7 5,2USI' I
1l.73AC)

l8'.559 SF I
(1 1 AACJ

IOT'f.llVUV,lll)DVIT[ll t.11'"-CI ~.»urp\.& ,~]
ROUT0 Nu1vol $) Mv$402)

f """'1...E ( N~R tlll<Jalll'
........RCOll>.CI 1<1<>'111~!,C,.C IOll5lfATERro,•r,rno

EllCIOl<f"Et9....$ltM-....-,.,,.,..

»ta.zMe
IIURDF/ll.WU!lff

°""'-ltO>tfJAC! .... ....,V,I"" "'lltol>IST---
NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURE AREAS

M>DffiONM.INRJRl' ATIDH IS IHCUJDEOIf lJEATTACHEO SITE tl TENSITY CALCUlATIOllS
-tiERANOO IIEWIEAlEDIIYtlEARTIANDECOLOGI CAJ.Gf!OU P!h'COll6 ·2S·:102 1
-STEEP£R SL CJPES EIIIST OHSITEDUETOAECEtl T Fl ll GRAOfiG TIIATWASCOIIPtETE D. DUE TO
THS!AHD IBEJNGIIIIIUAOE)~ AREKDJl«:LUOEDIN IHISNRl'P

..a:!FIIREIJfllfSfff.l

- R-, - f (R 'IQ I OUC, r- __,.. .. .., ._ ....... .,..

"JUl-,C,U.KJt,U(HlfTJ n,,iRO,IOC<llQOUf<,_..5r #±.1

I
I
I ,-\c--
1 I / \
I I / \

' __ _J_ • ',) \

""~~..._fi~- \-,/ \
-. H I, \ \

TlNm~ ERPREVIOUSL T \ \
ACTED BYMASSGRAOfiG \ \

\ I \
,__ \ I

\ I
\ I
\ \

/

/
/

/f\

z7
•@' I',,, J'/ ,, ,,

/ --f',,J .,.ff {,/ --r... /,,:" ,7
1, ~"(/,/'' ,-
• A ? '

"

i

/ /

3 J7- ·/ / I I
I- . j ,'
i~ "'j'~,,,->- •[r.F

I ,: # /,,/· ,,/
'/ / ,,/ />/ ..' , ' p'-',_,,. /' y ~-•-*"=i ✓ / ·tnl'l."ln ·

I ,. I//

. 0/ "
.i. FRANKLIN DEVELOPMENT - NATURAL RESOURCES PROTECTION PLAN s111122

m 11 PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP a>"5WAJERTOl,tlllOAD ISUIE HXl llROO<FaD.W;53181, WWW l'INW1 £.£NmCOM I PLAN IDESIGN I DELIVER PEG JOB# 809,60



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG.DATE
June 21, 2022

Reports & A Resolution to Adopt the Ryan Creek Pedestrian / Bicycle Trail
Recommendations

ITEM NO.

G.5.
BACKGROUND
At the July 6, 2021 Common Council meeting, GRAEF-USA Inc. was authorized to prepare a Ryan Creek
Bicycle/Pedestrian Trail Plan. This plan was presented to the Parks Commission on January 10, 2022, and
those comments were incorporated into the attached final version of the "Ryan Creek Pedestrian / Bicycle
Trail Plan"

The Ryan Creek Trail is the next large trail segment contemplated by the 2030 City Comprehensive Outdoor
Recreation Plan, and its design and construction are eligible for Impact Fees.

ANALYSIS
The Franklin Parks Commission is expected to discuss this issue on June 20, 2022 and Staff will bring any
recommendations to the Common Council's June 21, 2022 meeting.

On June 6, 2022, Staff was directed to start discussions with the Franklin Public Schools for a large portion
of this trail that would extend from S. 92" Street to S. 80 Street.

OPTIONS
Adopt the plan, or provide comments that need to be incorporated in the document.

FISCAL NOTE
The contract to perform this work was for $57,000 and it is anticipated the project (46-0321-5216.5140) will
be $30,000 under budget (assuming no additional changes are requested or needed). A budget amendment
will follow soon after the project is finalized.

Adoption ofthis plan has no direct impact on the budget. Pieces will be discussed and budgeted as appropriate.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt Resolution 2022-a resolution to adopt the Ryan Creek Pedestrian/ Bicycle Trail Plan.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -----

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE
RYAN CREEK PEDESTRIAN/ BICYCLE TRAIL PLAN

WHEREAS, the City is planning for parks and trails in accordance with the 2030
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the southern portion of Franklin is anticipating much development in the
near future; and

WHEREAS, it is advantageous to plan for connecting trails and parks in advance of
individual developments; and

WHEREAS, The Ryan Creek Trail is the next large trail segment contemplated by the
2030 City Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan; and

GRAEF-USA, Inc has prepared a plan datedfor the Ryan Creek Pedestrian
/ Bicycle Trail plan; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin Parks Commission has reviewed the final report and are
recommending that this report be adopted as the Ryan Creek Pedestrian / Bicycle Trail plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the June 2022 report titled "Ryan Creek Pedestrian / Bicycle
Trail plan" and prepared by GRAEF-USA, Inc. be adopted as the guideline for trails in the
southern portion of Franklin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of>2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--





BLANK PAGE



(

II.
IllI«scr
C,



r II.
Ill
lffir
C,

z
::i
a..
a::
I.LI
I-
l/)
<l'.x
....J

~
I-
I.LI
....Ju>-u
a:i ry( ......z
<l'.a::
I-
l/)
LJ.J
Cl
LJ.J
a..
~
LJ.J
LLla::u
z
~



t L() r--- co (j\ ( LC) 0 'tj· II.I .... .... (y (y\() I Ir 0 t I I Ill\() ........ \'"" (y... lffia:
C,

Vl
C:
0:;:;
ro

Vl "'O
.c .c C:

Vl h u Q)
C: Vl ro Vl ro E0 .c Cl.. .c 0·.;:; Vl +-' +-' .... E~ C ro > ro 0..u 0 Cl.. .... Cl.. 0.. 0 C:Q)Q)
C: ·.;:; > ro > <( u 0-~ Cl.. ro .... "'O .... Vl Q) ·.;:;er::: C: C ro C ro O'I Q) er:::(I) 0 0 Vl E 0 E C: Ez ro

> u ·.;:; (I) +-'
Q) u ·.;:; C0 u Vl . ;:: Q) (I) +-'

ro Q) > Cl.. l/) b :::s ·o :::s Q) z+-' O'I C: o QJ I I I 0 ro 0 E $u C _J er::: LL er:::<I) ·.;; .9 ro <I)

G Vl O'I u • Cl..ro ro ro ro.... '5z Q) 0 .... .... .... .... E er:
Cl.. LJJ er::: _J b } k- F- UJ

I-
l/')
<(x
...Jzer:
I-
UJ
...Ju>-

( uco (f)
....__
z
<(z
I-
l/')
UJo
UJ

«/) a..
%. <
i UJ

UJer:u
z

ti 5$¥
er:

11



z
::i
a.
0:::
LLl

ln
<(
x
...J

3
1-
LLJ
...Ju>
~co.......z
<(
e
ln
LLl
C)
LLla.
<
LLl
LLl
0:::u
z±

C
,_
OJ
tJ

(1J

OJ
(1J

Lilru
C
z
C
cu...
LL.
..c
Lil

..0
(1J......
Lil
(.])

s
Lil
C
ro·;::......
Vl
OJ
"Cl
Q)
a..
o
C
/0
l/1
(I/uc
:.B
..c. ...,
0
..0

6,,_
l/1
OJ...,
6 ..c:
l- .Z-'

Vl <
Lil 6Q) ,._
u en
16 ~
g
:.-o ::.l.J «-.
Q. CJ")
±.
@ t;
C <U
o ks
.S: -::a_,..,
u 0
;J .,...,

-~ .. ..J

Vl 6j
§ E
u OJ
5@
e oco'.8 E
l/l ru
% •
C: ..czg
0 ..r.:
u s
>- >.➔-' -1-'u ·-
o 'a..c rt)
4.5 -.
Lil ("\J
<( 5

s
.Q
OJ
.0

Ero,_
CJ)
ro
-0
OJ..c
I-·

±#

r

(



r C)
)
C)
y z

~
0

5Qa. 0::
::, 0wz 0::3 0::
a. 0
z 0
0 ~5 ::,

Oo...
0:: r 'o
0 M ga. .J ..w z j0::
0:: s z
0 Cui
0 w
~ zz::, 30
w a.
> Qzen dzw C)
:c zw j:::0:: ena. 8::E
0
0

( 'tl OJQ/ ➔-'+-' ::i I
Cl.. 0 0...
0 h Cl:'. Cl:'.·o ro 0..c:(1) .,-, 'iii u
l/1 l/1 .... 0Ill OJ t-± ➔-'±2 Vla: (l/ Q)o ..c u
a'. ro } c.:
0 ,.... QJ

5s ho

~ ru O QJ
'- ......

C ➔-' ::i (JJ
(lJ OJ « ...

V\ CJ)a. ci.. CJ) tJ
C: ±2 C ::i
0 :J C u
',j:j E C Ccu ro
(I) V) ci..

....,.... (lJ ...
u ;2: ,_ 0
<l.l CJ) a..
(X: 5i ➔-' QJ

t! ,J C Vl •-··- OJ cu Vl C0 .9 E :.2 ro
0 >
O a.. Vl «th OJ
➔-' m :.c ,,_

(l):J 0
0 E ·}

,._
>- •(l) :s: 0 0 z,

.?.: 0
,,_ ·.;.:; V\
(\J ) OJV\ QJ (1.)C C .....Cl V\ ru(lJ

<l.l QJ ;,.c: p
..c: Vl Vl roOJ ro c:: .c'- f0 _(') 0 .,.,

E ,. (C) 3 l/1
t ' (!j

0 0 l/1 "'(_J rou 01 ro C ..
•I·'

Vl $.+ o (j)
t)0 0) [>· l/1 (\)·•·' • ::J E G.G ()_ (.\) 0 55

OJ <( \.. u •.c CJ) (l/ Cl)

f··· • s n:: ·o

Czw
(!)
w
.J

Is i
D

Lu.
Ill

I«3a:
C,

z
::5
0...
0::::
LJ.J
}»
l/l
<(
L'.
_J

~
}-
WJ
_J
u>-u
G5 lfl

I ........z
<(
a::
}+
l/l
LJ.J
0
LJ.J
0...
:::i:::
LJ.J
LJ.J
0::::u
z
<(
>-0::::



r

i,.

7
(1j
c::

') .Q
¥ ),1 :t=

t>
-0
(lJ,_
0
'+-
1.'J
OJ
QJ
C:
(I)

_r::
+-'
QJ,,..,
m,.....,
Vl
.2
0....,
Vl
0.
a.r::
3
0
'<ii
_()

Cl
ru
f
...

Q)
.r:, ..

Vl
Vl
QJ eg
0. 45
CJ) u
2

C: C
C: 0
<0 I.I
0. OJoz
4' O
V) (\)ru ,._
: +-'tut

(\}

-~ (j),, f::
n O
<'.( Vl

II.
Ill
lfflcr
C,

z
::sa.
ex::
IJ.J

t
<(
L'.:
_j

3
1-
IJ.J
_j
u>u
a:i......_
z
<(
ii
I
V)
IJ.J
0
IJ.J
0..•IJ.J
IJ.J
ex::u
z±



z
::ia.
0:::
L1J

Iii
<(
L'.
_J

~
1-
w
_Juo
in r--
........z
<(z
Iii
L1J
Cl
L1Ja.
><
L1J
L1J
0:::u
z
£

II.
Ill
lffla:
C,

/

l., I
l

,r

fl

tl
I

..Y.
OJ ,q·
6u ,,.,,

C ::l
ro o>- .0

0:: ro
o
..c ro.,-., .....,
0 "'CJ
Vl ::l
OJ 0
:i 5....., ..c
3.9 a
,,_ ..C C
ro 5 o

o
OJ C C
E .."' -~
C .C: <l/o en tJ,._ ·-
> ~ C:
#

01 o
C C '.!:::

_Q Vl "'O
ro Cl.I o
•• ·- ➔-'

"fil E oi
.... "tj" "'O
s>5
u OJ Cl.I:g tu E....., .s -o
:J X :J
0 0 0
ro A>
QJ 0.. :!=
,__ /'O Vl
ro Vl ru
3
2 o O"l
Vl •I-' C
QJ <( ..2
..c ,,.,, OJ
....., C ..Y.
.,_ ·- co0 9 5
Vl 0..

·o E 32
6 3QJ 1..

2 -.
Vl OJ
Cl.I V ro$ C ,_
( +

~ ·v; (()
ro ~-- ::i0 ... .Jto V
ro OJ ro
(1/ 0. QJ
QJ Cl. ..C.c (IJ 1-,,., E ~

4. 1 2 s
Cf·· 5
C . 0
8",._ Vl

0 5
-}.J .f,..J :J
--CJ IB C

! - '
·o ,_
62o
.f-' +--' \0

%%»
·••· C CIJ
OJ r0 .x.
' co _{)o Y? o
1.... :J 4,,.1

([J 8 ~
5<IJ ,._, C:

.c ro c:_
I ::: I

r



z
::5a.
0:::
LJJ
f
Vl
<(
L'.
....J

3
f
LJJ
....Ju>uco CX)
.......z
<(
0::
ti
LJJ
Cl
LLla.
::a:::
LLl
LLl
0:::u
z
$
er::

II.
Ill
Ia:
C,

,
I
I

..JI

..JI

ii:I

XI
Ql I

zI

3} I
I

i I
I
I
I

z
0
iii
5
E
Ill:,
Ill

==Lwz

*

$
~
II.I

.,"·'·"'·!" 
V
II.I
C:
%)

5
II.

% * ua:* z z0 0..J iii iii
l

0 5 ¥ 50
E LIJ G l:t LIJ

lD
I

u to a: ::,Vl :, u
"'>- Ill z zCl: > <(
LIJ

«4,
Lil > zI-· z a:z

U.I
\I:
1tl

±
l

ro ts4 a g og

I
aw,¢g o,:..--.;c,,;x ....<'i

l
I
).
1

r



z
::5
a..
or
UJ

t-
<(x
_J

~
1-
UJ
_J
u>u
in 0\.......z
<(z
t%
UJ
Cl
UJ
a..
¢
UJ
UJ
0;u
z<a::

II.
IllIsa:
C,

"O .... , 1/l
(1) .!: .....
> o
~ C. C

+-° •
Q) ::l 0.a O u
I,., I +-'
@ 5 @.c: .c
..... _Q •-··a:; ,_ E
:2 0 (1)
::i ro VI
0 ~ >,u m vi

# o#
..C • •
....... ·;.:; µ
1/l IU C
.c (I) ~
.,-, 1/l 0
(\l (\J

0.. 0 .-t'.l) +
1/l 1/l .c:J ·I-' ,µ

85
~ c: C:
@ G.g-5i u .'::2
.. 4.1 >
0 .2 '.g
OJ -~ ::J
en :i l/l

C Q. -~'iii 1/l (U

.. ·- >g£
~ .,-, C\
f6 ()) Qi
Q. 0 . ri
>- E L:k s IO
' '°° >< Xt Lil Lei

°

l/l..c
.µ

Vl ro
0.. a..
o en

_Q C
QJ :.ic:
u ..c
5 o
+-' .Q
.'::2 'vi
-0 1/l

I (lJ
tJ w
OJ u.x (\l

¢
.::; 0
l... <(
o C.::
l/l 0£ C
(\l ,._
a. o

1/l

ro.........
(IJuro
't:
::J
1/l

ro....
::J.,-,
ro
C,._
0
"'O
(1)
>ro
Cl.
(IJ
.0 (lJ 1/l
Qj }? :S
.c ~ ru
..... @» O·a:; > OJ
-0 ·;;: ~
= '5::i l/l
0 m X_:: ..5 E
(\l ::J .C.)
..c l/l ·o
+-' V\ "O IU
Vl>.OJO.c: m Vl ,._...., 3': llJ .,!..
8o%8
CIJ mo G.J l/l
1/l ,.. ~ (\J
~ O'l ci. .c

"'O C: u
(1) ·- OJ ::J
~ -~ \.- LI)
ro ·-- ru 1/l..C X .,-.., C
Vl <\I ro ·.:;
,._ 01 .s: m
O ''
..9:!I _Q ..~ OJ

r'O ,(-J l/)

Ol 1/l ro ::1
.ii a.>'vi _,.., "O .,-.,

w '4.g
,,, CIJ Cl.. u7 o gro .... o oa, ?-1no
? di i

"" o n o
.ru F E E..
g G ro co
£; 52 5& >
() UI Ltl l.l)
V
$

m...
l-
e

.Q
+-'ro
(I),._
u
CIJa::
0
CJ\
(I)
.:£.
V1

1/l ::J

?u--E. !:/ C
.D ::i
"'O 0
cU
ro ro
1/l .c.
C 1/lro w

·;;: .::.::
..... ::l
Vl m
8
~ .8
.c (lJ

0 C
.D ::J.... ,_
g g
(I) Ct:
::0 ....,
'iii 0
1/l 0
~ a::
u
ro m
2o
"O (UCIJ __J

~ -'<-
0.. m
(I) 0
ffi 1.........
l1J V1
-:St
1/l OJ
.C C
+-' Cro o
0.. u
(I) .....
1/l Cl)
::i .r..:

I +-'
"'O OJ~ .....
(\') :.J
.c 01/l ,_

w.c I
., lJ.1 C\J
1G ro (
0. ,
>- .Q ClJI; c:n <tJ

E (lJ .:.,
CY.: V\·..0.

>cu ....
O

(\l ,.:: (U6•I ., I

E
.... QJ
o VI
C >-
0 V1

E km ,._u....,
.9. ·o
0 %
C U

·.:; QJ
::J C
0 C,_ 0
CIJ u..c ....
,f..J -~

.'::2 C

l/l
(\')

o •
C ,Q
(U 4»

g 2¥..... ..,m ,_
' O !'€&
o:; 8 0
i c
6 ..... ,_
QJ O .....
CIJ >- u\... _..., :.=::

'5 .@

0 '-8 g_
(IJ ....? oC ._,_

0 0 l/l·g_ \::'. a.i
·;:: ()J >u ..... (lJ
V1 C (lJ
CIJ QJ (lJ

"±CIJ .,-,
-g cri (I/

E 3.s (l) .c
3; ◄--'

V1 0 (lJ
~ :r: l/l
(1) ::i
a.' 9
Ol .C :J
g &g

o G
0
o,

(

(



II.
Ill
lffla:
C,

z
::ia.
0:::w
I
V)
<(
2'.
_J

3
1-
w
_Ju>u

9
........z
<(
ii:
I
V)
w
Cl
LJ..Ja.
~w
LJ..J
0:::u
z
~

Vl
(Q >.
?0 IIJE
e9

·.;:; -t,,J

n 'CV OJ·o c:
C:
0

'

(I) ~
..c OJ
+-' C
01 ....
C" 00 u

+u h

s 3
s.r.::
t'.
0z

(



r

(

1/l ..9I
ru ..a ·•-•
-0 .vi OJ
(1) 1/l (lJ
\j:.: O·,-:; o.. Vl
C
OJ )G -s

~Q 1/l \()
Q) (0 ~
...., (lJ:) m
0•-

II.
Ill
lffic
C,

,,,,,
;...-rl' lnl' ff->$

z
::s
Cl..
O::'.
u.J
I-
1/l
<(x
...J

3
I-
u.J

pg uhr ...Ju>-u
ii:i o~
.......z
<(
ex:
I-
1/l
LJJ
Cl
LJJ
Cl..
>'
u.J
u.J
O::'.u
z
<(
>-O::'.

..._____ --II
I
I ( \ DI

\\
II

-no t «

l 6 C: 7.
C -0

.g 'E •--
0 -~Q. V -t0 G

z -~ >. ~
"'

C:o
"Cl " " RI- I- 0 E ±C 1:- 01 <II cQI .!!J "' C ± g >.0) ·ro E ·.::;

-0 fQ) . ' 3 5
·;:

%_J I- 0. .;j

\.__
..,_____,____.,,.



z
:5a.
er:
I.J..J
I-
l/l
<(
L'.
_J

3
I-
LJ.J
...Ju>-uco (::!
--....z<er:
I-
l/lw
0
LJ.Ja.
:::IC'.
I.J..J
I.J..J
0:::u
z
$er:

Lu.
Ill
lffla:
C,

II D

k

D·~1nw!·\,
C ~ c::.,.00 -0C "_;j 5 ·--0 a. -~·,:;o u ..::(.,.8 ;; C::o~ .= "i! >- c

" .. e~"O .: ~ f- 1l E "C c:- -0 "' a, C: <QJ ~ tt1 C C i e >- ffen ·- E o z % ·;: "t)
QJ ~ ·c ~ ·x ..

C 3.J I- 0.. VI w ~ w V>,
'

..c:
en a.,
E _,..,

Ol O'l .....,
C 82
'ti\ ro ~·x -o >
a., C i'il
.... ::i :1:
0 0 C
~ ';
~ ~ cu,o ..c
(1J cou ....
:::i ro ..cura

<U

(



r

(

•-'u
(]J
C

4 C
0u
V1

r .c
,j,J• r1J\ CL
>....
ro

·.;:;
·, . , ....

Q).,....

II.
Ill
lffla:
C,

z
::ia.
er:
LLJ
I-
VI
<(
2'.
..J

3
I-
LLJ
..Ju>-u
a:i (2,
z
<(
ci::
t
LLJ
0
LLJa.
<
LLJ
LLJ
0::u
z
$
er:

C 6 •0 "OC •;:; C ·c ·--0 0. 0 0 -~·;:; 0 -~ t'0. - 0. V
0 "ta 0 e C:o3?2£ >, C

"O ., 3 R't) ......... 0 E eC zg CD C <Q) $$¥ . e " $f01 % 5 "O
QJ ±%es C 3
-' ~ uJ .;;.._,. .. ____.,__., ___,...

D



r

• ~....
ro (IJ....,+-' cuC:

Ez(LI

E '-
C1JC >0 0•-
(IJ·s:
Un -.c:: o(1)
·- · Cl)C ,.__

Vlr 0ro ,. Q,..r.: V1 ru 0.... ....,.... Q) ::J Ct.0) ...., .'C: C: .c >..Q! (LI
Q) 5'iii
> r.:• cu V\ <!JI·- (1J ,.._ .., 01 I... Vl

,._ 4o
C C: l. .x.2> ,,.,

Cl) Cl) '.j.:j :::l
0

,._ ,,..
uru 0 .c E V1 .QE , ....

'5z <V ,._> C (J)
(IJ C: QJ: ...., u 0 6» QJ cc Ol (IJ >Q.. 0 ..c (1J C: .!::! 5 0 Ol, .. G 5 ..c 'iii --.... (1J0 », Vl C

,.... E .._ C V\ ·.;;:; (1J ru »0 (1J 0 :::i ?!: I.I) (LI±- (l) 4-· ....
LI

,._ Gz ro V) C u V1 ·o (1J <V .........c .c n w 0 .3: Vl (0 a::: C:)) Ol2 Q.
,,-, .x.

0.. '.;:i r\1 0 :::, CJ)
Cu : ruVl

,__ ru r l) 0 Q, ,..
I- • zI.I) 0 > (IJ , ..

M. ·.;,:)w ru - ::a (1) Q) <( ru Ol ,__Vl0 ""O 'tJ
I...') , .. I "CJ > LJ.I (!) 'iii rl,l<V 'iti ,.._ i (IJ tJ C 0 LJ.. V1 ...... Cl.I > L .. (() (l) z •I-.J e ...__ 01z ro I- 0 ,. C :::J (! _I ....J Vl L: V)( \, .D (\j I.I) (l) CJ) z . .-- Ua::: O.I

O d» V) (1J (l) O o 0 ·o <llI- <!J ·o
(!J > 0 ··o tJ ' -~ Cr'. f C 0)--~ 0 ',j:'.j a::: ru (0 .x. .n I- V'l t;.:.: ..c:>- ,._ .....

ha ,..
, '7 (lJ 'i,i u en (1) n::: ••er:: , >» CJ) 0 V) U nJ• I I (\) w QJ .<( •• Cl) ....J ...., ..... ,. (IJ z2°: o 0 ii 0.1 z <( <f u Cl.. I a I..... 1/l

1--ix: a:::
0a. I-

II.
Ill
lffia:
CJ

z
<(
....Ja.
er::
Lu)
I-
Vl
<(x
....J
z
Cr'.
I-
UJ
....Ju>-uco ;:t
........z
<(
0::
I-
l/)
UJ
0
UJ
a.
~
LJJ
LJJ
0::u
z
$
0::



II.
Ill
lffia:
C,

(I)
a
Ero
bi
-0ro CJ). (I)::r: c
·ro z z,._

::5k ro. I- C.
a..
er:w
I-
l/l
<(
L'.
....JzVl er:,._
I-

<1)
>

LuIz
....J,._
u0
>-Vl

~O
0C:

o::lro
-......-:;:; en z± c <('G

Vl ii:0 0 I-+-' ,._s u l/l..... w# <1) o(I)
,._ ,._ wro

f a..0.. l/)
<1)

0) :::.:::-0 "O LuJro ro LiJ
,._ ,_

er:\.!J \.!JI
I uC: ◄-'0 <( z<z er:ro

+-'c
(I)

E
C:
0,._
5cc
LLJ
.c
O'l
:l
0,._
.c
+-'

£ro
01 •$

"O Vl C ·--'iii at
,_ IU

tcu (I)
V10 I..
0 C: 0co <( ....

ts~~"CJ (I) u
(I) >

(I) u◄-' ·.;:::;
c:n E,ro 'vi
t)>(I) C: •(I)Li] l/) co



II.
Ill
lffia:
C,

z
$
0..
0:::
LJ..J
I-g
x
...J

~
1-
1.J..J
...Ju>-u
iii......_
z
<(
a::
l7i
uJ
0
LJ..J
0..
<
LJ.J
LJ.J
0:::u
z
%

-. O
ClJ C
s,_ ,._

:J (1)
w.. .c

•.Jci ,_.,_. '"2
4o
ClJ Cu rll

k e
0tJ ·.;:;ro ro.c ,_

E o
rtl ci..
0) ><
...J (lJ

o
t: u·c ·en
C 0ro -
a. 8
(lJ (\)

..C vi' vi« @)
C ClJ ,._,
0 ;: :J

-~ ::i e
E Vl

«
0 u <-'E ,

Q. (lJ
(\J rll Vl.c ,_ 0

...., 01 Cl.
0 0«8i

C ,.., ClJ
0 vi ..C
94
~ ·;; 0
rtl (lJ _G'

.0 """ ·-·
vi :o

vi....,
C
(1)

E
C

.SI'
G



z
::5
0..
er.::
LJJ

t%
<(x
....J

~
1-
LJJ
....Ju>u
G5....__
z
<(
ii:
tii
LJ.J
0
LJ.J
0..
~
LJ.J
LJ.J
er.::u
z±

II.
Ill
lfflcr
C,

C
5 O&
'6
ro QJ
€.
·;:: Vl
0.. ..c
"O .....
QJ ::I

"O 0
C l/l
QJ C
E o
e%
0 +-'u ro
QJ u
0:: ..2

CJ)
C

..2
ro

s
+-'
..c
+-'ro
0.
Q)
o
'iii "O
...., ro
Q) 0
~ 0:::
t
5
o O
Q) .....J
g
c 0
Q) Q)gg
E ..c
0 .....u ::I
Q) 0

0::: l/l

CJ)
C·-s;
3
6%

'ijf

r



z
::5
a.
er::w
I
V)
<1'.x
_J

~
1-
LI
_Ju>u
ii5-.....z
<1'.z
t5w
0
LuI
Cl.Lu!LuI
0::u
z
;1:
0::

II.
Ill
lffia:
C,

ODD
4-
0
(l)

"O
'G
..c
t
0
C
0.....,
l/l
$
..c
l/l

·m
l...

I-
zro
E·;::

Cl.
"O
QJ
U
• ¥
(l) (l)

€
E o
0 C8g

er:: er::

t,
(I)
C
C
0u.....ro
..c.....,
l/l .....:::i (lJ
o. E
l/l 0.
-;;; 0
.;:; (l)

@
(lJ "O
±
l/l :::i

5
"O 0
(l) .....
"'CJE '@
(lJ I
E cE ro
8 E
QJ ·;::er:: Cl.

-2:l
'vi
Ol
C·;::

0 (l)....., "O
(lJ C·-·- ..c
>, .....
t :J
QJ _g
0. .....
9
Q. .....
(lJ C..c (lJ...., E

%
(lJ IB vi
Ol C2$
QJ QJ Q...c ..... .....,....., ro C
....., "O (lJ

32£o
€8%
98%8

Ol
Cz
5z
(l)

"O
(l)
C
Cro
Cl.
l...
0

.....
C
(l)

ro E,._ Q.
....., 0

±z
t, "O
±
0

"O
(l)

"Oc
QJ

E
E
0u
(l)er::

..c
Ol
:::i
0,._
..c.....
l/l.....u
(l)
C

G8@
...., ro
ro..c.....

0.....,
C
O·-a (lJcocu
C C8 ro
o e
ro 4-t og

"O 'vi
:J ..c8
....., 0
ro C
..c (lJ....., ..c
QJ .....
Ol C• o
>-
.0 ·ro
"O l...
C +-'
ro >-s
2

t, 0
·- uX (l)
UJ l/l

If
I.

r



z
::ia.
o:'.
LJ..J
1-
Vl
<(x
...J

~
1-
LJ..J
...Ju>u
in.......z<er:
t
LJ..J
a
LJ..Ja.
::0:::
LJ..J
LJ..J
o:'.u
z
;1:
o:'.

I&.
Ill
lffia:
CJ

ODD

.....,
QJ
QJ,._.....,
l/l±
0

·ro,._
,._, C
..c 0.... ·..::;
ro ro
fD" C
'tJ ~
'vi 0

0u

G,._.....,
QJ
QJ,._
tn ·roz
-o'lu
QJ a..
"O QJ
C "'O
Q) 'vi

oE QJ
0 C
U C
QJ ro

er: 0..

"O
C
ro

"'Oro
0er:
C
ro

ro·.;:;
C
QJ
'tJ
'iii
QJ,._
'+-
0

.c
± G0 e
Q) 0£
C QJ
0 :5
l/l 0>- ,._
gt
l/l QJ·= +-'s 9g
I- ~ :::l
C:-- 0 0
ro E aJ
E o
& l/l ~

e
Q) ·.;::; QJ

5 g-
Q) "'O CJ)E C C
E ~ ·.;:;
0 Q) l/l
? $
& > e

C ro O'l
ci:i ro s :::i c> o O2 o:: 1u .... ·-

• d
o u5

QJQJQ) C_o
...., "'O > :::l :::iz5& 6

..c
t' o
0 C
C ·-s;
E '5z2 QJ
...... 0
l/l .....,

:t l/l.c t,
l/l ~

E
,._ 0
I- u
i::' 'tJ
ro C
e%
' Ua. 'iii
'tJ .c
8 5#o ±
QJ l/l C
E o o
E ~ 'iii
6 @ 'u QJ "CJ

8og
<( ~ l/l

e
ro Ci'6 @,._ 'tJ

a<5

vi
"O
C
ro
'tJ
QJ
C
$
0

I>
.!::!
.0
:::la..
>·;::
ro
E·;::
a..

C
roe
c
QJ
"O
'iii
.c
t:
0
C
C
0
"O
2rou
..2
@
I
~
ro
E·c
a.
'tJ
QJ
'tJ
C
QJ

E
•0 QJu <lJ& o

r



0
ry

z
::5
0.
0:::w
f
l/)
<(
x
.....J

~
f
w
.....Ju>u
iii----.z
<(
ii:
ti;
w
0w
0..
'::£wwa::u
z<0:::

II.
Ill
lfflcr
C,

.g
'iii..........
"O
(!J
C
Cro
s
'iii..........
-5 1-
ro 0
9 5.g; .!<'.?
'iii s......
(!J .c
(!J ...,s
-,!.. C
'+- 0
0 ·.;:,

ro3
e
~ 0
ci: 8

.::;
B -€i
- 'cU0 .c

·..:; Q)
u u
(!J C
C ro

--0 rou QJ
Uu •
&90) -g 'iii
:::J i-=

"O '+
(!J ro
0. (!J
...___ _J

g
-- ro
.0 0
(!J3g
%

o '5z
0... QJ

(!J
.c......
C
E...,=.c......ro
0.
-0
(!J
0.
0o
tf
(!J
>ro
0.
C
:::J
o >
C roel/l ....

3 z

CJ)
C
%
3
E
0...

4-- .c@6
I- \0
vi
(0 «-

9·c Vl
o... ro
0 (!J
...... l/l
l/l (!J

E0 (!J'-B 0.
(!J e
C 0.

6au ·;::
"O 1n
(!J :::J
"O "O
C C
@ z
E l/l

E Kl +-'
0 C (!Ju ·;:;; (!J
(!J :::J ,._
0:: Cl'.) V)

ro
C
.Q
CJ)
[I!
0...,
l/l
C
0
€
QJ
C
C
0u
[I!
:::J >....... roe
@ t
I- 0...

5
o .e.s 0:::
0:: 0
"O 0
QJ ~
5
(!J l/l

E ~
a0

9

&

x...
>. roffi 0.g
a.%
o '5z
QJ QJ

oC +-'

QJ l/l
E t,
E OJ
0 C
U C
QJ 0
0:: ~

6
"O ]!0 QJ
e G
"O D..
0 ...
0 'iiizo
ro ci
0 "Os$
0 •...... 0
c-
.Q ffi...... u

+

e
C C
o rou;:;
'iii fi:i
i-=

• ••' . '•

•

• •

I I f
•

• • •
'•

. .

•. ' •

. ;

•
• '• •

•

. •
• •
• • •
'. •
• '• •
• •

• •
' • • •

•
• • •. • ••..

• • •
'. •• '

~7

lJEER'-

I

r



1'i

z
::5
Q.

a::w
1-
1/l
<(
~
_J

~
1-
w
_Ju>uco.......z
<(
ii:tw
Clw
Q.

'UJUJa::u
z
£

II.
Ill
10a:
C,

u. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0VI £0 U) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0t t "' U') "' "' t '°(

L-e g g g 9 g g g g
.s:::...,
"O

5

L-e £e l[) 0 0 0 ae 0 0t t "' U') "' "' t '°.s::: (4...,

3 !
I I -'--

.... i 1., I
QJ >. Oro ,._ >, V) > .,-.,OJ :.:i M. C Q) >, 0 c C d>. C ro ti llJ Q) lJ I- 0 ::l nI... ·- ,. ro 't) .... ..c (l) ::l ro c:: ·.µ 0 Ir0 ,,.., :J .,-., ·•-' > C: :::i .... s.:. E () u co€ 0 '- 0 t: '§: "l"J »b u·o .... 1/l t.« -~ 0 ,., ., .. ,

QJ -~ ',j;j :.i 0 ti·;: st (1J V) 0 E C u u vi' \... u .... c. Q, J ·V)('I) 1:) ro u (1J ::i ::; ::2 Cl. ,I-' Q)Cl. c6 l[) .c % OJ ,_ ·o C ::l Vl >-C .... C: G 0 l/l ,_,
C .Q CJ) ,. C: .0 ...:x::

0 r-- OJ
,,_

•I·--' u V) ru -+-' :::l-~ 0 I ,,_ ·o ro 3 (() C V) 0 (1J
Q) V) E 't 0 0 ·o <lJ c:: C E C u ro (\j ..,
l/l .... "CJ a. I... 3 ru
0 ro F: ·ro t".. ,,._ OJ (1J rt)

_,_ ,_ O () c .,-., E:::i v) • I- •" : ::iQ. ::J .... .. ro ro ...:x:: >- ro ) 0 u >,0 .... z V) . .... >. 5z0 c:r ,.,
•I·-' r:.: ..c u :» ... 0 ..,

V) to 0 ...,_ Q) u "CJ l/l OJ .Q rtJ ro I'll .() $ Vl <1'. 0 ,,_, cu c: 0c.. (l) Q) C QJ
,.. 5 E ,. 0 0 lj... E I-l/l ... (1J vi' <lJ E'-1·-

.., 0 ;;- .0 { I ' di u .c Q,
0 ro Q) ra (J ,"' \..1 5.

E. >- V) >- C OJ
,_ +> 0.r.: ·a:; .., 6. CL ,.__ <O •f-' .Q ,., (.) 5 f'tl, ... m OJ 0 Ns: h .,- , .... n 3 cu >. .. , fO o. C ±i vi ,_ C: z., .. >, .£ 0

,_
.0 ::J .... ;-J ·.;:; ·1: 0 V) .0

0) ·c, OJ ,., Q) u '- 'iu ·--,_ ' ' (JJ 0 G 0 0
'I vi - ..C cu CJ) C: l/l 01 -t·' • "(.J C: ·o \..) 3 •- • ru t'OJ ·o ro (1J • ±: 0 OJ Ul •• .... 'SJ ·i:: ....., ,_ "C.1C ro i .9. :·-· c. •i-' ro ,., C C ::, (!) l/l co 0 > ' C:U VI

0 Q) (0 M. <( OJ > ·µ T) vi
OJ C (./). cu M, C. CJ) ru Rro ro... u "CJ Ee :::1 C (IJ u r:: :<. 0 I I, , ·o r::

0 Q) ..:.( O i
,,.._ 0 ru ru QI :» u t (0 ·o Cl f.,., V) C OJ .9 .Q ,.. l/l .... (i) 11.l to C 0 CJ OJ 0 f. ..; (\) c:: ro "CJ ... , Vl .9 3 (\'l l/l 0 +' :.i •(!J ·u QI f: .!:0. ·o . (jJ C .Cl ,_ -:-'

·l,f) l.,J Vl u ....•• C e C ::J ((J rti 0 s(\) C ro '- .0 >. 0 () M-. ()J C f .I . n:J ,. ro . ' () 1./) ,., ,., t .. ' (/) LJ 0

- -- ... •·••-· ----- --- --·· ·-· ------ ·-
C % 8 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0o q g 0 0 3 0.Q ci 0 0 ci ci ci $ $ 8 0 U) U) U) U) 0 0·- ..c 3 r-- 3 y "'· t U)Cl. Cl 6 d OJ °' ci o0 ·- U) r-- F.~6 # '° 0 OJ 0 r-- : 0 t

.'Jl VI r-- VI ": °'""' V V % ..f""' ""' V)
u 5,_ -- --- ---- --- - ·-- -- ---· - --
C 0 0 0 8 0 £ 0 0 0 0

0 3 8 g 0 0 0 o,Q ci 0 ci ci ci 0C S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0'a % 0 0 8 Lil. ~ U) U) U) %0 0 6 6 \I) ()\ ui o5
...J 0 3 '° U) 0 U) "' t U) U)r:. O:? "l O:? °'t# ~ VI V) '° '°· "'V) V) V, ""' VI VI VI o8 ""'

'--- -·-- -·---- -·- -·- ···--- --· - ·-·-
Q)

% % % £ 8 £ 0 8 0u o 3€ u\ U) U)

0 0 0 0 l;. l;. !;, 5 0

E 3 8 U) 3 "':t: V) V)
C::, VI .'Jl

-- --- ·- ..___ .,

Q) 0 8 0 £ 0 0 0 0 0• o 3 q q 0 o oo 0 ci 0 8 ci 0 0... ;:: 0 0 0 U) °' °' °' U)0.. 0 i 8 .'Jl 8 u% ""' V) V) "':t:! ...J V)
'C ~ 3::,
.___ -· --- ··- --·--· ·-·- -·-· ·-·· - .

V1 ¥V1 <I) al al i Q) Q):t:! V1"O V1 V1C "' LL. <I) <I) <I)
::, <I) Ol "' LL. u. u. LL u.

:r: .s e- g ... ... ... 1i; ...V1 <I) "' "' "' "' "'@ V1 "O ::, cu cu QJ QJ .,
8 C er C .s c .S C

I- :::) VI :::; ...J ...J _J :::;,_-- ·-- -· -- ._.__ , -·- ·-· -· ·-· ...
0 0 0 0 0 OJ 0 r-- '°0 U) °' U) U) '° t "' t.., 3 "l. °' U) o '° 3 OJ ,....

C t:: # ~ ;:t ui i:, 6 ~ ,....
0 U)

E 0 3
<( ..f .....

'-- -·- ... ·-·- -- --- ·-- . ··-· ·--·-· . ..
t p! ~ OJ ,- ,- ~ ~ LL V1 23± ...J _g/ ro :-:e E E

E 'iii &:::i 0z I-

'iii
a ......,
QI QI
Ol V1g >· "'.¥ ..Cl

VI ei 1i; "iii 0Ol zC LI. "O ;:: ♦J

'iii Ill ...J "' C 1'! t:01 u. E 0
Ill C i:'.' u ru 09 Ill ...J l ., u

V1 cu 'iii ?> "' Vl 0
"O u VI V1 "Cl i:o ;.
II] QI Ill 0 II] C: ;::- ;::- 'tJ CQI "O

II] ... E 0 C C 0a. u QI :2 ,.J:r: g ,.
~

u ::J ::J 'E <(QI • QI 0 0 ...,
'iii Z' 1J cu l/l u u > 'tJ 01 5C: QI

9 o $2 .l2 QI 'tJ C:
t.':: ... i ..'] .!<( :::) u ,- I-

E
QJ,_
OJ.s::

.t

I_")
(l)
C oi
'r~ ,.,

r(J,. [OJ,_, .... ,
(1J V)·o (\)

ro
+-'....
(I)u
C. '

o '

(\J,..
' o

,. .• .1 OJ
9
lll OJ.r. l/l
1- m

%
C Vl >

,Q (0 (!)
C .0
·- QJ ..c:
0. • .2
o't5,""%%
C l/l E.9. .i
+i @
u 0
:.J u....... ., .....
l/l ro
f0 ,.. ,
o #

.t
%

"C) ,.._
<lJ .:2
iu I~E
';.:i
Vl
OJ

OJ
> V)

0) OJ,_
0 :3..,◄·•-' (0
OJ OJ m.., ,,_ ,_
(0 (!)

E r0 >
'- 0'.;::} ...,

OJV) _,_
(lJ 0 .c....

ci.i ..,
(!)

> C 0)OJOJ E C
I ro.c (lJ ..c.g u u

.c (0 >
ro 0. ro
.0

,,., Eu
V)

(t1 C
X _Q)E OJ

I- V)
(I) OJ

i .c tJ.....
.9 'U cu

C ,_e ro ....,,_
1:) 0l[) (I) ....,- C1/F C

·o CJ) OJ'vi EC OJro ·o Q)
uc .9 C.Q ro

'iii >e ... "CJ
f <(

0 <lJ +'..... .c Vl
1/F h 0
C: -;:; u
<V r.: >
OJ :) (0

3 E4-' vi
(I) +-'..a lJ ro
(l)

Q) ,_
we do, .. 0 <lJCl) l,.• ..c.c 0.. -~

3 C .,-.,
Q) 0 ro
E ·.;:; ..c

u ~0 :.JV) l,.. l,...

Q) 4-' 0
V) do

.0 C >0 0 <-'..., u C

vi
(\)
01u:
.()

V)
:J ·o
0 C
·;:; ro
Cl) vi
I- V)o.. m
Cl) e-.s (!)eg
"C) :J

Cl) vi·o Ol
C C::
Cl) 'viE Vlg
0 u
u +-'
(!) (l)
I- (!)...
V) +-'

.g! v
:t:: (lJ

·c; ~ro ._
,,_ 01

I

#G #
l...., vi
"C) .:,c
Q) 11)

#
ci.i TJ
- t·o o
C ..a
ro "tJ
~ (!)
ro •-'
i. (.,_, >
"CJ .9:!
OJ (!)

¥4
OJ roE (!)

Ee E
o rou ,_
Q) .,..,
,.. ..s::.
OJ ....,
£5
0 CJl...,_ C:
V) 0
C ro
0 v

%·o..•1:;
0 -.~ \ ...
V) 11)
0 'CJu c::
(!) 0
> u
@

I tJ
..C: C
_Q'l <0
..c: ~
"CJ I
Q) ro

.0 E:E ·r.:
Cl.

CU Vl% 6
rtl-0

Vl E ·§
3%£
Ge

•s'0 o d
, j

Vl OJ 'fJ
0 .r OJ
U I- lll

r

(



z
::i
0..
0:::
LLJ
1-
l/)
<(
x
...J

3
1-
LLJ
...Ju>u a-....z
<(
c2
t
LLJa
LLJ
0..
::.::'.
LLJ
LLJ
0:::u
z
5
0:::

II.
Ill
lffi
II:
C,

4-'C
U (UE.
'Ci t.
)

<JJ St· .9.> I OJ
+-> CJ >u ., (\J
(ij 'lfl TJ

(lJ
.c,,..,
%~ ....
, f
5 O
Ill C: C
CJ 01 0
....J V'I ·..;:;
vi ru ro
o o @
O» @) Og

l/l
(LI,_
::i

E "Ju
Ol (LI
(lJ 4-
l/l
..c:u
(0
tu!

<LI o
U OJ C
C QJ ro
QJ C 'U
h.---·- - ro6#
(LI ('(J ~::J ,_
"CJ ...... _Cl!
Qi ..,_ -
h 0

ec OJ
0·.;:;
u
::}

ks »
l/l ......

e %
8 E
tJ :i: C
C O 2
o ]·5
~ .Cl C:
'vi 13 0)

(]) "Cl
"Cl ::i
(LI - -E,,_
(LI
..0

•0·.;:;
u
(])
V)

><(lJ
C
(l)
...c:....,
C
"CJ
(lJ
r.:
....,
::i
0
VJa. .
Cl.)...,
Vl
(lJ
..c..,
CJ)
C

3
0
0,,_
(!J::a
G
Vl
0
CL
(lJ

E
0
)
(\}

..CJ

3:
V1
•I-'«.
(\)

E
I!)
C;7
llJ,...
+J
VJ
0

l.J

rUs
0

0i......
::;:i
g

-.
·o
(lJ
7;J
::i
u
C
l/l
(\}
CJ)
C
(IJ, ..
C
.Q
c·o.
0....,
Vl
0
I
(JJ
C:
I-

vi,..._
0.....,
I..)
ro

't-
01
C:

3
..9.
0
4-
QJ
..c,,..,
.r.::....,
s
co
QJ......
ro
6
0
l/l
V1
(\J

>....,
c:
6
£!
(\}u
C
::i
Q)
..c. , ....
0....,
Q)
:J
"CJ
Q)....
rtl
QJ

s
ro

}

I I

r

( '



7

z:s
a.
0::w
I
V)
<(
L'.
..J

~
1-
w
..Ju>uro..____

z
<(
a:
1-
l/)
w
0wa.
::::.:'.'.ww
0::u
z
5
0::

II.
Ill

I ffl)c
C,

Cl)
V\ro..c
0..

ro
l..
I-

Vl
., 01

±, c
'vi
Vl,o...u
(}J
,:,
ru,_
CJ) J.
/., I
((J 0
NI

0
0
'°o o

O
0 I").
6 f;l,
O
0 O

I 08 co,
0 ...... t
0 10
-.:;J· ,--

VF 1/') ,

II II

b
1/l
0u

0
0 0 O
0 0 O
}g«8"" '° 0(:::i -.:I; co,...: ,- 1.n t.rinOri ;-o 9
0 0 O 0
(Y) 0 L{) 0
66,;;Fq_co Lf) h p
CO "sl' N Nu n /% /%
II II II II

co
I

s,;J·
Vl ,.:.::
cu ru.g s:
·r:: we
..o cu
V1 0
Ol .Q
£. Oy
Vl rue >o d»
.x. OJ ru

% 0. %e%,u J ,_ 0
£ U co
@ 7,'£

1 0 ,...,
. iii (J'\ -.,j · ,.. '

'I

c;
0·c
Cl.
0

QJ
(\J

Vl Vl
(lJ vi·o _,_,
:J C
\J (lJ
C [

en
QJ
Vl

•
•

•
• •

•
• '•

•• •
•

V1
t u
..:.::
(lJ
<lJ
I...
U >- Vl;
ru ii,
~- E c:,.... ·x cu
o o E
..C ,._ Ol
,.:; Q. (lJ

0 ~ V1
C Vl -~
<U C .r:::.c ru ,_,
..__. a L..

0 g
C .:!= +-'
0 . V1
ru ~ o

C Uhag
&

€..c (lJ ·.;::;,,._, -0 Vl
~ ru QJ

5.%
5 %i
8 o a

~ (IJ.8 -I••' >
s., o 'ii
(IJ C ru
~ ru E
5 P

-o m (\J

~ .c: ~

2#e
::i '70 C ,_
V1 0 .,.,,6e C: Vl
\.I•- 'V) •m
·ro ~ OJ
} G
6 6
,J ...I ~ \. ;..-

c ,... N
QJ U (
E l.() 01
C1'I ,_ (.l.
Q) 0
Vl "sJ'
(IJ
C:
0
Vl
QI-:·.;::;
C +..Jcu C

:2 E ·cfu C"J) rtl
OJ 't'J

0, Vl C
Vl ::J:E ..c: -hl

}- }

UJ ,_, '"CJ.r:: m <!J
+-' VI 0
0 r:: c: l'J

Q ! -;g ?8
n g_ .Y.) ·Si

r

(



l/)
Q)
l/)
(iJ
..c
0.

II.
Ill
lffla:
C,

z
::5a.
er:
UJ

t%
<(
:a:
....J

~
1-
UJ
....Juo
G5,
z
<(
ci::t
UJ
0
UJa.
:::.::'.
UJ
UJer:u
z
$er:

a
I··· ~

(lJ

C
(I) l1J
(I) ,••

g ?z '<iJ ..Q ro
.o ro §

, o
ru ·-h
(I) C

..c .D (JJ
.,... >.2'° ro vi;:: E ~
(iJ ...., -0
£ &l C
lot,,.. -~ C1J
0 LI) (0

c.: .c Ti
o Kl <ii't3 r-: E
:.i ·a EJ':; C -
L'l IG 0
C: ...... uo (li ·uu (\) (iJ

±r; r ;
<·-' ,1:1 0
45{5 dz<+ C,z i@ %

(;.l)
o •·u .Q
(I) m
St· r.:
0

C
.9...,
ro
>l,..
CIJ .....:

@
0. 1-
(JJ ..Y...c (IJ
• .., (I)

% 60
$s
·a o >
"vi ·.;:; Q'.
~ ~ (JJ
> ±? £5
.0 l1J
l-.ro
0.)
C:
0
+-'

?eG
0 ::i It\3 @±
ClJ C ro
e (JJ

0 ::I .0
1..1 o ru

C ::J
lll ro
.c >
u m

.c (lJ
?,'. .n

(



5
ii:

i 4~ 0. ±'U( l t¥
C .il

·! OU

; t¥
l !.. •
~
C

- I



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request to approve the transfer of Public Health
Manager to Public Health Specialist in the 2022
budget and approval for hiring of a Public Health
Specialist

MEETING DATE

June 21, 2021

ITEM NUMBER

G.6.

Background: Recently, the position vacancy for the Franklin Health Department Director of
Health and Human Services was filled. The candidate selected, Lauren Gottlieb, was
previously in the position of Public Health Manger within the City of Franklin Health
Department. This transition left a gap in current staffing. The position previously held by
Lauren Gottlieb, is identified in the current 2022 budget as a Public Health Manager. Before
the position being a Public Health Manager position, it was a Public Health Specialist (PHS)
position. Based on current staffing needs, and department priorities, hiring a Public Health
Specialist in lieu of a Public Health manager is advantageous at this time.

The PHS in Franklin will have immediate impact on continuing work on a robust and
comprehensive Community Health Assessment and the subsequent Community Health
Improvement Plan (as required by Wisconsin Chapter DHS 140.05 and Wisconsin Statute
Chapter 251.05(3)(a)(c)) for 2021-2025, as well as assist in data collection and analysis of
community health trends. They will also work closely with staff on current health education
and outreach initiatives including emergency preparedness, substance misuse, mental health,
and increased physical activity.

The PHS position description was approved by the Franklin Board of Health on May 13, 2019.
An updated job description of the PHS was submitted and approved by the Personnel
Committee on May 20, 2019. The job description was then approved by the Common Council
on June 4, 2019. There are no requested changes to the position description at this time.

Fiscal Note: This full time position will fill the current budgeted vacancy within the Health
Department left by a Public Health Manager. Projected Salary level is Grade 6, $56,166- $73,016
the vacated position salary was Grade 8, $66,385- $87,961. The Public Health Specialist will be
responsible for a portion of the Health Department's emergency preparedness coordination
and will be partially grant funded from the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Grant.

Options: 1. Approve the transfer of Public Health Manager to Public Health Specialist in the
2022 budget and approve hiring of a Public Health Specialist

2. Not approve

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends the approval of
the transfer of Public Health Manager to Public Health Specialist in the 2022
budget and approval for hiring of a Public Health Specialist.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED



The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion (1) Approve the transfer of
Public Health Manager in the 2022 budget to Public Health Specialist and approval for hiring
of a Public Health Specialist.

Health Department: LG



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE

June 21, 2022

REPORTS & Business View Magazine Franklin Feature
RECOMMENDATION Supported by Key Vendor Advertising

ITEM NUMBER

G.7.
The City of Franklin is invited to be the public sector feature in Business View Magazine with an 8-10-
page spread. This feature is included in the magazine and is also packaged as a high-resolution, stand
alone brochure, complete with custom front and back covers, that we will own and can use on our
website, in social media channels, emails and direct mails, and other marketing initiatives. Other
Wisconsin communities that have been featured in the magazine since 2020 include: Sun Prairie,
Watertown, Janesville, Plover and Manitowoc.

The Franklin feature will be part of a Wisconsin series that focuses on community and economic
development and growth, with main topics that could include: neighborhood development (new
construction), workforce/business development, transportation, healthcare, education infrastructure, and
green initiatives. Business View Magazine has also collaborated with the International Economic
Development Council, which is the leading economic credentialing organization in the US.

There is no cost to the City for Franklin to be featured. Business View Magazine generates revenue
through third-party advertisements, targeting key vendors who do business with the City of Franklin.
Should we move forward, these key vendors will receive an Invitation Letter with an opportunity to
share in the spotlight by way of a corporate ad (sample letter attached). This keeps advertising specific
to Franklin and its infrastructure development and growth.

Business View Magazine is a multi-platform source of news, profiles & option for executives. It is
distributed monthly by email and web to over 840,000 executive subscribers throughout North America.
Readership is primarily C-and VP-Level executives and finance & procurement managers in industries
such as Construction, Energy, Retail, Manufacturing, Supply Chain & Logistics, Healthcare,
Franchising, Energy, Food & Beverage, Public Sector and Green Business.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the Business View Magazine Franklin Feature, which will be supported through Key
Vendor Advertising sold by Business View Magazine.

Economic Development Department- JR



City of Franklin
Economic Development Department

«Company»

«Fax»

ATTN: «Name» «Surname»

Dear «Name»,

The Franklin Economic Development department is working with Business View Magazine on a 6-8-page
feature in an upcoming edition. This lead Public Sector feature will showcase Franklin and what a great
place it is to do business and will include some focus on the importance of our strategic suppliers and
partners.

As a key supplier, I would like to extend this invitation to promote your business with an advertisement
to appear within the article and subsequent marketing brochure as a preferred vendor of choice for the
City of Franklin. This customized brochure can be utilized for further marketing initiatives and we will
also share it you for your own marketing initiatives. Together we can gain exposure while expanding our
digital footprint through enhanced search engine results, back links and social media.

Business View Magazine is a global leader in multi-platform Business to business profiles, news and
opinion with more than 840,000 subscribers across North America. To view a current issue please visit
their website at www.businessviewmagazine.com. Marcus VandenBrink is the Publisher of Business
View Magazine and you can contact him directly at 239-220-5554 or via email at
marcus@businessviewmagazine.com for additional information and pricing.

Thank you for considering this opportunity and for your ongoing support for the City of Franklin. We
value our relationship with you and look forward to continuing our strategic partnership into the future.

Sincerely,

John G. Regetz
Director of Economic Development
City of Franklin

Celebrating Quality ofLife 9229 West Loomis Road Franklin, WI53132-9630 P (414) 427-7566 franklinwi.gov



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Resolution Approving the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources NR-208 Compliance Maintenance

Report for 2021

MEETING
DATE

06/21/22

ITEM NUMBER

G.8.

Each year the City is required to file a Compliance Maintenance Annual Report with the Wisconsin
Department ofNatural Resources. Wisconsin Administrative Code Chapter NR 208 is more commonly
known as the Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) Rule for publicly and privately owned
domestic wastewater treatment works. The CMAR is a self-evaluation tool that promotes the owner's
awareness and responsibility for wastewater collection and treatment needs, measures the performance
of a wastewater treatment works during a calendar year, and assesses the level of compliance with
permit requirements. Attached is the 2021 Annual Report.

It is important to meet the stipulation from the DNR that this report be filed electronically on or before
June 30, 2022. The report requires approval by the governing body and such resolution is attached.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt a Resolution Approving the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources NR-208
Compliance Maintenance Report for Year 2021.

S&W UTILITY/mr



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES NR-208 COMPLIANCE MAINTENANCE REPORT FOR YEAR 2021

WHEREAS, it is a requirement under a Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(WPDES) permit issued by the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources to file a Compliance
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) for its wastewater collection system under Wisconsin
Administrative Code NR 208;

WHEREAS, it is necessary to acknowledge that the governing body has reviewed the
Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR); and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide recommendations or an action response plan for all
individual CMAR section grades (of"C" or less) and/or an overall grade point average (<3.00).

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the Common Council of City of Franklin that the
following recommendations or actions will be taken to address or correct problems/deficiencies of
the wastewater treatment or collection system as identified in the Compliance Maintenance Annual
Report (CMAR):

( 1) Continue to identify inflow and infiltration (I & I) to the City's sanitary sewer system
and take action to eliminate all I & I detected.

(2) Continue the City record ofhaving no bypasses or overflow.

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
21day of June by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 21day of June.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System

Financial Management

Last Updated: Reporting For:
6/14/2022 2021

1. Provider of Financial Information
Name:

Peggy Steeno I
Telephone:

H414-427-7504 I (XXX) XXX-XXXX
E-Mail Address
(optional):

Psteeno@ franklinwi.gov I
2. Treatment Works Operating Revenues
2.1 Are User Charges or other revenues sufficient to cover O8M expenses for your wastewater
treatment plant AND/OR collection system ?
• Yes (0 points) □□
o No (40 points)

If No, please explain:

I I
2.2 When was the User Charge System or other revenue source(s) last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:
[021 I 0

• 0-2 years ago (0 points) □□
o 3 or more years ago (20 points)□□
o N/A (private facility)

2.3 Did you have a special account (e.g., CWFP required segregated Replacement Fund, etc.) or
financial resources available for repairing or replacing equipment for your wastewater treatment
plant and/or collection system?
• Yes (0 points)
o No (40 points)
REPLACEMENT FUNDS rPUBLIC MUNICIPAL FACILITIES SHALL COMPLETE OUESTION 31

3. Equipment Replacement Funds
3.1 When was the Equipment Replacement Fund last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:
[020 I

e 1-2 years ago (0 points)□□
o 3 or more years ago (20 points)□□
o N/A
If N/A, please explain:

I I
3.2 Equipment Replacement Fund Act1v1ty

3.2.1 Ending Balance Reported on Last Year's CMAR $ I 462,284.00
3.2.2 Adjustments - if necessary (e.g. earned interest, $ I o.0d
audit correction, withdrawal of excess funds, increase
making up previous shortfall, etc.)
3.2.3 Adjusted January 1st Beginning Balance l$ 462,284.0O
3.2.4 Additions to Fund (e.g. portion of User Fee,
earned interest, etc.) + E 31,497.ool



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System Last Updated:

6/14/2022
Reporting For:

2021

3.2.5 Subtractions from Fund (e.g., equipment
replacement, major repairs - use description box
3.2.6.1 below*) - } 70,988.00/]
3.2.6 Ending Balance as of December 31st for CMAR

422,793.00Reporting Year k
All Sources: This ending balance should include all
Equipment Replacement Funds whether held in a
bank account(s), certificate(s) of deposit, etc.
3.2.6.1 Indicate adjustments, equipment purchases, and/or major repairs from 3.2.5 above.

2005 F450 - $40,302
2007 Dodge Caravan - $9,434
2001 Jeep Grand Cherokee - $14,430
John Deere L120 Lawn Mower - $2,199
Exmark Mower - $4,633 0

3.3 What amount should be in your Replacement Fund? E 422,793.oQI
Please note: If you had a CWFP loan, this amount was originally based on the Financial
Assistance Agreement (FAA) and should be regularly updated as needed. Further calculation
instructions and an example can be found by clicking the Sectioninstruct1ons lmk under Info
header in the left-side menu.
3.3.1 Is the December 31 Ending Balance in your Replacement Fund above, (#3.2.6) equal to, or
greater than the amount that should be in 1t (#3.3)?
• Yes
o No
If No, please explain.

I I
4. Future Planning
4.1 During the next ten years, will you be involved mn formal planning for upgrading, rehabilitating,
or new construction of your treatment facility or collection system?
• Yes - If Yes, please provide major project information, if not already listed below.□□
o No

Project Project Description Estimated Approximate
# Cost Construction

Year
1 We will be inspecting and improving force mains when needed, Luft station 175000 2017

improvements and or replacement, Maintaining existing system. MH hole
rehabilitation. Continuing working on II improvements.

2 We will be inspecting and improving force mains when needed, Lift station 175000 2018
improvements and or replacement, Maintaining existing system. MH hole
rehabilitation. Continuing working on II improvements.

3 upgrading pumping equipment & piping @ St. Martins's lift station and continuation 30000 2019
of Man Hole rehabilitation & mmproving force mamns when needed.

4 New installation of lift Station and force main at the New S/E Hickory Street 4200 2020
Business Park.

5 Upgrading of SCADA system 10000 2021
6 Replacement of the Industrial Park IP lift Station. 3200000 2021
7 e will be inspecting and improving force mains when needed, Lift station 180,000 2021

improvements and or replacement, Maintaining existing system. MH hole
rehabilitation. Continuing working on II improvements.

5. Financial Management General Comments



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/14/2022 2021

I
ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND USE

6. Collection System
6.1 Energy Usage
6.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:

COLLECTION SYSTEM PUMPAGE: Total Power Consumed
Number of Municipally Owned Pump/Lift Stations: I 3

Electricity Consumed Natural Gas Consumed
(kWh) (therms)

January 10,381 293

February 11,390 383

March 18,857 187

April 10,973 54

May 9,470 54

June 10,008 17

July 9,298

August 8,953

September 9,287 1

October 9,597 3

November 10,500 9

December 11,374 512

Total 130,088 1,513
Average 10,841 151

6.1.2 Comments:

I I
6.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
6.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your pump/lift stations (Check all that apply):
[]Comminution or Screening
□ Extended Shaft Pumps
[8] Flow Metering and Recording
□ Pneumatic Pumping
] SCADA System
] Self-Priming Pumps
] Submersible Pumps
] Vanable Speed Drives
D Other:

I
6.2.2 Comments:

I
6.3 Has an Energy Study been performed for your pump/lift stations?
• No



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/14/2022 2021

o Yes
Year:

I I
By Whom:

I I
Describe and Comment:

I
6.4 Future Energy Related Equipment

6.4.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
pump/lift stations?

On site structure upkeep. When replacing existing older equipment we will upgrade to more
efficient energy saving items.

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System

Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems
1. Capacity, Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) Program
1.1 Do you have a CMOM program that is being implemented?
• Yes
o No
If No, explain:

I

Last Updated: Reporting For:
6/14/2022 2021

I
1.2 Do you have a CMOM program that contains all the applicable components and items
according to Wisc. Adm Code NR 210.23 (4)?
• Yes
o No (30 points)
o N/A
If No or N/A, explain:

I
1.3 Does your CMOM program contain the following components and items? (check the
components and items that apply)
~ Goals [NR 210.23 (4)(a)]
Describe the mayor goals you had for your collection system last year:

I Efficiency and operation, safety practices & training, Inner departmental organization.
Did you accomplish them?
• Yes
o No
If No, explain:

I
] Organization [NR 210.23 (4) (b)]□□
Does this chapter of your CMOM include:
[ Organizational structure and positions (eg. organizational chart and position descriptions)
~ Internal and external lines of communication responsibilities
~ Person(s) responsible for reporting overflow events to the department and the public
~ Legal Authority [NR 210.23 (4) (c)]
What is the leaally bindina document that regulates the use of your sewer system?
(City of Franklin Codes found mn Chapter 297 [
If you have a Sewer Use Ordinance or other similar document, when was it last reviewed and
revised? (MM/DD/YYYY) 013-01-09 ]
Does your sewer use ordinance or other legally binding document address the following:
[] Private property inflow and infiltration
[] New sewer and building sewer design, construction, Installation, testing and inspection
~ Rehabilitated sewer and lift station installation, testing and inspection
~ Sewage flows satellite system and large private users are monitored and controlled, as
necessary
Fat, oil and grease control

~ Enforcement procedures for sewer use non-compliance
] Operation and Maintenance [NR 210.23 (4) (d)]
Does your operation and maintenance program and equipment include the following:
~ Equipment and replacement part inventories
~ Up-to-date sewer system map
~A management system (computer database and/or file system) for collection system

Information for O&M activities, investigation and rehabilitation

I

I

I



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/14/2022 2021

A description of routine operation and maintenance activities (see question 2 below)
~ Capacity assessment program
~ Basement back assessment and correction
] Regular O&M training
~ Design and Performance Provisions [NR 210.23 (4) (e)]□□
What standards and procedures are established for the design, construction, and inspection of
the sewer collection system, including building sewers and interceptor sewers on private
property?
~ State Plumbing Code, DNR NR 110 Standards and/or local Municipal Code Requirements
~ Construction, Inspection, and Testing
□ Others:

l.__ ____,I
[] Overflow Emergency Response Plan [NR 210.23 (4) (f)]□□
Does your emergency response capability include:
Q Responsible personnel communication procedures
~ Response order, timing and clean-up

Public notification protocols
[] Training
~ Emergency operation protocols and implementation procedures
] Annual Self-Auditing of your CMOM Program [NR 210.23 (5)]□□
~ Special Studies Last Year (check only those that apply):
~ Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) Analysis
~ Sewer System Evaluation Survey (SSES)
~ Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Managment Plan (SECAP)
~ Lift Station Evaluation Report
□ Others:

0

I
2. Operation and Maintenance
2.1 Did your sanitary sewer collection system maintenance program include the following
maintenance activities? Complete all that apply and indicate the amount maintained.
Cleaning I 2q % of system/year

I .1] % of system/year
:==========:I .sl % of system/year
E=,Ld% of system/year

Sewer line
televising I 13 % of system/year

Manhole
inspections I 3 % of system/year

Lift station 08M I 63 # per L.S./year

Manhole
rehabilitation I ~ % of manholes rehabbed

Mainline
rehabilitation I .i] % of sewer Imes rehabbed

Private sewer
inspections I @ % of system/year

Private sewer 1/1
I ojremoval % of private services

I

Root removal

Flow monitoring

Smoke testing



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/14/2022 2021

River or water
crossings I .4l % of pipe crossings evaluated or maintained

Please include additional comments about your sanitary sewer collection system below:

I
3. Performance Indicators
3.1 Provide the following collection system and flow information for the past year.

I 24.13 Total actual amount of precipitation last year in inches

I 34.67] Annual average precipitation (for your location)

I 196] Miles of sanitary sewer

I 5] Number of lift stations
0 Number of lift station failures

} Number of sewer pipe failures
q Number of basement backup occurrences
20 Number of complaints

0.627] Average daily flow mn MGD (If available)

33.159] Peak monthly flow in MGD (if available)

0.105 Peak hourly flow in MGD (if available)
3.2 Performance ratios for the past year:

] 0.00} Lift station failures (failures/year)

I o.ool Sewer pipe failures (pipe failures/sewer mile/yr)
0.00} Sanitary sewer overflows (number/sewer mile/yr)

o.ool Basement backups (number/sewer mile)
0.10] Complaints (number/sewer mile)

52.9 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Monthly:Annual Daily Avg)

0.2 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Hourly:Annual Daily Avg)

4. Overflows

LIST OF SANITARY SEWER (SSO) AND TREATMENT FACILITY (TFO) OVERFLOWS REPORTED **
Date Location Cause Estimated

Volume

None reported

** If there were any SSOs or TFOs that are not listed above, please contact the DNR and stop work
on this section until corrected.

5. Infiltration/ Inflow (1/1)
5.1 Was infiltration/inflow (I/I) significant in your community last year?
o Yes
• No
If Yes, please describe:

I
5.2 Has infiltration/inflow and resultant high flows affected performance or created problems mn
your collection system, lift stations, or treatment plant at any time in the past year?
o Yes
• No
If Yes please describe:



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System

I

Last Updated: Reporting For:
6/14/2022 2021

I
5.3 Explain any infiltration/inflow (I/I) changes thus year from previous years:

[When Infiltration is found the issue is fixed. Repairing leaky manholes. [

5.4 What is being done to address infiltration/mnflow in your collection system?

I In collaboration with MMSD in a PPII program. Rehabbing of manholes, laterals, pipe lining etc. I

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System

Grading Summary
WPDES No: 0047341

Last Updated: Reporting For:
6/14/2022 2021

SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING SECTION
FACTORS POINTS

Financial A 4 1 4
Collection A 4 3 12
TOTALS 4 16
GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 4.00

Notes:
A= Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
C = Recommendation Range (Response Required)
D = Action Range (Response Required)
F = Action Range (Response Required)



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System

Grading Summary
WPDES No: 0047341

Last Updated: Reporting For:
6/14/2022 2021

SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING SECTION
FACTORS POINTS

Financial A 4 1 4
Collection A 4 3 12

TOTALS 4 16
GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 4.00

Notes:
A = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
C = Recommendation Range (Response Required)
D = Action Range (Response Required)
F = Action Range (Response Reqwred)



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Franklin Sewage Collection System

Resolution or Owner's Statement

Last Updated: Reporting For:
6/14/2022 2021

Name of Governing
Body or Owner:

[City Of Franklin Sewer Utility I
Date of Resolution or
Action Taken:

I I
Resolution Number:

I I
Date of Submittal:

ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO SPECIFIC CMAR
SECTIONS (Optional for grade A or B. Required for grade C, D, or F):
Financial Management: Grade = A

I I
Collection Systems: Grade = A
(Regardless of grade, response required for Collection Systems 1f SSOs were reported)

I I
ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO THE OVERALL
GRADE POINT AVERAGE AND ANY GENERAL COMMENTS
(Optional for G.P.A. greater than or equal to 3.00, required for G.P.A. less than 3.00)
G.P.A. = 4.00

I I



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Review and Consideration to clarify or
amend the Code of Conduct and Ethics and
Rules of the Common Council and adopt a
Resolution affirming such amendments

MEETING
DATE

6/21/22

ITEM NUMBER

G.9.

Background:

At the May 3, 2022 regular meeting of the Common Council and upon recommendation from the May 2, 2022
Committee of the Whole Meeting, Alderman Nelson moved to table the City of Franklin Code of Conduct to
the Common Council meeting ofMay 17, 2022. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

At the May 17th regular meeting ofthe Common Council, (G7) Affirm Code ofConduct and Ethics Code was
placed on the agenda by Alderwoman Hanneman. Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt A Resolution
Affirming the City of Franklin Code ofConduct and Ethics. Seconded by Alderman Barber.

Alderman Barber moved to call the question. Motion died due to the lack of a second. Alderwoman Hanneman
then withdrew her motion and Alderman Barber withdrew his second with no objections. Alderwoman
Hanneman then moved to table this Resolution to the Common Council meeting of June 21, 2022, with
continuation of the May 3, 2022, action taken by the Common Council to table the Code of Conduct at the
request of Alderman Nelson. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

The item returns for review and consideration and to clarify or amend the items as presented in the information
from Alderman Nelson, and other considerations the Council deems appropriate including changes that may
need to be reflected within the Rules of the Common Council.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022,A Resolution Affirming Amendments to the City of Franklin Code
of Conduct and Ethics and Rules of the Common Council.
Or as the Council deems appropriate.

CITY CLERK slw/JNelson



City ofFranklin Code ofConduct
Ethics Elected and Appointed Officials

October 5, 2021 - Amendments
(Prepared for the June 21, 2022 Council meettng)

SECTION 1: PURPOSE

This Code of Conduct works in conjunction with the City of Franklin Municipal Code and State of Wisconsin
Statutes.

Insert proper references: These two documents are extensive Avoid confusion and burdensome reading
for compliance by inserting the reference-code numbers of the Code and Statutes Include the Admmistrative
Pohcies and Procedures as Indexed (available m the Clerk's office)

SECTION 2: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE MEMBERS
CONDUCT WITH ONEANOTHER

The Common Council and Mayor (hereinafter the "Council") have a responsibility to set policy for the City

Restate to: The elected Alderperson's and the Mayor (hereinafter the "Common Council") have a
responstb1lty to set policy and carry out polices for the City Policy setting ts a function of the Legislative
branch (elected alderpersons, while the Executive branch (mayor) assures policies, as set by the Council, are
carrted out wth staffass1stance

Notes: The mayoral policy role 1s fulfilled by recommending policies to the Council, breaking ties, and
through veto power The mayor himself does not set policy.

SECTION 2: F. Social Media

No wording changes. Discussion on creating a City Page.

Notes: Posting of Caty news and public informatton ts an extension of the position Elected and appointed
officials postmg on unofficial-private Facebook pages (where comments can be deleted by others) creates
record retention issues. Comb111111g several existmg City hosted Pages mto one will free up people, not add
workload Post the rules and use it as a news release site that is public and available to all not just those
allowed to )0111 private groups Private groups can then carry news over indtvdually to the continue
conversation Many Cites have an official City Facebook Page to avoid legal 1ssues and for mformatton
retention

SECTION 3: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE MEMBERS
CONDUCT WITH CITY STAFF

Should an individual Council Member see a deficiency, need a project or task performed, have a spec1al request for
service, or any other directive for staff, he/ she is to communicate that, m writing, mcluding the specific issue as well
as a requested resolution, to the Mayor or Director ofAdmmistration (1 *) (This does not include Council Members'
need for additional mformatton needed for Council agenda items or issues relevant to their districts, which is covered
111 the Rules of the Common Council) In the event that the matter is not resolved within a reasonable amount of time
after communtcattons with the Mayor and the Director ofAdm1nistrat1on, the matter may be discussed at a Council or
Committee of the Whole Meeting at the call of two Council Members by filing (2*) a written request with the Clerk.



Clarify need. Delete or Amend: The intent should not be to supersede current Municipal Code or lurut the
Legislative body A two Council Member procedure pertaining to calling a "Spec1al meeting" already ex1sts
that could be used for unresolved concerns As written, it limits and delays an indrvdual Council members
ability to submit items to the Clerk, as allowed under current Mumcipal Code, for the Legislative body to act
on

Notes (1): Mun1-Code 19-2 Order of business Agenda
The busmess of the Council shall be conducted according to the agenda prepared by the Clerk All matters
mtended to be placed upon a regular meeting agenda shall be sub1n1tted to the Clerk no later than 9 00 am
on the Friday durmg the week preceding the regular Tuesday meeting, and the Clerk shall distribute the
agenda to Common Council members no later than 5 00 p m on the Friday durmg the week preceding the
regular Tuesday meeting

Notes (2*): Mum-Code 19-1 Meeting time and date B. Special meetings
Special meetings of the Council may be called by two Alderpersons by filmg a written request with the Clerk
at least 24 hours prior to the tlme specified for such meeting The Clerk shall 1mmediately notify each
Alderperson of the time and purpose of such meeting The notice shall be dehvered to each Alderperson
personally or left at his or her usual place of abode The Clerk shall cause an affidavit of service of such
notice to be filed 111 his or her office prior to the time fixed for such special meeting Special meetings may be
held \Vlthout notice when all members of the Council are present or consent 111 writing to the holding of such
meeting Unless all Alderpersons are 111 attendance, no business shall be transacted at a special meeting except
for the purpose stated 111 the notice thereof

SECTION 5: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE MEMBERS
CONDUCT WITH OTHER GOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC AGENCIES AND OFFICES

Smee Council/Board/Com1n1ssion/Com1n1ttee Members act as a smgle Body durmg official City Meetings, such
members should curb mdividual commumcations Wlth other agencies Any such mteractions would s1mply be for
mformation gathermg reasons as a citzen, NOT as a Council/Com1n1ssion/Board/Comm1ttee Member
Counc1l/Commiss10n/Board/Com1n1ttee. Members may state their office position Wlth the City, but shall also state
that the Member has not been authorized by the Counc1l/Com1n1ssion/Board /Com1n1ttee and is not appearmg or
communicating wth the agency on the specific subject matter(s) wth Counctl/Commtss1on/Board/Committee
direction to do so (unless the Council/Com1n1ssion /Board/Com1n1ttee has so authorized and directed the Member
to do so), Council/Com1n1ss10n/Board /Com1n1ttee may then otherwise state the reason for appearing or
commumcating W1th the agency and/or office Common Council Members may use thetr respective City email
accounts to so commumcate 111 addition to other methods of commumcation

Restate to: S1nce Council/Board/Comm1sston/Committee Members act as a single Body during official City
Meetings, such members should curb mdividual commumcations Wlth other agencies Such restramt is not
meant to impede the ability of an elected official from access to mformation on matters of public concern,
projects withm thett respective districts or to undermine the function of government officials to become
1nformed on a subject matter to be voted upon Members shall identify themselves when commumcating with
other agencies by using their official posttton or title but shall not express or give the impress1on the Member
1s appearing or communicating with such agency with Council/Commtsston/Board/ Committee direct1on
(unless the Council/Comm1ssion /Board/Committee has authorized and directed the Member to do so),
Council/Commtss1on/Board/Committee may then otherwise state the reason for appear1ng or
communtcating wth the agency and/or office Council Members are allowed to use thett respective City
email accounts to commumcate 111 addition to other methods of communtcatton, as long as records are
retamed



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draf 7-21-2022

A RESOLUTION AFFIRMING AND ADOPTING AMMENDMENTS
TO THE CITY OF FRANKLIN CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS

AND RULES OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2021, the City of Franklin Common Council, by a vote of 5-0,with one
Council Member not present, adopted and enacted its Code of Conduct and Ethics, which included Rules of
the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Code of Conduct and Ethics and Rules of the Common Council are to
ensure all elected and appointed officials have clear guidelines for carrying out their responsibilities, and to
ensure a safe and positive work environment for those who conduct the business of the City of Franklin; and

WHEREAS, the Code of Conduct details conduct of elected and appointed officials and the process by
which complaints of violations to the Code of Conduct, other than ethics which follow a separate statewide
process, will be investigated and resolved in a timely manner; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has reviewed and considered changes to the above-mentioned
documents and has agreed to further clarify and amend sections of the Code of Conduct and Ethics and Rules
of the Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, that the City of Franklin Code of Conduct and Ethics stands as a necessary and viable Code of
Conduct to be maintained, and have been reviewed, updated and amended based on the actions and motions at
the June 21, 2022 meeting of the Common Council, and are to be followed, and subscribed to by all City of
Franklin elected officials, appointed board/commission/committee members, and appointed officials.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this day of
2)2,2, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-



CITY OF FRANKLIN CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS
ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS

October 5, 2021

SECTION 1: PURPOSE

It is the policy of the City of Franklin to uphold, promote, and demand the highest standards of
ethics from its elected and appointed officials. Accordingly, the Mayor; Common Council
Members; Commission/Board/Committee Members; and Appointed Officials shall maintain the
standards of personal integrity, trustworthiness, honesty, and fairness in carrying out their public
duties, avoid improprieties in their roles as public servants, comply with all applicable laws, and
shall not use their City position or authority improperly or for personal gain.

This Code of Conduct exists to ensure that all officials have clear guidelines for carrying out their
responsibilities in their relationships with each other, with the City staff, with the citizens of
Franklin, and with all other private and governmental entities. It is understood that all City
Officials aspire to maintain these standards. In the event that these shared objectives are not met,
self-correction is the goal, with enforcement occurring when necessary.

All officials recognize that an action may be legal but may also be unprofessional, inappropriate,
or perceived as a form of harassment or abuse.

This Code of Conduct works in conjunction with the City of Franklin Municipal Code and State
of Wisconsin Statutes.

SECTION 2: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE
MEMBERS CONDUCT WITH ONE ANOTHER

The Common Council and Mayor (hereinafter the "Council") have a responsibility to set policy
for the City. In doing so, certain types of conduct foster positive debate while other types do not.
The Council is responsible for treating one another as they wish to be treated. The same
expectation is in place for Commission/Board/Committee Members.

The Council, as well as Commissions/Boards/Committees, is composed of individuals with a wide
variety of backgrounds, personalities, values, opinions, and goals. Understanding the diversity
which exists, all who choose to serve in public office have the obligation to preserve and protect
the well-being of the community and its citizens. In all cases, this common goal is to be
acknowledged, and all officials must recognize that certain behavior will lead to success while
other behavior is counterproductive.

A. Use of Formal Titles

All officials will make every effort to refer to one another and City staff formally during public
meetings as Mayor, Council President, Alderperson, Board/Commission/Committee Member,
followed by the individual's last name.

B. Use of Civility and Decorum in Discussions and Debate

Difficult questions, tough challenges to a particular point of view, and criticism of ideas and
information are legitimate elements of free democracy in action. Every official has the right to
an individual opinion, without interruption, which is to be respected by the other officials.
Officials shall not be hostile, degrading, or defamatory when debating a contentious issue. Each
official is to work under the premise that all other officials are acting with appropriate motives



and keeping the interest of the public in mind, and are not to be criticized for differing opinions
because they believe them to be lacking in judgment or are improperly motivated.

However, this does not allow any official to make belligerent, impertinent, slanderous,
threatening, abusive, or personally disparaging comments in public meetings or during
individual encounters. Shouting, attacking, or other actions that could be construed as
threatening or demeaning will not be tolerated. If an official is personally offended by the
remarks of another official, the offended official should voice the concern promptly and
afford the other official the opportunity to either explain the comment or apologize. If that
is not successful, the offended official should call for a "point of personal privilege".

C. Honor the Role of the Chair in Maintaining Order

It is the responsibility of the Mayor, as Chair of the Council, as well as
Commission/Board/Committee Chairs, to keep the discussion of all members on track during
meetings. Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members are to respect the efforts by the
Mayor/Chair to focus discussion on current agenda items. If there is disagreement about the
agenda or the Mayor's/Chair's actions, those objections are to be voiced respectfully and with
reason, following commonly recognized parliamentary procedure.

D. Dissemination of Information

Out of courtesy to all Council Members, important safety matters, as determined by the Mayor,
will be communicated to the Council Members as soon as practicable once they become
available/known. In addition, new information regarding appropriate City
Business/Communications will be disseminated to the Body prior to disseminating on social
media.

E. Use of Electronic Devices

Respect for one another, constituents, and those appearing before the Council and
Commissions/Boards/Committees is paramount, and full attention to the matters before the
Body is the purpose of meetings. The use of electronic devices to communicate regarding City
business during meetings is prohibited since it presents an opportunity for violation of open
meetings and open records laws. Personal use (i.e. use not related to City Business) of
electronic devices is strongly discouraged and is to be reserved only for urgent situations.
However, it is acknowledged that occasional use of electronic devices occurs for business
purposes within the context of meetings and is acceptable.

F. Social Media

Social media presence by those officials covered under this code is to be informative in nature
and positively reflect on the community and City staff, and promote local activities. All
officials shall avoid expressing opinions or bias regarding City business or issues that may
come before the Council/Commission/Board/Committee when it may be construed that they are
acting on behalf of the City.

In the use of social media, all officials are to abide by the following:

• Refrain from making belligerent, impertinent, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or
personally disparaging comments;

• Ensure that they do not participate in discrimination or harassment, even if the identified
behavior is not targeting a protected class, consisting of unwelcome conduct, sexual or
otherwise, whether verbal, physical, or visual. Harassing conduct includes, but is not

2



limited to: slurs or negative stereotyping; bullying, threatening, intimidating or other hostile
acts; degrading jokes and display or circulation of graphic material that degrades or shows
hostility; and physical touching;

• Shall never demean or personally attack an employee regarding the employee's job
performance in public; and

• Are to demonstrate their honesty and integrity, and to be an example of appropriate and
ethical conduct.

G. Newsletters by Council Members

Council Members are allowed to create newsletters; however, all Council Members must
ensure that in expressing their own opinion, they do not mislead any reader/listener into
believing that their individual opinion is that of the entire Council/Commission/Board
/Committee unless the Council/Commission/Board/Committee has taken a vote of the Body on
that specific issue and the Member's opinion 1s the same as the result of the vote of the Body
on the matter.

H. Discrimination and Other Harassment

The Council is committed to providing an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment, even if the identified behavior is not targeting a protected class. Harassment
consists of unwelcome conduct, sexual or otherwise, whether verbal, physical, or visual.
Harassing conduct includes, but is not limited to: slurs or negative stereotyping; bullying,
threatening, intimidating or other hostile acts; degrading jokes and display or circulation of
graphic material that degrades or shows hostility; and physical touching.

SECTION 3: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE
MEMBERS CONDUCT WITH CITY STAFF

Governance of the City relies on the cooperative efforts of elected officials who set policy and
City staff who implement and administer the Council's policies. Therefore, every effort is to be
made to be cooperative and show mutual respect for the contributions made by each other for the
good of the community.

The City of Franklin, through its form of government and Municipal Code, charges the Mayor as the
responsible person for all staff in the City, except as may be otherwise provided by law pursuant to
the Wisconsin Statutes.

The Common Council, upon recommendation from individual Council Members, professional staff,
and volunteer Boards/Commissions/Committees, authorizes various aspects of personnel
management including policies, pay plans, benefit plans and other related items. On Council
direction, the Mayor is charged with implementing these items while working with the executive
team. This provides for a single manager to direct our staff.

Members of the Common Council must be diligent mn mamntaming thus "chain of command".
Council Members shall not engage in directing employees in their tasks and/or injecting themselves
into tasks and projects. Council Members are encouraged to get to know and support the City's 240+
employees, and treat them with respect and professionalism.

Should an individual Council Member see a deficiency, need a project or task performed, have a
special request for service, or any other directive for staff, he/she is to communicate that, in writing,
including the specific issue as well as a requested resolution, to the Mayor or Director of
Administration. (This does not include Council Members' need for additional information needed for

3



Council agenda items or issues relevant to their districts, which is covered in the Rules of the
Common Council.) In the event that the matter is not resolved within a reasonable amount of time
after communications with the Mayor and the Director of Administration, the matter may be
discussed at a Council or Committee of the Whole Meeting at the call of two Council Members by
filing a written request with the Clerk.

All elected and appointed officials must constantly be aware of their impact on the morale and
reputation of our employees in their statements and interactions.

A. Treat Staff as Professionals

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall treat all staff as professionals.
Clear, honest communication that respects the abilities, experience, and dignity of each
individual is expected. Poor behavior toward staff is not acceptable. Council/Commission
/Board/Committee Members should refer to staff by their title followed by the individual's
last name in public meetings when first introduced.

B. Never Publicly Demean or Personally Attack an Individual Employee

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall never demean or personally attack
an employee regarding the employee's job performance in public. All employee
performance issues shall be directed to the Mayor or the Director of Administration
through private correspondence or conversation.

C. Do not Supersede Administrative Authority

Unless otherwise provided in this Code, neither the Council, nor any of Commission/Board
/Committee Members, shall attempt to supersede the administration's powers and duties.
Neither the Council nor any Commission/Board/Committee Member thereof shall give
orders to any of the Department Heads or their subordinates, either publicly or privately.
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall not attempt to unethically influence
or coerce City staff concerning either their actions or recommendations to awarding
contracts, selection of consultants, processing of development proposals, the granting of
City licenses and permits, or any other similar City function.

Nothing in this section shall be construed, however, as prohibiting a Council Member or
Commission/Board/Committee Member in an open meeting from fully and freely
discussing with or suggesting to the Department Heads anything pertaining to City affairs
or the interests of the City. And, it is also noted that there may be limited occasions when
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members need to communicate with staff outside
public meetings, not related to questions on agenda matters.

D. Do Not Solicit Political or Business Support from Staff

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall not solicit any type of political
support, including: financial contributions, display of posters or lawn signs, name on
support list, collection of petition signatures, etc., from City staff. City staff may, as private
citizens within their constitutional rights, support political candidates, however all such
activities must be done away from the workplace and be the will of the staff member.
Photographs of uniformed City employees shall not be used in political ads.

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members should refrain from soliciting personal
business, i.e. services, patronage, etc. that are not offered to the general public, from staff.

4



SECTION 4: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE MEMBERS
CONDUCT TOWARDS THE PUBLIC

In Public Meetings

Making the public feel welcome is an important part of the democratic process. No signs of
partiality, prejudice, or disrespect are to be evident on the part of individual
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members toward an individual participating in a public
forum. Every effort is to be made to be fair and impartial in listening to public testimony or
input. All Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members are to demonstrate, both publicly
and privately, their honesty and integrity, and to be an example of appropriate and ethical
conduct. And, all Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members are to respect and appreciate
the public's participation, input, and opinions.

A. Be Welcoming to Speakers and Treat Them with Care and Respect

For many citizens, speaking in front of a governing body is a new and difficult experience;
under such circumstances, many are nervous. Council/Commission/Board/Committee
Members are expected to treat citizens with care and respect. (See section 2 D.) All
Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members are to commit full attention to the
speakers or any materials relevant to the topic at hand. Comments, when appropriate, and
non-verbal expressions are to be respectful and professional.

B. Be Fair and Equitable in Allocating Public Hearing Time to Individual Speakers

The Mayor/Chair will determine and announce time limits on speakers at the start of the Public
Hearing. Generally, each speaker will be allocated three minutes, with applicants, appellants, or
their designated representatives allowed additional time. If a substantial number of speakers are
anticipated, the Mayor/Chair may shorten the time limit and/or ask speakers to limit themselves
to new information and points of view not already covered by previous speakers.

Each speaker may only speak once during a Public Hearing unless the Body requests
additional clarification later in the process. After the close of the Public Hearing, no
additional public testimony will be accepted unless the Body reopens the Public Hearing
for a limited and specific purpose.

C. Ask for Clarification, but Avoid Debate and Argument with the Public

Only the Mayor/Chair (no other Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members), shall be
allowed to interrupt a speaker during a presentation if needed to clarify, keep on topic, or
similar. Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members may ask the Mayor/Chair to have the
speaker repeat or clarify ifthere is an audio issue, hallway noise, or other similar matter. And,
Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members may ask the Mayor/Chair for a point of order
if the speaker is off the topic, exhibiting behavior or language that the Member finds disturbing
or out of line, or ifthere are inaccurate statements made that the Member would like corrected.
Member questions, regarding public input, to seek, clarify, or expand information are be
directed to the Mayor/Chair.

D. Follow Parliamentary Procedure in Conducting Public Meetings

The City Attorney serves as advisory parliamentarian for the City and is available to answer
questions or interpret situations according to parliamentary procedures. Final rulings on
parliamentary procedure are made by the Mayor, subject to the appeal of and to the Council,
per Robert's Rules of Order.

5



Outside Public Meetings

A. Make No Promise or Statement on Behalf of the City or Common Council in an Unofficial
Setting

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members will frequently be asked to explain a
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Action or to provide their opinion regarding an issue as
they meet and talk with constituents in the community. It is appropriate to provide a brief
overview of City Policy and to refer the constituents to City staffor the Mayor for further
information. Overt or implicit promises of specific Council/Commission/Board/Committee
Action or promises that City staffwill take some specific action shall be refrained from.

All Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members must ensure that in expressing their
own opinions, they do not mislead any listener into believing that their individual opinion is
that of the entire Council/Commission/Board/Committee unless the
Council/Commission/Board/Committee has taken a vote on that specific issue and the
Member's opinion is the same as the result of the vote of the Body on the matter. Likewise,
no Council/Commission/Board/Committee Member shall state in writing that Member's
position in a way that implies it is the position of the entire Body. A member has the right to
state a personal opinion and has the right to indicate that he/she is stating such as a member
of the Body but must always clarify that he/she is not speaking on behalf of the City or the
Common Council/Commission/Board/Committee unless specifically authorized by that
Council/Commission/Board/Committee to do so.

SECTION 5: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE
MEMBERS CONDUCT WITH OTHERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC AGENCIES AND
OFFICES

Since Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members act as a single Body during official City
Meetings, such members should curb individual communications with other agencies. Any such
interactions would simply be as a citizen, NOT as a Council/Commission/Board/Committee
Member. Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members may state their office position with the
City, but shall also state that the Member has not been authorized by the Council/Commission/Board
/Committee and is not appearing or communicating with the agency on the specific subject matter(s)
with Council/Commission/Board/Committee direction to do so (unless the Council/Commission
/Board/Committee has so authorized and directed the Member to do so); Council/Commission/Board
/Committee may then otherwise state the reason for appearing or communicating with the
agency and/or office. Common Council Members may use their respective City email accounts to so
communicate in addition to other methods of communication.

All Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members must remember that, at most times, they are
perceived in public as a representative of the City and should act and speak with that responsibility in
mind.

A. Be Clear about Representing the City or Personal Interests

If a Council/Commission/Board/Committee Member appears before another governmental
agency or organization to provide a statement on an issue, the Member must clearly state
whether his or her statement reflects a personal opinion or is the official position of the
City.

6



All Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members must inform the applicable Body of
their involvement in an outside organization if that organization is or may become involved
in any issue within the City's jurisdiction. If an individual Council/Commission/Board
/Committee Member publicly represents or speaks on behalf of another organization whose
position differs from the City's official position on any issue, the Member must clearly
communicate the organization upon whose behalf he/she is speaking and must withdraw
from voting as a Council/Commission/Board/Committee Member upon any action that has
bearing upon the conflicting issue.

B. Representation of the City on Intergovernmental Commissions and Other Outside Entities

Council Members serving on Boards, Commissions, or Committees as a City Representative
for outside entities or agencies shall properly communicate with all other Council Members
on issues pertinent to the City.

C. Conflict of Interest

Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members are encouraged to request a Conflict of
Interest Opinion from the City Attorney if unsure whether a personal conflict exists on
specific matters.

D. Mayor's Role Representing the City

The Mayor is charged with representing the City, speaking on its behalf, and communicating
with the Council regarding these matters when appropriate.

SECTION 6: ELECTED OFFICIALS CONDUCT WITH
COMMISSIONS/BOARDS/COMMITTEES

A. Attendance at Commission/Board/Committee Meetings

Council Members may attend any City of Franklin Commission/Board/Committee Meeting
which is open to the public.

B. Assigned Commission/Board/Committee Duties

Council Members are assigned to Boards/Commissions/Committees to provide a line of
communication between the specific Commission/Board/Committee and the Common
Council. As such, Council Members are to fully participate in the activities and meetings of
the Commission/Board/Committee.

Regular attendance at meetings and activities is expected.

Council Members, along with City staff, shall advise the Commissions/Boards/ Committees
that they serve on regarding policies and procedures of the City, and proper conduct of
meetings.

C. Be Respectful of Diverse and Opposing Opinions

A primary role of Commissions/Boards/Committees is to represent many points of view in
the community and to provide the Council with advice based on a full spectrum of
concerns, experience, and perspectives. Council Members must be fair and respectful to all
citizens serving on Commissions/Boards/Committees without regard to their backgrounds,
residence, and political views.

7



D. Closed Session Participation

Out of courtesy for the Commission/Board/Committee, Council Members not on such
Commission/Board/Committee shall inform the Commission/Board/Committee Chair of
their attendance in closed session in advance of attending such closed session whenever
possible.

SECTION 7: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE MEMBERS
CONDUCT WITH THE MEDIA

A. Expression of Positions on Issue

When communicating with the media, all Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members
must clearly state that their comments are the official position of themselves alone, and not
from the Council/Commission/Board/Committee unless specifically authorized by that
Council/Commission/Board/Committee. Each Council/Board/Commission/Committee
Member represents one vote of the total and until a vote on any issue is taken, Council
/Board/Commission/Committee Members' positions are merely their own. Council/Board
/Commission/Committee Members recognize that the Mayor, or his/her designee, is the only
authorized voice for the City.

B. Discussions Regarding City Staff

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall not discuss personnel issues or other
matters regarding individual City staff in public or with the media. Any issues pertaining to
City staff shall only be addressed directly to the Mayor or the Director of Administration.

SECTION 8: ENFORCEMENT OF THIS CODE OF CONDUCT

A. Filing of Complaints (Excluding Ethics, which is addressed in Section 9 and contains separate
remedies)

Any person who believes a City Official has violated a requirement, prohibition or guideline
set out herein may file a sworn complaint with the City Clerk identifying: (1) the
complainant's name, address and contact information; (2) position of the City official who is
the subject of the complaint; (3) the nature of the alleged violation, including the specific
provision of Municipal Code, Policy, Rule allegedly violated, and (4) a statement of fact
constituting the alleged violation and the dates on which, or period oftime during which, the
alleged violation occurred.

The person making the complaint shall provide the following with the complaint: (1) all
documents or other materials in the complainant's possession that are relevant to the
allegation, (2) a list of all documents or other materials relevant to the allegation that are
available to the complainant but not in the complainant's possession, (3) a list of all other
documents or other materials relevant to the allegation but unavailable to the complainant,
including the location of the documents if known, and (4) a list of witnesses, what they may
know, and information to contact those witnesses.

The complaint shall include an affidavit at the end of the complaint stating that the
"information contained in the complaint is true and correct, or that the complainant has
good reason to believe and does believe that the facts alleged are true and correct and that
they constitute a violation of the Municipal Code, Policy, or Rule". If the complaint is
based on information and belief, the complaint shall identify the basis of the information
and belief, including all sources, contact information for those sources, and how and when

8



the information and/or belief was conveyed to the complainant by those sources. The
complainant shall swear to the facts by oath before a notary public. or before the City Clerk.
A notary public or City Clerk shall verify the signature.

If a complaint filing is determined to be complete by the City Clerk, the City Clerk shall
forward the matter to the Mayor or the Mayor's Designee. If the complaint filing is
determined incomplete, the City Clerk shall notify the complainant of the deficiency.
If the complaint is filed against the Mayor, the City Clerk shall submit the complaint filing
to the Council President to work with the appropriate parties to process the complaint
appropriately on behalf of the City.

B. Confidential Nature of Complaint

While complete confidentiality cannot be maintained, each complaint will be considered
judiciously and as discreetly as possible, respecting both the complainant and the accused,
throughout the investigation.

C. Time for Filing

A complaint under this Code must be filed no later than sixty (60) days from the date of
discovery of the alleged violation. However, anyone having information on which a
complaint is based is encouraged to file the complaint as soon as the information is obtained
so that immediate action may be taken by the Council, the appropriate staff member or
agency. The delay in filing a complaint may be considered in determining the sanction to be
imposed.

D. False or Frivolous Complaints

A person who knowingly makes a false, misleading, or unsubstantiated statement in a
complaint is subject to criminal prosecution for perjury and possible civil liability. If, after
reviewing a complaint, it is determined that a sworn complaint is groundless and appears to
have been filed in bad faith or for the purpose of harassment, or that intentionally false or
malicious information has been provided, the subject shall be referred to the Chief of Police for
referral to the District Attorney's Office for prosecution under penalty of perjury or as the
District Attorney may determine. A City Official who seeks to take civil action regarding any
such complaint shall do so at his or her expense.

E. Complaint Procedure

(1) Investigation

If the complaint is complete, it will be investigated by the City through its
representative which may be the City's Risk Provider, Outside Counsel, or other
appropriate party acting as the Investigative Officer, in a reasonable period of time.

(2) Failure to Comply

All City Officials, whether elected and appointed, are required to cooperate with any
such investigations. Failure to cooperate in an investigation, or making false
statements, could subject the Official to sanctions or removal from office/position.

(3) Recommendations
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Investigating Officer, following deliberation
in open or closed session, shall submit a report to the Council, including findings of

9



fact, conclusions of law, and a recommendation as to what action, if any, the Council
should consider with respect to the individual charged. The Investigating Officer shall
provide the complainant and the individual charged with a copy of the report. Either the
complainant or the person charged may file an objection to the report and shall have the
opportunity to present arguments supporting the objection to the Council.

(4) Council Action

The Council shall consider and take action on the recommendation of the Investigating
Officer within sixty (60) days after the Investigating Officer provides its findings. Upon
review of the report and following deliberation, if the Council, by motion, concludes that
there is a violation of the Code, the Council may direct mediation or impose a sanction or
penalty. The Council may adopt, reject, or modify the recommendation made by the
Investigating Officer. In resolving the complaint, the totality of the circumstances shall be
taken into consideration, including the intent of the person accused of the wrongdoing.

(5) Penalties and Sanctions Policy
It is the intent of the Council to educate and, when necessary, discipline City Officials
who violate this Code. Discipline shall be progressive, from the least punitive to the most
punitive measures, unless the Council believes that progressive discipline does not
provide the appropriate sanction due to the gravity of the offense, or because the Council
does not believe the sanction would deter future misconduct. In all instances, the totality
of the circumstances shall be taken into consideration in resolving the matter, including
the intent of the one accused of wrongdoing.

(6) Possible Penalties and Sanctions

1. An informal censure by the Council, which would only be made as part of a motion
in a public meeting.

11. A formal censure by the Council, which would be made by motion in a public
meeting and then published in the City newspaper.

11. Mandatory community service. [Wis. Stat. § 62.l1(3)(e)]
rv. Attendance at counseling or mediation sessions. [Wis. Stat. §62.11(3)(e)]
v. Imposition of a dollar fine of up to $500.00. [Wis. Stat. §§ 62.11 (3)(a) &(c)]

v1. Removal from Office. [Wis. Stat. $ 62.11]
vii. Discipline, up to and including termination (for Appointed Officials).

vi. Any other sanction available by law.

The imposition of any of these penalties or sanctions will require an affirmative vote of
¾ of all Members of the Council (with six (6) voting Council Members,¾ is calculated
as 6x.75 = 4.5, rounded up to 5 votes).

(7) Notice

The Mayor, or his/her designee, shall provide notice of the Council's decision
to the person charged within ten ( 10) days of decision.

SECTION 9: ETHICS

The state ethics code applicable to local government officials is found in Wisconsin Statutes §
19.59. (This is affirmed by the CHARTER ORDINANCE change that was passed on March I,
2005 Ordinance 2005-1835 repealed the Code ofEthcs ofthe Municpal Code and provded

10



for thefiling offinancal dsclosure statements by elected officals, canddates and other
specified officals ofthe Cty ) Many of the terms used therein are defined in Wisconsin
Statutes § 19.42.

The state ethics code establishes minimum standards of ethical conduct that prohibit local
public officials from using their public office to benefit or enrich themselves, their immediate
families, or organizations with which they are associated. Local officials must understand these
standards to avoid violations of the law. Specifically, this code prohibits local public officials
from engaging in the following conduct:

• Using their office to obtain financial gain, any type of employment including
consulting or similar roles, or anything of substantial value for the private benefit of
themselves, their immediate families, or organizations with which they are associated.

• Receiving "anything of value" if it could be reasonably expected to influence the local
public official's vote, official action or judgement, or could reasonably be considered
as a reward for any official action or inaction.

• Taking official action substantially affecting a matter in which the official, an
immediate family member, or an organization with which the official is associated has
a substantial financial interest or using his or her office in a way that produces or
assists in the production of a substantial benefit for the official, an immediate family
member, or an organization with which the official is associated.

• Offering or providing influence in exchange for campaign contributions.

An official who is uncertain about a potential conflict with this section may want to seek
advice from the City Attorney.

The state ethics code is enforced by the local district attorney (in Milwaukee County, this is
Corporation Counsel) upon verified complaint of any person. If the district attorney fails to
commence an action within twenty (20) days after receiving such complaint or refuses to
commence an action, the person making the complaint may petition the attorney general to act
on it.

The ethics code provides civil and criminal penalties for violations. A local official who
intentionally violates any part of§ 19.59, except§ 19.59(1)(br), may be fined not less than
$100 nor more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than one year in the county jail or both.
In the alternative, a civil forfeiture of up to $1,000 may be imposed against a local official
for violating any part of the state ethics code. Intentional violation of§ 19.59(1)(br),
offering or providing influence in exchange for campaign contributions, is a Class I felony.

Acknowledgement Statement/ Signature Required

By signing below, the Elected Official/Commission, Board, Committee Member/Appointed
Official agrees to the principles and rules set forth in this document and will abide by them
to the best of his/her abilities throughout his/her term of office/employment:

Official Signature

Official Printed Name

Date

Office Held by Official
11



RULES OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
October 5, 2021

These rules are established by the Common Council to promote consistency and orderly meetings
of the Common Council The rules will be reviewed periodically, as needed, and at the
Organizational Meeting of each newly established Common Council

These rules are established m conJunctIon with the ordinance authorized through the City of
Franklin Municipal Code, Chapter 19 Council Proceedings It Is the intent of these rules to
compliment, not replace, Municipal Code.

1) MEETINGS

a. Regular and Special Meetings of the Common Council are held per the City of
Franklin Municipal Code, $ 19-1A -D., as attached hereto.

b. In addition to the codified crrtera for Special Meetings, per the City of Franklin
Municipal Code,§ 19-1 B., as attached hereto, a Special Meeting may be called with
a minimum of 6 hours' notice for emergency business of the Common Council The
notice shall specify the time, place, and purpose of the meeting.

2) NOTIFICATION OF ABSENCE OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

a. Any Council Member who Is unable to attend a Council Meeting shall notify the
Mayor or City Clerk in advance if he/she rs unable to attend such meeting, except mn
the case of an emergency. If an emergency causes a Council Member to miss a
Common Council Meeting, that Council Member shall notify the Mayor or City Clerk
as soon as practicable. Members shall be recorded as 'present' or 'not present' on
the official minutes

b. It shall be noted mn the official meeting minutes 1f a Member enters a meeting after
the meeting convenes, or leaves before the meeting adJourns.

3) SPECIAL RECOGNITION

a. The City of Franklin will consider requests for moments of silence or other
appropriate recognition at the beginning of Common Council Meetings that relate
to persons or events of community-wide, state-wde, or national significance
involving Franklin residents. All requests shall be made to the Mayor or presiding
officer prior to the meeting and the Member making the request shall be
recognized by the Mayor or presiding officer at the appropriate point within the
agenda.

4) PRESIDING OFFICER TO MAINTAIN AND PRESERVE ORDER

a. It shall be the duty of the Mayor or presiding officer to maintain and preserve order
during Common Council Meetings, Including: keeping the discussion of Council
Members on track and relevant to the agenda items and preserving decorum, and 1f
any Member transgresses the rules of the Common Council, the Mayor or presiding
officer shall, on his or her own or at any Members' request, call such offending

1



Member to order The Common Council, 1f appealed to, shall decide the matter by
maJonty vote, per the City of Franklin Municipal Code, $19-3A, as attached
hereto

b. When a question 1s pending, a Member 1s allowed to speak against the nature of
likely consequences of the proposed measure m strong terms, but the Member
must avoid personalities and under no circumstances shall the Member attack or
question the motives of another Member or the entire Common Council.

c. Points of Order may be used to draw attention to a breach In rules, an irregularity m
procedure, the irrelevance or continued repet1t1on of a speaker, the breaching of
established practices, or contradiction of previous decision The chair shall
1mmed1ately acknowledge the Point of Order and rule on 1t. A Point of Order 1s non
debatable, however, may be overruled by a two-thirds vote of the Body. Points of
Order which are recognized shall be recorded in the official minutes.

5) RULES PERTAINING TO CONDUCT OF THE COUNCIL MEETING/MOTIONS/VOTING

a. ORDER - The most recent version of Roberts Rules of Order shall be used for
conduct of City of Franklin meetings. The City Attorney shall be the
Parliamentarian.

b. MOTIONS/VOTING - Motions and voting shall occur per the City of Franklin
Municipal Code, $$ 19-7 A - G, as attached hereto.

c. MOTIONS -When a motion rs made and seconded, rt shall be deemed to be In
possession of the Common Council and shall be stated by the presiding officer.

d. WITHDRAWING MOTIONS-Withdrawing matrons shall occur per the City of
Franklin Municipal Code, $19-7A., as attached hereto.

e. DIVISION OF QUESTION - Any Member may call for a d1v1s1on of the question when
the question rs one that may be d1v1ded, per Robert's Rules of Order.

f. DEBATE

2

IV

1. In the debate, each Member has the right to speak and shall be offered the
opportunity by the Mayor or presiding officer before a Member may speak a
second, or subsequent, time.

11. Members shall be succinct in their statements on an item and shall not
dominate debate.

iii. Members shall at all times be aware the Council meetings are a place for
debate of the item at hand and for decisions on that matter. Additional
information requested by a Member should be addressed to the responsible
Department Head prior to the Council meeting Upon the request of a
Common Council Member for any staff member to supply the Body such
1nformat1on as requested, the Member must first be recognized by the
presiding officer for that person to speak (This does not apply to
deficiencies, the desire to have a project or task performed, having a special
request for service, or any other directive for staff, as these matters are
addressed in the Code of Conduct.)
A Member who wishes to abstamn must do so mn accordance with the Crty of
Franklin Municipal Code, $ 19-7 D , as attached hereto, and announce the
same at the start of debate due to a conflict or other basis upon which to
abstain, or the point mn time during the debate mn which the Member



determines that he/she has a conflict with the matter, and consider leaving
the room during the debate Such abstention shall be included In the
minutes A Member who participates mn debate, but does not voice that
he/she Is abstaining due to a conflict rs discouraged from abstaining from
voting

v. No officer, elected off1c1al or staff member may distribute, hold aloft, or
place on the dais for public view information not previously available to the
public, during or the day of a Common Council meeting

g. CALLING THE QUESTION - Any Member wishing to termmate the debate may move
the previous question as detailed mn the City of Franklin Municipal Code,
§ 19-7 C., as attached hereto, per Robert's Rules of Order

h. MOTIONS TO TABLE SHALL INCLUDE DATE OR TIME FRAME FOR ACTION - Motions
to table shall include a specific date to be returned to the Council or shall require
return to the Council upon a specific occurrence within a specified time frame.
Except for matters which may be approved by operation of law 1f not acted upon by
Council, tf the occurrence shall not happen w1thm the spec1f1ed time frame, the
City Clerk shall notify the Council at the end of the time frame that the matter shall
not be brought forward and make appropriate notation to the minutes of the
meeting during which the matter was laid over. Upon notice of non-action by the
City Clerk, any Council Member may request that the matter be placed upon the
next Council agenda for report or official action.

i. VOTE CHANGE - A Member shall only be permitted to change hrs/her vote up until
the point all votes are in and the Mayor reports the results of the vote.

j. MOTION TO RECESS - Any Member or the chair may move to recess at any point
during the meeting wrth a majority vote with a stated time for such recess to
reconvene.

k. MOTION TO ADJOURN -A motion to adjourn shall always be in order unless the
Common Council ts engaged in voting, and shall be decided pursuant to Robert's
Rules of Order

I. RECONSIDERATION - Reconsiderations are allowed through the process included In
the City of Franklin Municipal Code, $19-7F., as attached hereto.

m. USE OF UNANIMOUS CONSENT - Unanimous Consent shall only be used for
termination of debate, motions to adjourn, motions to recess and for elections for
Common Council President or Temporary Chair when there shall be only one
Member put forward for election.

n. BREAKING TIES- BREAKING TIES- Per Wisconsin State Statutes $ 62.11 (1), the
Mayor shall not be counted in determining whether a quorum Is present at a
meeting, but may vote in case of a tie. When the Mayor does vote in case of a tie
the Mayor's vote shall be counted in determining whether a sufficient number of
the Council has voted favorably or unfavorably on any measure. The foregoing
Mayoral vote, only in case of a tie, Is not applicable when the Mayor s serving as
the Presiding Officer of other City Boards/Commissions/Committees, during which
the Mayor can (but is not obligated) to vote whenever hs/her vote will affect the
result -- that is, he/she can vote either to break or to cause a tie; or, in a case where
a two-thirds vote Is required, he/she can vote either to cause or to block the
attainment of the necessary two-thirds vote.

3



When the Council President 1s fulfilling the role of the Presiding Officer at a
Common Council Meeting, he/she may exercise, at his or her option, the voting
rights of an Alderman or may choose not to vote and instead act as the Mayor to
cast a tie-breaking vote. In this circumstance, the Council President should
announce whether he/she 1s acting as Mayor or Alderman on each proposal to be
voted upon.

6) ATTIRE, PROXY, AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS AND DEVICES

a. ATTIRE - Common Council Meetings are to conduct official business of the City of
Franklin, therefore, business casual attire or better is expected out of respect for
our constituents and the Body Except for the City's logo, business casual attire does
not mnclude apparel wrth advertising or logos of specific busmesses, hats, shorts, flip
flops, clogs, or smmlar. However, the Council may designate certain meetings to
allow for clothing to support spec1f1c events

b. PROXY - No Member shall be allowed to vote by proxy.
c. ELECTRONIC DEVICES - Respect for each other, constituents, and those appearing

before the Council and Commissions/Boards/Committees is paramount, and full
attention to the matters before the Body is the purpose of the meetings. The use of
electronic devices to communicate regarding City business during meetings is
prohibited since it presents an opportunity for violation of open meetings and open
records laws. Personal use of electronic devices is strongly discouraged and is to be
reserved only for emergency situations. However, it is acknowledged that
occasional use of electronic devices occurs for business purposes within the context
of meetings, and is acceptable.

7) CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Common Council Members are frequently provided information that 1s conf1dent1al. The
1nformat1on could be relating to personnel matters, which is the responsibility of the
Mayor; development matters; legal matters; or other information.

Holding confidential information private, when appropriate, 1s a foundation of trust that 1s
very difficult to earn and easy to lose. Losing trust forever impairs a Council Member from
doing his/her Job in representing their constituents.

a. No official may use or disclose confidential mnformation, Including knowledge
imparted orally, recordings, and written documents or records, concerning the
property, government or affairs of the City gained in the course of or by reason of
such official position or activities unless the release is ordered by a court or the
informed consent of the subJect, as applicable; or authorized by the legal custodian
or other proper legal authorization Is given. This includes confidential information
received in a Closed Session of the governmental Body

b. Inappropriate disclosure of such confidential information may subject the official to
penalties, including a fine or public censure Other potential consequences for
violating this restriction Is crmmmnal prosecution under $946.12, Wisconsin State
Statutes, misconduct in public office, or removal from office under Chapter 17 of
the W1scons1n State Statutes for cause

4



Any questions regarding confidential information, Its' restrictions, and any release of
conf1dent1al informatron should be privately addressed wth the City Attorney.

8) GENERAL RULES OF DECORUM

No person shall personally attack a Council Member, crty offrcral, crty employee or any
other person. For purposes of this section, personal attacks shall include comments
directed at a particular person or persons which pertain to any matter that 1s unrelated to
the performance of official duties or the conduct of crty business, are threatening,
slanderous, defamatory or obscene or are of such a nature that the comments disrupt the
meeting or cause a disturbance.

No person shall make irrelevant, unduly repetrtrous, offensive, threatening, slanderous,
defamatory, or obscene remarks or act in such a manner as to disrupt or disturb the
orderly conduct of any meeting, Including handclappmng, stomping of feet, whistling,
shouting or other demonstrations.

Any person violating this provision shall be called to order by the Mayor or presiding
officer. If the conduct continues, the Mayor or presiding officer may order the person,
other than a Body Member, removed and the Council may make a finding of fact whether
such behavior was outside the scope and content of the Council rules and, 1f applicable,
whether the behavior was of a character to cause a breach of the peace.

9) SOCIAL MEDIA

Social media presence by those officials covered under thus code is to be informative in
nature and posrtrvely reflect on the community and City staff, and promote local act1v1t1es.
All officials shall avoid expressing opnions or bras regarding Caty business or issues that
may come before the Council/Commrssron/Board/Committee when rt may be construed
that they are acting on behalf of the City.

In the use of social media, all officials are to abide by the following:

• Refrain from making belligerent, impertinent, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or
personally disparaging comments;

• Ensure that they do not partrcrpate in drscrrminatron or harassment, even 1f the
1dent1fied behavior rs not targeting a protected class, consisting of unwelcome conduct,
sexual or otherwise, whether verbal, physical, or visual. Harassing conduct includes, but
Is not limited to: slurs or negative stereotyping; bullying, threatening, intimidating or
other hostile acts; degrading yokes and display or circulation of graphic materal that
degrades or shows hostility; and physical touching;

• Shall never demean or personally attack an employee regarding the employee's job
performance in public; and

• Are to demonstrate their honesty and integrity, and to be an example of appropriate
and ethical conduct.

10) RULES PERTAINING TO INDIVIDUALS ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL DURING A CITIZEN
COMMENT PERIOD (NOT APPLICABLE FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS)

a. Citizen comments shall be conducted per the City of Franklin Municipal Code,
$19-2 B., as attached hereto, allowing any person to address the Common Council.

5



b. No person shall personally attack a Council Member, City Official, City Employee or
any other person. For purposes of this section, personal attacks shall include
comments directed at a particular person or persons which pertain to any matter
that s unrelated to the performance of off1c1al duties or the conduct of city
business, are threatening, slanderous, defamatory or obscene or are of such a
nature that the comments disrupt the meeting or cause a disturbance.

c. Questions posed by the speaker may be answered by the Mayor or pres1d1ng
officer, or referred to city staff for a future reply in a timely manner. Council
Members will refrain from commenting or attempting to answer questions during
Citizen Comment Period unless authorized by the Mayor.

d. Statements must not include endorsements of any candidates or other
electioneering; but if a citizen speaking ts a candidate for office, he/she must
Identify hum/herself as such.

e. Speakers shall refrain from presenting unduly repetitious, offensive, threatening,
slanderous, defamatory, or obscene remarks or act in such a manner as to disrupt
or disturb the orderly conduct of any meeting.

f. Statements made by the publc during Crtzen Comment Period orally or in writing
become part of the meeting record via audio recording or paper statements but will
not be included mn the official minutes or postings of the meeting

g. Wntten statements provided to the Common Council regarding an agenda item or
as a citizen comment must be received by the Clerk's office at least 24 hours prior
to the start of the Common Council Meeting. Such comments will be provided to
the Council and appropriate staff but will not be read out loud at the meeting.

11) RULES PERTAINING TO THE TIMING OF SUBMISSIONS FOR INCLUSION ON THE COUNCIL
AGENDA AND INFORMATION REQUESTED FOR MEETINGS

a. Agenda items for submittal must follow the City of Franklin Municipal Code,
$19-2A., as attached hereto.

Council Members should keep in mind that add1t1onal time may be needed to work
with staff to convert items into resolution or ordinance form or provide
clarifications as necessary; and that items submitted at the last minute may need to
be delayed until the following regular Council meeting.

Should a requested agenda item not be placed on an agenda as submitted It shall
be automatically placed on the next scheduled agenda unless withdrawn by the
submitter. The Council Action Sheet for that item shall contain a statement by the
Mayor as to the reason for the delay.

b. Council Members shall work with the Mayor or his designee to obtain any
additional information needed prior to the Common Council meeting.

12) RULES PERTAINING TO STAFF/APPLICANT PRESENTATIONS

The Mayor or presiding officer may call appropnate staff or outside party to present
additional information on any agenda ttem to the Common Council without notice or
restriction on time.

6



13) CLOSED SESSION

Closed Sessions are the legal opportunity for the Common Council to discuss matters that,
If done mn an open meeting, would potentially debilitate or negatively mmpact persons
and/or matters otherwise protected by privileged and confidentiality provisions under the
law, the closed session being held in the interest of such persons and/or matters and in the
interest of the pubhc. Wisconsin Statutes, § 19.85, provides the only reasons a common
council may enter closed session.

The Common Council must recognize the confidential nature of discussions held mn Closed
Session and understand the importance of confident1ahty of ALL conversations and
Information discussed and/or distributed in a Closed Session.

Disclosing any of thus information inappropriately, or prematurely in some cases, not only
will potentially harm the City, but rt wll forever break any trust between the person
d1sclos1ng the information and everyone else who participated in the Closed Session.
Regaining that trust may not be possible and may have ramifications for the discloser far
past the subJect of one particular Closed Session.

Violating Closed Session confident1ahty exposes the Common Council Member to potential
legal action as well as sanctions as outlined in Wisconsin State Statutes, City of Franklin
Ordinances, and the Code of Conduct.

As a practice, only parties with direct information on a Closed Session matter in support of
the City, will be included in any Closed Session. The Mayor will make the dec1s1on on
attendance, other than the Members. The Common Council may, on motion and second of
Members, vote to include a part1c1pant while still in open session.

All personal electronic devices are prohibited while in Closed Session.

Documents and information distributed while in Closed Session should be returned to the
distributing party unless the distributing party releases the mnformation or the receiving
party 1s able to guarantee confidentialrty of such documents and information. That
Information remains confidential until Council action, and in some cases mndefinitely.

14) COUNCIL APPOINTMENT OF A COUNCIL MEMBER DUE TO THE VACATION OF A COUNCIL
SEAT BETWEEN ELECTIONS

Per Wisconsin State Statutes, § 17.23, vacancies in offices ofmayor or alderperson of cities
operating under the general law or special charter may befilled by the common council, by
majority vote, appointing a successor to servefor the residue of the unexpired term or until
a special election is held, as ordered by the common council under § 8.50, or an office may
remain vacant until an election is held. Also, per § 19.88, (1) Unless otherwise specifically
provided by statute, no secret ballot may be utilized to determine any election or other
decision ofa governmental body except the election of the officers ofsuch body in any
meeting.

In accordance with Wisconsin State Statutes, § 17.23 & § 19.88, the City ofFranklin has
utilized thefollowing process to fill Council vacancies: (1) Issue and publish an Official
Notice to Residents of the vacancy and accept letters of interest; (2) Invite all interested
parties to a meeting of the Common Council to make a presentation to the Common

7



Council; and (3) The Common Council appoints by majority vote. The appointment is
complete once the result ofa sufficient vote is ascertained and announced, and no
resolution declaring that person to be appointed is necessary. Once appointed, the
governing body may not rescind its vote or reconsider its actions and elect another person.
This process may be altered in the future when Council determines that it wishes to fill a
vacated Council seat through an appointment process.

15) AMENDMENT AND SUSPENSION OF RULES

a. REVIEW OF THESE RULES - These Rules will be reviewed periodically, but not less
than at the installation of each new Council.

b. AMENDMENT OF THESE RULES - These Rules may be amended, and/or new rules
adopted upon proper notice by a maJonty of all Members at any meeting of the
Common Council.

c. SUSPENSION OF THE RULES -A vote of two-thirds of the Members present will
suspend any Rule of the Council.

8



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Affirming the City of Franklin
Code of Conduct and Ethics

(Alderwoman Shari Hanneman)

MEETING
DATE

6/21/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.10.

At their May 17, 2022 meeting, the Common Council tabled this item to the June 21, 2022 Common
Council Meeting to be considered with continuation of the May 3, 2022 action taken by the Common
Council to table the Code of Conduct at the request ofAlderman Nelson.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022-, A Resolution Affirming the City of Franklin Code of
Conduct and Ethics.



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION AFFIRMING THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin embarked on a process to improve its communications
upon a recommendation from legal counsel hired by the City's risk/insurance provider that the
City make efforts to create proper, respectful, and effective communication protocols; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council and staff worked together for approximately seven
months, in twelve public meetings as well as additional time meeting individually with staff to
discuss concerns, questions, additional information to be presented to the full Council for
discussion, feedback, and decisions on what to include and not include; and

WHEREAS, advice and applicable documentation from the League of Wisconsin
Municipalities, best practices from other communities, and advice and review from outside legal
counsel, were all utilized to create the Code of Conduct and Ethics; and

WHEREAS, the result of that research and hard work was the creation and refining of
two very important documents, a Code of Conduct and Rules of the Common Council, as well as
adding an Ethics section to the Code of Conduct at Council's request; and

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2021, the City of Franklin Common Council, by a vote of 5-0,
with one Council Member not present, adopted and enacted its Code ofConduct and Ethics; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Code of Conduct and Ethics is to ensure that all elected
and appointed officials have clear guidelines for carrying out their responsibilities, and to ensure
a safe and positive work environment for those who conduct the business of the City of Franklin;
and

WHEREAS, the Code of Conduct details the process by which complaints of violations
to the Code of Conduct, other than ethics which follow a separate statewide process, will be
investigated and resolved in a timely manner; and

WHEREAS, there is a statewide established process for the enforcement of ethics
violations by the local district attorney (in Milwaukee County, this is Corporation Counsel)
which may be petitioned to the Attorney General if the district attorney fails to act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the City of Franklin Code of Conduct and Ethics stands as a
necessary and viable Code of Conduct to be maintained, updated as is appropriate, followed, and
subscribed to by all City of Franklin elected officials, appointed board/commission/committee
members, and appointed officials.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 21st
day of June, 2022 by Alderman _



Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 21st day of June, 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

YES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Consideration ofan
Intern Approval/Authorization Policy

MEETING
DATE

6/21/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.11.

The attached 'Intern Approval/Authorization Policy' is being reviewed by the Personnel
Committee on June 20, 2022, as directed by the Common Council at their June 7, 2022 meeting;
and any recommendations from the Personnel Committee will be forwarded to the Council at
their meeting of June 21, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the Intern Approval/Authorization Policy.

DOA-PS



Administrative Policy # XX

Franklin
f

WISCONSIN

DRAFT

Intern Approval/Authorization Policy

1.00 POLICYPURPOSE
The purpose of this policy is to identify the appropriate authonty to
approve/authorize unpaid orpaid intern/internship agreements

2.00 ORGANIZATIONSAND PERSONSAFFECTED
This policy applies to intern/internship agreements and interns hired for a
limited term by any City Department for which the Mayor is the hiring
authority as detailed herein.

An intern is defined as follows a limited-term, part-time employee hired
during or immediately following the individual's participation in a degree
program in a field related to the work performed by the department for
which the individual is working.

3.00 REFERENCES
Civil Service Manual authorizes the Mayor as the hiring of temporary and
casual employees.

4.00 POLICYSTATEMENT
The City of Franklin recognizes the Mayor as the hiring authority of
temporary and casual employees, and further authorizes the Mayor, with
the concurrence of the City Attorney in regard to the agreement language, if
applicable, to authorize intern agreements with outside organizations when
the Mayor determines the agreements are in the best interest of the City.

Specifically, an intern is hired with the specific intent of providing benefit to
the City while enhancing the individual's educational program and providing
the individual with work-related experience. Employment as an intern, i.e.
an internship, may continue while the individual remains active in a degree
program and for up to one year following graduation. Workloads and hours



Administrative Policy # XX

worked should be coordinated with and conducive to the individual's
academic program, and the internship may include employment during
summer periods or short breaks between semesters or quarters.

5.00 POLICYSPECIFICS
5.01 Department Heads recommend potential interns/internship

agreements.

5.02 Mayor considers the following in determining whether to agree to
accept the intern and enter into an agreement, if applicable:

1) Impact of the intern on the department;
2) Role the intern will fulfill during his/her tenure with the City,
3) Educational value provided by the department,
4) Duration of the internship;
5) Liability to the City due to taking on the intern;
6) Requirements the City must follow according to any established
agreement;

7) Available budgetary appropriation for the position, if it is a paid
position; and

8) Rate of pay.

5.03 The Mayor obtains and reviews the draft agreement with the
coordinating agency, if applicable, to ensure it is satisfactory to the
City.

If no formal agreement is required, the Mayor determines that the
informal agreement is satisfactory to the City.

5.04 The City Attorney reviews the draft agreement, if applicable, to
ensure that the exposure to the City in regard to such
agreement is not too onerous to the City.

6.00 POLICYEXCEPTIONS
Any formal agreements which are not dually acceptable to the Mayor and
the City Attorney, but still being considered by the City, will be presented to
the Common Council for formal consideration.

PolicyReview Period Thus Policy shall be reviewed at least every 5 years.
Established in 2022, next review no later than 2027



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Review of the Director of Clerk Services Position
and Timing of Hiring Due to Impending
Retirement/Upcoming Position Posting

MEETING
DATE

6/21/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.12.

This item will be discussed by the Personnel Committee on June 20, 2022, and any
recommendations will be forwarded to the Common Council on June 21, 2022.

The Director of Clerk Services position is slated to be posted as soon as feasible.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion as directed by the Common Council.

DOA-PS



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

COUNCIL ACTION 06/21/2022

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing from meeting of June 21, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As recommended by the License Committee.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



Franklin,,,
w 4 SC O NS I N

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda*
Alderman Room

June 21, 2022 - 5:30 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Annlicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Extraordinary Federation of Croatian Societies - Croatian Fest

Entertainment & Special Person in Charge: Thomas KrenzEvent Location: 9100-9140 S 76 St5:35 p.m.
Date of Event: Saturday, July 16, 2022

Class B Combination, DBA Point After Pub & Grille
Entertainment & Point After LLCAmusement

Darryl Malek, Agent2022-2023
5:40 p.m. 7101 S 76% St

Operator Burks, Kenneth D
2021-2022 Walmart #1551New
5:45 p.m.

Operator Burks, Kenneth D
2022-2023 Walmart #1551Renewal

Operator Chisom, Shaun A
2021-2022 Pick'n Save #6431New
5:50 p.m.

Operator Chisom, Shaun A
2022-2023 Pick'n Save #6431Renewal

Operator Murillo, Adriana
2021-2022 Walmart #1551New
5:55 p.m.

Operator Murillo, Adriana
2022-2023 Walmart #1551Renewal

Operator Churchhill, Sydney M
2022-2023 Sendik's Food MarketNew



License Committee Agenda
Alderman Room
June 21, 2022

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Daniels, Hollly A
2022-2023 Sendk's Food MarketNew

Operator Fischer, Nicholas
2022-2023 Chili's Grill & BarNew

Operator Flores, Peggy A
2022-2023 MimosaNew

Operator Josephson, Sarah A
2022-2023 Kwik Trip #857New

Operator Neumann, Richard H
2022-2023 Target Store T-2388New

Operator Schultz, Kimberly A
2022-2023 Sendik's Food MarketNew

Operator Solomon, Savanna L
2022-2023 Point After Pub & GrilleNew

Operator Torbeck, Jenna E
2022-2023 Walgreens #05459New

Operator Boneck, Dawn J
2021-2022 Romey's PlaceNew

Operator Boneck, Dawn J
2022-2023 Romey's PlaceRenewal

Operator Gonzalez, Aarion A
2021-2022 7-ElevenNew

Operator Gonzalez, Aarion A
2022-2023 7-ElevenRenewal

Page 2 of3



License ( ommttee Agenda
Alderman Room
June 21, 2022

Notice Is gven that a mayorty of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather mnformatron about an agenda item over whtch they have
decrs1on-making responsibility Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council will not take formal action at thus meeting

Page 3 of3

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Bogust, Erik J
2022-2023 Swiss Street Pub & GrillRenewal

Operator Flores, Heather M
2022-2023 No LocationRenewal

Operator Gernhauser, Madeline A
2022-2023 Milwaukee Burger CompanyRenewal

Operator Kagerbauer, Justin D
2022-2023 Federation of Croatian SocietiesRenewal

Operator Lindi, Mikala
2022-2023 Milwaukee Burger CompanyRenewal

Operator Oliver, Lisa M
2022-2023 Rawson PubRenewal

Operator Otto, Lori A
2022-2023 Rawson PubRenewal

Operator Planton, Allison M
2022-2023 The Rock Sports ComplexRenewal

Operator Schauer, Joseph M
2022-2023 Croatian ParkRenewal

Operator Wiltzius, Julie A
2022-2023 Irish CottageRenewal

Operator Zalewski, Raquel M
2022-2023 Rawson PubRenewal

3. Adjournment

Time-



APPROVAL

b»G-
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
6/21/2022

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated June 3, 2022 through June 16, 2022, Nos 188274 through Nos 188460 m the amount
of$ 2,428,759 15 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 4978 through Nos 4993, Library vouchers totaling
$10,129 71, Tourism vouchers totaling$ 5,365 00, Water Utility vouchers totaling $10,417 61and Property tax
vouchers totaling $ 8,018 67

Included mn thus listing is payment to Velo Village m the amount of $ 459,000 and payment to First American Title
Insurance mn the amount of$ 750,000 which were approved at the Common Council meetmg on June 7, 2022

Early release disbursements dated June 3, 2022 through June 15, 2022 m the amount of$ 1,721,857 14 are
provided on a separate listing and are also included mn the complete disbursement listing These payments have
been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

The net payroll dated June 17, 2022 1s $ 427,772 10, previously estimated at$ 417,000 Payroll deductions
dated June 17, 2022 are $ 436,983 24, previously estimated at$ 442,000

The estimated payroll for July 1, 2022 1s $ 417,000 wth estimated deductions and matching payments of
$250,000

Attached 1s a 11st of property tax disbursements, EFT No 426 through EFT No 430 and EFT No 308(S) through
EFT No 31 O(S) dated June 3, 2022 through June 16, 2022, in the amount of$ 1,273,592 46 $8,018 67 represents
tax refund reimbursements and $ 1,265,573 79 represents tax settlements from US Bank There ts also an
add1t1onal $2,568,952 16 of tax settlements from American Deposits These payments have been released as
authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of June 16, 2022 in the amount of $ 2,428,759 15 and

• Payroll dated June 17, 2022 in the amount of$ 427,772 10 and payments of the various payroll deductions 1n
the amount of$ 436,983 24, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated July 1, 2022 in the amount of$ 417,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 250,000, plus City matching payments and

• Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of June 16, 2022 in the amount of$ 1,273,592 46

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - KM


